ANNUAL £
REPORT #g

RRETBERERER LS
CHRISTINE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

(RESHSIMALZERAR )
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

R X9 Stock Code: 1210



B &%
CONTENTS

REER
ESEo8
EEENwEOMN
EENRRERE
EEEWmE
EEERMS

B AR

reEakEMEEEARSE

A MBIRRER

iR MR M E

MR

BR
Page
Corporate Information 2
Chairman’s Statement 5
Management Discussion and Analysis 8
Directors and Senior Management 20
Report of the Directors 25
Corporate Governance Report 43
Independent Auditor’s Report 68
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income 76
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 77
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 79
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 80
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 82
Financial Summary 184

ZT = —FFW Annual Report 2021 RRIASTEIBRIZRAMR AT Christine International Holdings Limited

1



2

QX AEH
CORPORATE INFORMATION

Exg

HITES

REEWRE (F/E)

MEE AL

EEARE

CENEE (B F - —F—HA_FTHAETHETEE)

FHITES

HBUBRE

ERARE (F-F - —F A FTHAETHETEE)
BYFHTES

EmERE

EBEESL

Bt
BEmLT+

BREEY
EREEL (£F)

Bt
£ hedam

FMWEES
BAIL L (EE)
RAE
A g
B
HE R T

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Chun Bin Xu (Chairman)

Mr. Yong Ning Zhu

Mr. Ming Tien-Lin

Mr. I-Sheng Chan

Mr. Chien-Li Tseng (ceased to be a director on 24 January 2022)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Dun-ching Hung
Mr. Chi-Ming Chou (ceased to be a director on 24 January 2022)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Hang Sheng Ye
Dr. Yong Jun Tang
Ms. Hong Xue

Ms. Xiao Yan Xu

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Dr. Yong Jun Tang (Chairman)
Ms. Hong Xue
Ms. Xiao Yan Xu

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Ms. Hong Xue (Chairman)
Mr. Yong Ning Zhu

Mr. Chun Bin Xu

Mr. Hang Sheng Ye

Ms. Xiao Yan Xu

ZTZ—FFW Annual Report 2021 FRRIASTEIBRIZERAMRAT Christine International Holdings Limited



QX AEH
CORPORATE INFORMATION

REZET
BANESE (L)
SRR S

A e
EEEHL
Bkt

BRRREZRE
RAKBRE (L)
HReE R 5
S
A 5t

HE MRt

DNEME

MR AhSL A (BB ST AT
RREAK

A S

P 5 2

AR ERE

Cricket Square
Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman
KYT-1111
Cayman Islands

ZEZ—FF Annual Report 2021

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Hang Sheng Ye (Chairman)
Mr. Yong Ning Zhu

Mr. Chun Bin Xu

Dr. Yong Jun Tang

Ms. Hong Xue

STRATEGY AND INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

Mr. Yong Ning Zhu (Chairman)
Mr. Ming-Tien Lin

Mr. I-Sheng Chan

Mr. Chun Bin Xu

Ms. Xiao Yan Xu

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Chen Kun (Solicitor of HKSAR)
AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Chun Bin Xu
Mr. Chen Kun

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square
Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman
KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

RRIHSTEMIZERARAT Christine International Holdings Limited

3



QX AEH
CORPORATE INFORMATION

MMEERTEERBE

AR HAE
&

TP @

ST 83358
4% : 200062

ERTEERME

BEwE

& $81E899R
NEFL—EE
244E2413A F

FERONBFETE

Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
4th Floor, Royal Bank House

24 Shedden Road, George Town

Grand Cayman

KY1-1110

Cayman Islands

BEREROBFETTRE

EEREFSFELERAR
55

it A

ERE148552112
2103B =

M

FEIIR (BB LTMBHAERAA
BB

B EEE185

FIRE 5428

ERLEERM

PR iR AT

BheE

& 8 B8R

NEFL— B
24122413A F

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS

No. 33 Jinshajiang Road

Putuo District

Shanghai 200062

The People’s Republic of China

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG
KONG

Unit 2413A, 24/F,

Tower One, Lippo Centre
89 Queensway, Admiralty
Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
4th Floor, Royal Bank House

24 Shedden Road, George Town

Grand Cayman

KY1-1110

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited
Room 2103B

21/F, 148 Electric Road

North Point

Hong Kong

AUDITOR

Mazars CPA Limited

42nd Floor, Central Plaza
18 Harbour Road, Wanchai
Hong Kong

HONG KONG LEGAL ADVISOR

Peter Chen Law Office
Unit 2413A, 24/F,

Tower One, Lippo Centre
89 Queensway, Admiralty
Hong Kong

ZTZ—FFW Annual Report 2021 FRRIASTEIBRIZERAMRAT Christine International Holdings Limited



ETEHE
CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

BERIIRER

AARRERAGTERERAR AR (A7) % [#HMA))
Ex(srnalEB)e((ESE)REXRQRALEME
AR (SB[ AEHDBEE T -_—F+A=1+—HIF

BZRE NHBILEE-

REBFE AEEEEF TMizPEARLNE ([HE])
BT S MSH(LBB R BH B BERMERR
HESSZINEPEH LELERANFEHERNE -
B ENEREI IR NEELETIBAE-

HEEXNEREERMNFTEESLNEE ERHEBEER
MR EFELMHBEAEEANXEER EHEMM
RS EFPEMNEREERR

BHNEBSETERRSE AEOCRHEBERMHELR S X
RMEROER MR T RFHT REREIEARE
CONSRES i

AEBERKEIRBOXRERPE —BEEE T8 X
E

RERR

“EC-FHE AERAARBERRT EREERR &
TEERBEXNMAEZHE -REAEERDZEEY
i BERBEES INRRES 2FEBNETES

WEBE -

ZEZ—FF Annual Report 2021

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (each a
"Director”) of Christine International Holdings Limited (the
“Company” or “we" or “us”), | hereby present the annual
report of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the
"Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2021 for your
review.

During the year under review, the Group has continued to
focus on the bakery market in the People’s Republic of China
(the "PRC"). Although the market is increasingly fragmented
with more players, trendy, unigue and refreshing products and
consumption scenarios are gaining favour with customers,
especially young consumers which account for a major portion
of the consumer base. This has brought great challenge to
traditional bakeries, forcing them to speed up their business
upgrading.

The changes taking place in the bakery industry force us to
find ways to improve our products and services and to create
a better aesthetic experience for consumers, bringing a more
satisfying consumption experience to our customers.

The Group has always paid close attention to the developments
of the bakery industry, and has been exploring ways to improve
its strategies, processes, services and management, with a
view to providing ever better products that are safe, tasty and
healthy. It is the major objective and mission of the Group to
establish “Christine” as a reputable food brand.

OPERATING RESULTS AND PERFORMANCE

During the year of 2021, the COVID-19 pandemic and global
economic downturn has continued to cause unprecedented
impacts on business activities. Despite all the measures taken
by the Group to cope with the situation, the Group’s business
was inevitably negatively impacted during the year amid a
weak consumption environment.

RRIHSTEMIZERARAT Christine International Holdings Limited

5



6

ETEHE
CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

AEE S - —FHRBANDARB2BEE T R=_F=
ZERPLOARBINIBE L MBI A27.7% iR ERE
KERE T B RASEREEEEEREMER - BBRER
AMEEEROBARBIT0IBEE T B2 _SFENE
BHOARBSOTEE L BIBAX54.1%  BIEEMEER
RAEBFEREABEMAEARATESENGETE: ()&
UL A TRBE: () Hable A - s REBER A (i RAEE:T
REAREEREBBRBENAREISIEE T R(VHEE
Ro#EASRD -

EBEN—F SEEBXI2ETEHFENERT  HARR
RECDERT —EMBENLEERHEE R _FT-_—F R
I T B ANRAMIGER T 5 BIKEERFIESSEK - K
REEBLERA HEKRT —HBRRER NWEIRERR
B -HEERRETH RMEGHABRRAERGER B
FRMBMKMOEL AR RESOPIERSHE RERE
REVE HE M RIS EYRBKEXARIZ L BT
MTRZEAME -

AREE

AR AEEREBESHRAT DM EREERE  AEM
HEBTHHERSEEEEE RERE BEMBAX
BEIWEMm - RE KAMSELABEMER IMARE
A ERENRAHEE  THRAERGERT N -

—T=—F4F3 Annual Report 2021

The Group’s total revenue in 2021 was approximately
RMB292.0 million, representing a decrease of approximately
RMB111.9 million or 27.7% as compared to 2020, which
was due to the overall economic downturn and the Group's
downsizing of stores. Net loss attributable to owners of the
Company was approximately RMB170.1 million, representing
an increase of approximately RMB59.7 million or 54.1% in
loss as compared to 2020. The increase in loss was mainly
attributable to the Group’s continuing closures of loss-
making stores and the combined effects of (i) overall declines
in revenue; (ii) decrease in other income, gains and losses;
(iii) provision for impairment losses on right-of-use assets of
approximately RMB38.3 million made in current year; and (iv)
decrease in selling and distribution expenses.

In the past year, despite the Group's business suffering heavy
blows, we overcame difficulties and ensured, though in a
smaller scale, production and sales. We conducted more in-
depth and precise market research and closed down 55
loss-making stores in 2021, which significantly reduced
our operating costs and eliminated a number of outdated
production facilities to achieve the best economies of scale.
In terms of product development, we adjusted our existing
product portfolio, optimised the proportions of semi-finished
products and finished products, ensured on-site baking at
some stores and developed festive products. We have also
made attempts and efforts to improve the delivery process of
our cold chain logistics network.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

In the future, the Group will continue to focus on the research
and development of new products and enrich its product
offerings, so as to better align with the prevailing consumption
concepts and habits and provide healthy, trendy and aesthetic
products. In addition, we will gradually adjust our product
portfolio, increase the integrated sales of health drinks and
bakery products, and constantly improve the comprehensive
competitiveness of our products.

RRI##STEIBRIZRAMR AT Christine International Holdings Limited
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We will continue to optimise the sales strategies of our
retail stores, with a focus on enhancing the brand image of
flagship stores and improving consumer experience services
of individual stores, to consolidate our existing customer
base. We will also try to cooperate with other channels, and
intend to introduce the distribution channels of renowned
convenience store chains to explore new business patterns. We
will set up smarter online sales channels and establish strategic
cooperation with well-known online sales platforms to drive
product traffic, thereby further expanding the brand influence
of “Christine”.

The Yangtze River Delta region, including Shanghai, Zhejiang
and lJiangsu in the PRC, will remain our main market in the
short term. We will increase investment in intelligent software
and hardware equipment of our factories, further optimize our
supply chain platform and improve our logistics network to
ensure efficient and on-time delivery of fresh products.

The Group will also explore and provide more diversified
products and services while growing its core business, i.e.
bakery business. We are in the process of negotiating with
certain colleges of Chinese medicine to establish long-term
strategic cooperation. Under the guidance of the Chinese
medicine theories, we will be able to integrate the elements of
food therapy and health care into our products to enrich the
content of “Christine” brand.

I would like to express my sincere gratitude to our shareholders,
customers, business partners and employees for their
continuous support to the Group. We will push forward with
our business transformation, and we are confident that we will
infuse the “Christine” brand with new vitality and create long-
lasting value for our Company and our shareholders.

Chun Bin Xu
Chairman and executive Director
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WA Revenue

AEERBEE T - —FR-T_FTFF+_A=+—HIHF An analysis of the Group's revenue and gross profit by product
EWAREFZERBRSNTNAT types for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 is set
out as follows:

BE+t-A=+—BHLEE

For the years ended 31 December

—E-—F —ETF
2021 2020

WA EF WA EH
Revenue Gross Profit Revenue Gross Profit
AR¥FT ARKFIT AREFT AR TFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB000
e & E Bread and cakes 215,654 92,959 286,686 114,761
A&t Moon cakes 21,387 8,829 35,416 14,177
=30 Pastries 40,638 15,613 53,914 21,582
Hith Other 14,355 5,515 27,903 11,170
292,034 122,916 403,919 161,690

ZEZ—FAREERALN B ARME292,034,0000T  RZF The Group's revenue in 2021 amounted to approximately

—TFERAL AR BEL403,919,000708 P 4927.7% T ERE RMB292,034,000, representing a decrease of approximately

K 27.7% as compared with approximately RMB403,919,000 in
2020, which was mainly attributable to:

(=) ZZE—FHERMAEBERHEET USTELAR (i)  the continued spread of the COVID-19 pandemic in

HETEHERR HBELNERER At X&E 2021 dealt a heavy blow to various industries, especially
BRAREEHERR BUHEBEFROTAZE. the consumer sector, as consumer confidence weakened.
ERRNBBEBRRENSC 2FRKADBETE: Though the Group proactively adjusted its production

and sales strategies to cope with the adverse impacts
of the pandemic, its revenue for the year was still down
due to a sluggish macro consumer environment;

(Z) 2B —FAEBEENTAREEBME R @5 (i) in 2021, the Group continued to implement the strategy
PIESSR  PIERA BB EET2FRA K of closing down loss-making stores and closed 55 stores,

which, to a certain extent, contributed to the decline in
revenue for the year; and

(Z) AEEEREABEEREHEERX EaXmBER (i) the Group's active attempt to change its traditional
RFHERENBEANT —TRAEABE THETA marketing model was still under way and the
FEER- revitalization of the brand and the roll-out of new sales

channels have yet to materialize to bring in benefits,
which also contributed to the decline in revenue for the
year.

8 ZTZ—FFW Annual Report 2021 RFIMATEIBRIZMRAER AT Christine International Holdings Limited
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& 58 D 49 A R #513,548,0007T * IR £948.6% © B # 48
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U ITASW AEENHEEBRTMAEZRS (RIE
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149,095,000, 7t - fh R HETHRS1.1% (ZZEZTF  HAR
#220,760,0007T  {H 4R SHEBEM54.7% ) B FH (KRB F)
FEHEHBNEEEALH ARE142,939,0007T 165 5 E 5B
48.9% (— T - T4 : #) AR #183,159,0007T 15 48 35 & 58
45.3% ) o

In terms of geographical location, Shanghai remained the
main source of the Group’s turnover. However, due to the
impact of the pandemic and the closure of some stores with
significant losses, revenue derived from Shanghai decreased
by approximately RMB64,727,000 from approximately
RMB247,481,000 in 2020 to approximately RMB182,754,000
in 2021, accounting for 62.6% of the Group’s total revenue
in 2021, more than 61.3% in 2020. In 2021, revenue derived
from Jiangsu and Zhejiang amounted to approximately
RMB78,104,000 and RMB31,176,000, respectively, accounting
for 26.7% and 10.7% of the Group’s total revenue,
respectively.

In terms of product categories, in 2021, sales revenue
from major products of bread and cakes decreased by
approximately RMB71,032,000 or 24.8% as compared
to 2020, and sales revenue from pastries decreased by
approximately RMB13,276,000 or 24.6% as compared to
2020. As bread, cakes and pastries are daily necessities,
geographical convenience and the number of patrons are of
critical significance to sales results. Both sales volume and
revenue of such products decreased due to the temporary
closure of enterprises, schools and communities as a result
of the pandemic and the decrease in the number of retail
outlets during the year. Other categories, including products
such as wheat albumin and jelly, recorded no significant
increase in sales volume, and the sales revenue decreased by
approximately RMB13,548,000 or approximately 48.6% as
compared to 2020. Sales revenue from moon cakes decreased
by approximately RMB14,029,000 or approximately 39.6% as
compared to 2020 due to the pandemic and closure of stores.

In terms of payment tools, the Group’s sales in retail outlets
were settled either in cash (and by bank cards and third-party
payment platforms) or through redemption of coupons (and
prepaid cards), the proportion of both means of settlement
varied little in 2021 as compared with 2020. In 2021, sales in
cash (and by bank cards and third-party payment platforms)
amounted to approximately RMB149,095,000, accounting
for 51.1% of the total sales revenue (2020: approximately
RMB220,760,000, accounting for 54.7% of total sales
revenue); and sales through redemption of coupons (and
prepaid cards) amounted to approximately RMB142,939,000,
accounting for 48.9% of the total sales revenue (2020:
approximately RMB183,159,000, accounting for 45.3% of the
total sales revenue).

ZT = —FFW Annual Report 2021 RRIASTEIBRIZRAMR AT Christine International Holdings Limited
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Gross profit and gross profit margin

The Group'’s gross profit for the year ended 31 December 2021
was approximately RMB122,916,000, representing a decrease
of approximately RMB38,774,000 or 24.0% as compared
to approximately RMB161,690,000 for the year ended
31 December 2020, which was mainly due to the decrease in
overall revenue during the year.

The gross profit margin for the 2021 was approximately
42.1%, representing a slight increase from 40.0% for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

Other income, gain and losses

The Group's other income, gain and losses for the year
ended 31 December 2021 amounted to approximately
RMB6,188,000, representing a decrease of approximately
RMB41,117,000 as compared with approximately
RMB47,305,000 for the year ended 31 December 2020,
which was mainly due to the decrease in gain on disposal of
property, plant and equipment, income on COVID-19-related
rent concessions and COVID-19 related government subsidies
by RMB30,915,000. RMB4,459,000 and RMB5,042,000,
respectively.

Charge of loss allowances on financial assets, net

No charge of loss allowances on financial assets was recorded
in 2021 (2020: approximately RMB706,000).

Selling and distribution expenses

As a result of the closure of certain stores and in line with
decrease in revenue, selling and distribution expenses
decreased by approximately RMB59,808,000 from
approximately RMB266,315,000 for the year ended
31 December 2020 to approximately RMB206,507,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2021.

RRI##STEIBRIZRAMR AT Christine International Holdings Limited
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Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses for the year ended 31 December 2021
amounted to approximately RMB45,454,000, representing
slight increase as compared to approximately RMB42,133,000
for the year ended 31 December 2020. The slight increase
is due to the increase of approximately RMB2,000,000 in
business entertainment expenses of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

Finance costs

The Group’s finance costs increased by approximately
RMB1,671,000 or 17.5% from approximately RMB9,552,000
for the year ended 31 December 2020 to approximately
RMB11,223,000 for the year ended 31 December 2021, which
was mainly due to the increase in interest expenses on bank
borrowings.

Income tax credit (expense)

Income tax credit for the year ended 31 December 2021 was
approximately RMB2,287,000 as compared with income tax
expense of approximately RMB660,000 for the year ended
31 December 2020, which was mainly due to the fact that the
Group suffered loss.

Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year
attributable to owners of the Company

Net losses for the year ended 31 December 2021 was
approximately RMB170,125,000, representing an increase in
loss of approximately RMB59,754,000 or approximately 54.1%
as compared to the net loss of approximately RMB110,371,000
for the year ended 31 December 2020, which was mainly
due to the combined effects of (i) overall declines in revenue;
(i) decrease in other income, gains and losses; (iii) provision
for impairment losses on right-of-use assets of approximately
RMB38,332,000 made in current year; and (iv) decrease in
selling and distribution expenses.

RRIHSTEMIZERARAT Christine International Holdings Limited
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FEREXE
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ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Inventory turnover days

The following table sets forth the inventory turnover days in
2021 and 2020:

BE+t-A=t+—-HLEE

For the year ended 31 December

—E-—F ZETF
2021 2020
FaEEEXE (K Inventory turnover days (note) 40 36

Wit BRBBRBDRFEMVIRPREHR 2 EM T HERABRESF
M2 HEKA  BIRIA3GSRETEFH -

AEEBFEBERME RENK M ARBRAMEESEET
B FERAEREH T _EF+ A=+ —HM36KE N
BT —F+-HA=+—H40K"

BERWRIRAEERH
TR TR _T_TFEEHRUFBABERE:

Note: Inventory turnover days are calculated based on the arithmetic mean
of the opening and closing balance of inventories divided by cost of
sales for the relevant year and multiplied by 365 days.

The Group's inventories consist of raw materials and finished
goods. There was increase in the inventory turnover days from
36 days at 31 December 2020 to 40 days at 31 December
2021, which was due to the closure of retail outlets and thus
caused the decrease in sales.

Trade receivables turnover days

The following table sets forth the trade receivables turnover
days in 2021 and 2020:

BE+-A=+—-HLEE

For the year ended 31 December

—®-—F —E-THE
2021 2020
B 5 W FORBEE X8 (M ) Trade receivables turnover days (note) 5 8

Hist: B HREGIASRETIRE 5 R IHOR ) & R &tk 2 Eit
FHERABEFOZHERA  BRIAGSKRAES L -

BHEWHIATERREEE EBMAE SRR UKD H
PIE B SRBRBAERERD AR AN EEB R E BRI
Bl B o
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Note: Trade receivables turnover days are calculated based on the
arithmetic mean of the opening and closing balance of trade
receivables divided by the sales revenue for the relevant year and
multiplied by 365 days.

Trade receivables mainly represent the outstanding receivables
arising from revenue generated from principal businesses.
There was decrease in the trade receivables turnover days due
to tighten-up of the Group's policy on debt collection.
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Age of trade receivables

The following table sets forth an ageing analysis of the trade
receivables of the Group as at the dates indicated:

R+=A=+—8H
As at 31 December
—E-—F —ETHF
2021 2020
ARKFT AR TFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
bR ES Age
0E30K 0 to 30 days 3,103 4,534
31260K 31 to 60 days 103 130
61£290K 61 to 90 days 10 93
91£180K 91 to 180 days - 349
3,216 5,106

AEEHETBERNRSEARPABRASREE - EAKES
YFERBEE YEMREY BEERENAERAXES
MERE RESHHEEATBEREAREHEETE R
30E60RE X ALE-

B RNFEEE R
TR —_E-Z R _EFEEFEMNFERERE:

The Group’s sales were mainly settled either in cash or through
redemption of coupons by customers. There was no credit
payment for transactions which took place in the Group’s
self-operated retail stores. However, for those retail stores
located in department stores or supermarkets, lessors who
provide those sites usually collect the sales revenue on the
Group's behalf and pay the same to the Group within 30 to 60
days thereafter.

Trade payables turnover days

The following table sets forth the trade payables turnover days
in 2021 and 2020:

BE+t-A=+—-HLEE

For the year ended 31 December

—®-—F —E-THE
2021 2020
Z 5 sREEE R B (FiRE) Trade payables turnover days (note) 121 91

Wit BHRNFIREBRETIZE 5 RN R B R ARG 2 HIT
FHERUBBFNHZHERS BRIAGSKRAESL

ZZT = —FF4 Annual Report 2021

Note: Trade payables turnover days are calculated based on the arithmetic
mean of the opening and closing balance of the trade payables
divided by the cost of sales for the relevant year and multiplied by
365 days.
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Age of trade payables

The following table sets forth an ageing analysis of the trade
payables of the Group as at the dates indicated:

W+=—A=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-—F —E-THF
2021 2020
ARKFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BREQ Age
0£45XK 0 to 45 days 22,055 38,877
46E60K 46 to 60 days 15,385 12,039
61E90K 61 to 90 days 2,934 10,264
91£180K 91 to 180 days 6,852 1,245
HBiB180K Over 180 days 1,333 754
48,559 63,179
FiN/NE] %ﬂﬁﬁg B E SN RGBT £30-60Kk - EEHE & The credit terms for trade payables due to suppliers of
REEE T —FEHMBOHERREZ N HAREAEH the Company generally range from 30 to 60 days. Slight
o adjustments were made to the payment terms of certain
suppliers in 2021 in view of the cash flow control.
EHEE Contract liabilities

ANBBEIERHEFPKENBENREER ARERNTE
H—F%iﬁﬂﬁlmlﬁf;v; SFEFRD BN REESAE

ZEZTF+ZA=+—H® AR 317,366,0007T % 2
%Aﬁmwzmpmmi@ifg:—¢+fﬂ:+ =N
AR #278,162,0007T °

AREAREREXREGEE

AEER T —F+_A=+T"BRAREAHHES
AREREREES -

—T=—F4F3 Annual Report 2021

Contract liabilities mainly include payments received from
customers for prepaid cards and coupons. The balance of
prepaid cards and coupons decreased by approximately
RMB39,204,000 from RMB317,366,000 as of 31 December
2020 to RMB278,162,000 as of 31 December 2021 due to the
decrease in recognition of receipt in advance of prepaid cards
and coupons as compared to 2020.

Future plans for material investments and capital assets

The Group did not have plans for material investments or
capital assets as at 31 December 2021 and the date of this
report.
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EXRE

BE_Z-—F+-_A=1T—RHLFE AEELEHIE
RRE -

REMER A BEIR

HE-_Z - —F+_-_A=1+—H8 BILREHBEHARE
17,902,000 BEEZ T -_ZFF+ A=+ —HHARE
63,847,0007T * ik 2 #) A R #£45,945,0007T 3 £972.0% * |R
REEEHMARSFERRARERREZDELENE S
FFEE

BE-_Z-—F+-A=1+T—HRIHLLRAE144% ERE
AR CEF+ A=+ —HHORELEER255%  FEHR
SRITRIE &R D FTE

=R

BEREER

HEZZ - —FR-ZT-ZF+-_A=+—H XrEEHER
BER(RBEBERUBEET) D RIH145.9% K&105.9% -
BRBGERFANIEREAR S - —FHRTRELER
B RERE R R RITE I -
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FINANCIAL AND TREASURY POLICY

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management
approach towards its financial and treasury policies.
Considering the year-on-year decline in cash positions, in order
to maintain sound liquidity, we have established long-term
relationships with financial institutions to secure credit facilities
and ensure the integrity of the Group’s assets so as to meet
financing guarantee requirements.

Material acquisitions and disposals

The Group did not have any material acquisition or disposal for
the year ended 31 December 2021.

Significant investment

The Group did not have significant external investment for the
year ended 31 December 2021.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Bank and cash balances decreased by approximately
RMB45,945,000 or approximately 72.0% from approximately
RMB63,847,000 as at 31 December 2020 to approximately
RMB17,902,000 as at 31 December 2021, which was due to
the net cash used in operations activities outweighing the net
cash from investing and financing activities.

The current ratio as at 31 December 2021 was 14.4%, which
was lower than 25.5% as at 31 December 2020. The decrease
is mainly due to the decrease in bank and cash balances.

LIABILITIES

Gearing ratio

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group’s gearing
ratio, calculated by dividing total liabilities by total assets, was
approximately 145.9% and 105.9%, respectively. The increase
in the gearing ratio is mainly due to the decrease in bank and
cash balances, increase in loan from a shareholder and bank
borrowings in 2021.

RRIHSTEMIZERARAT Christine International Holdings Limited
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&%

HE-Z-—F+-A=+—0 AEERBETEAEGEE (=
ZEF | o

RAREE

BE-T-—F+-A=+—H AKEEERLREE (=
T_FTFE)

BAREE

BE_ZT-—F+-A=+—B AEFVEEHERFEDE -
BEREEZEATNERBEOEREE(ZTE_ZF 4
A FR#464,0007T) °

AEEER

HE-_Z-_—F+_-_A=+—8 A&£EARTERIRHI
PTEHEREEEEHARK196,328,000T (ZEZFEF HA
R ¥135,495,0007T) 2 @ AW E M A E IR

EXREE

HE-_FT-_—F+_A=+—B1t FAEERTEBER
A AR ¥130,000,0000T (== =F4F : AR%100,000,000
) HEBBHAREE6,162,000t (T _TF HAR
#84,628,0007T ) © #4258 B E 1B 4 AR ¥206,037,0007T -

T -TFAFBIEHARKE35912,0000T AT = —4F
TZA=+T—H AREIZERERKEEIE,010,188,000/% &
% ™ {E0.00001E o2 @Ak (R4 ]) -
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Bank borrowings

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had bank borrowings
of approximately RMB130,000,000 (2020: approximately
RMB100,000,000) at an interest rate adopted for general
lending in the financial sector.

Debentures
As at 31 December 2021, the Group had not issued any
debentures (2020: Nil).

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2021,
contingent liabilities (2020: Nil).

the Group had no material

Capital commitments

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no capital
commitments contracted but not yet provided for in relation
to the acquisition of property, plant and equipment (2020:
approximately RMB464,000).

Pledged assets

As at 31 December 2021, the Groups' certain self-owned
commercial properties with an aggregate carrying amount
of approximately RMB196,328,000 (2020: approximately
RMB135,495,000) were pledged to secure bank borrowings.

Capital structure

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had secured bank
borrowings of RMB130,000,000 (2020: RMB100,000,000)
and lease liabilities of approximately RMB66,162,000 (2020:
approximately RMB84,628,000). Total equity amounted to
a deficit of approximately RMB206,037,000 compared to
a deficit of approximately RMB35,912,000 of 2020. As at
31 December 2021, the capital structure of the Company
comprised 1,010,188,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.00001 each
(the “Shares”).
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Foreign exchange and interest rate exposure

As the Group conducts business transactions principally in
Renminbi, interest rate fluctuation in places where capital
was deposited was not high, and our offshore capital was
mainly deposited in foreign banks as offshore Renminbi,
the management considered the exchange rate and interest
rate risk at the Group’s operational level not significant.
Accordingly, the Group had not used any financial instruments
for hedging purposes as at 31 December 2021.

HUMAN RESOURCES

In 2021, the Group shut down part of its loss-making stores,
and optimized and downsized its workforce accordingly. As
at 31 December 2021, the Group had 2,018 employees (as
at 31 December 2020: 2,604) in total, mainly consisting of
administrative personnel, research and development personnel
as well as sales staff in retail stores.

In view of the on-going downsizing in recent years, the Group
focused on enhancing labour relations and legal consultation
in human resources management. While reducing manpowver,
the Group also took into account of harmonious relations and
regulatory compliance so as to reduce internal impacts. In-
service employees were trained for multiple functions, enabling
them to replace and provide support for each other even in
different positions. Through such measures, the Group aimed
to achieve a reasonable operating scale, protect the legitimate
rights and interests of employees and maintain harmonious
labour relations.

In order to improve future performance, the Group strategically
needs to try new business forms such as online sales and OEM
of bakery products that were different from those in the past.
In anticipation of immediate effect from the promotion of new
businesses, the Group targeted to recruit related high-level
business personnel in 2021, and will continue to seek suitable
candidates from its peers in near term, so as to inject new
blood into the Group, remove its disadvantages, and bring
vitality to the Group.

RRIHSTEMIZERARAT Christine International Holdings Limited
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The remuneration policy for the Directors, senior management
members and other employees is determined based on their
experiences, responsibilities and general market conditions.
In addition to fixed salaries, the employees may be granted
allowances and year-end bonuses subject to departmental and
personal performance appraisal. Any discretionary bonus and
other merit payments are linked to the performance of the
Group and the individual performance of the Directors, senior
management members and other employees.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

Market Outlook

As a result of COVID-19, the industry size scaled down
as compared with the previous years. Nevertheless, the
management of the Group remains optimistic to the booming
trend of the bakery industry in the PRC, mainly due to the
following reasons, including: (i) the economy is expected to
maintain its continuous growth trend while the consumption
power will be consistently enhanced in the long run; (i) the
relatively low entry barrier and the increasing injection of
investment capital and manpower; and (iii) the enlarging
customer base that is expanding from first and second-tier
cities to third and fourth-tier cities.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
PROSPECTS

In 2021, the research and development department of the
Group plans to focus on improving products and optimizing
the mass production technology, including (1) increasing
efforts to develop various new bread, cakes and desserts;
(2) improving the taste of the existing bread and cakes and
enhancing the softness of bread; and (3) adding a variety of
themed cakes to cater for various festivals. Looking forward,
the management of the Group will continue to optimize its
strategies, further enhance the brand image and product
awareness, and actively develop the market orienting toward
young consumer groups, so as to provide healthier, fashionable
and high-quality bakery products.
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PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year ended 31 December 2021.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

After end of the financial year ended, there were no significant
events after the reporting period up to the date of this report
which has material impact on the Group.

RRIHSTEMIZERARAT Christine International Holdings Limited
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Hereinbelow are the biographical details of the directors and
senior management of the Company as at the date of the
publication of this annual report:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chun Bin Xu, aged 58, was appointed as chairman
on 22 May 2020 and re-designated from an independent
non-executive Director to an executive Director on 3 July 2020.
Mr. Xu is member of Strategy and Investment Committee,
member of Nomination Committee and member of
Remuneration Committee. He graduated from the Business
School of Nanjing University with an EMBA degree. Mr. Xu has
been working in the financial and investment departments of
the financial institutions for a long period and has extensive
experience in financial management and financial investments.
Mr. Xu joined Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
("ICBC") in 1983, and he had been appointed as the financial
director and an officer of Nanjing Sub-branch, vice president
of Eastern Branch, president of Xiaguan Branch, vice president
of Nanjing Branch and president of Yangzhou Branch of
ICBC Since 1994. Mr. Xu had been the president of Nanjing
Branch of Bank of Shanghai, the chairman of Jiangning District
Shangyin Village Bank and the general manager of Cash-
Center of the of Bank of Shanghai Head office since 2015.
Mr. Xu is the legal representative of IDT Electronics (Shenzhen)
Limited ("IDT SZ”, a subsidiary of IDT International Limited
(stock code: 167.HK). PRC court has issued consumption
restriction order against Mr. Xu due to the labour dispute
between IDT SZ and its employees in amount of approximately
RMB1,800,000. Such dispute is not related to the Group.

Mr. Yong Ning Zhu, aged 53, graduated from Fudan
University of Shanghai with a master degree in international
finance, and is a senior economist. Mr. Zhu is chairman of
Strategy and Investment Committee, member of Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee. He has over 30
years of extensive experience in financial sector and industrial
business operations. Since 1990, he had worked at the
international business department of China Construction
Bank in Jiangsu province, served successively as president of
a sub-branch of China Investment Bank Jiangsu Branch, and
president of Hanzhong Road sub-branch of China Everbright
Bank Nanjing Branch, and held directorship in several big
corporations. Mr. Zhu currently is an executive director of the
Company, and is also the chairman of the board of directors
of Jiangsu NandaSoft Technology Company Limited (stock
code: HK08045) and an executive director of IDT International
Limited (stock code: HK00167).
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Mr. Ming-Tien Lin, aged 65, executive Director of the Group.
Mr. Lin is a member of Strategy and Investment Committee.
In 1989, he founded Jonsa Technologies Co. Ltd.* ( FF&RH%
&1 EBR A A]), primarily engaged in manufacturing satellite
antennae, and remains as the chairman to date. In 1993, he
founded and invested in Zhongwei Industry (Nanjing) Co.,
Ltd* (FREZE (AR)BMRAR]), primarily engaged in the
manufacture of wire telephones and telegraph equipment, and
remains as the chairman to date. In 1993, he co-founded the
Nanjing Taiwan Business Association* (FIR M A% & ) and
served as the vice-chairman until 2010. Since then, he retired
from the association but preserves his title as a founder. From
2000 onwards, Mr. Lin developed Nanjing Gingko Lake* (@R
#RAILEE) and invested in Nanjing Gingko Lake Agriculture
and Tourism Company* (R IRA 2 £ REBR AT,
of which he serves as the chairman to date.

Mr. I-Sheng Chan, aged 69, executive Director of the Group.
Mr. Chan is a member of Strategy and Investment Committee.
He has served as a director of Taiwan Jerry Social Welfare
Development Foundation* (& & #tkRt e ERES
2 ) since October 1995. He has held the position of the
managing director of Nanjing Christine Foodstuff Co., Ltd.*
(ARRAHKTRMARLDA), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, since October 2007. Since October
2011, he has served as the honorary chairman of the Taiwan
Union Construction Development Foundation. He served as
the president of CHIEFI Group from March 1988 to August
1999. From January 1993 to August 1999, he served as the
chairman of Taiwan CHIEFI Construction Engineering Co.,
Ltd* (B2 BERXITIERMNBIR AT . Besides, he served
as the chairman of Taiwan Union Construction Development
Foundation from February 1994 to October 2011.

*  For identification purposes only
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Dun-ching Hung, aged 75, non-executive Director of
the Group. Mr. Hung has over 30 years of experience in the
bakery and trade industries. Since 2008, Mr. Hung has served
as a director of Sino Century Universal Corporation, the former
controlling shareholder of the Company (On 19 October
2015, immediately following the completion of the then
restructuring, the shares of the Company held by Sino Century
Universal Corporation were distributed to its then registered
shareholders on a pro-rata basis, and Sino Century Universal
Corporation has ceased to be the controlling shareholder
but remains as a substantial shareholder of the Company (as
defined under the Listing Rules)). Since 1993, Mr. Hung has
served as the chairman of the board of directors of Shanghai
Guang Can Foodstuff Co., Ltd. Since 1987, Mr. Hung has
served as the chairman of the board of directors of Taiwan
Tong Can Trading Co., Ltd. Mr. Hung is familiar with the
management and operation of processing and trading of
raw-food materials enterprises.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Hang Sheng Ye, aged 69, independent non-executive
Director of the Group, member of Remuneration Committee
and Chairman of Nomination Committee, holder of PRC
Lawyer Qualification Certificate and a national first-grade
lawyer, graduated from East China University of Political
Science and Law with a bachelor’s degree in law in 1991.
He was awarded a number of honorary titles such as being
honored as one of “Shanghai’s First Top Ten Defense Lawyers
(BEEmaEEHEEFHERRE) ”, “Shanghai's Outstanding
Lawyer” and “National Outstanding Lawyer (FF 2 & [
B & 7£AD) “, “Advanced Individual of Shanghai’s Judicial
Administration System ( LM AETTIR R L#EREA) 7
and “Oriental Barrister of Shanghai (E/8THE =ZER AKX
f2R0) ". Mr. Ye started his career in the legal profession in
1985, and he served as deputy director of Shanghai No.3
Law Office* ( /8 M E =2MEFT) , member of the 10th
and 11th Shanghai Committee of China National Democratic
Construction Association, executive vice chairman of the
Legislative Affairs Subcommittee of Shanghai Committee of
China National Democratic Construction Association, chairman
of Lawyers’ Working Committee, member of the 11th and
12th Shanghai Jing’an District Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference, director and
supervisor of the Shanghai Bar Association, and member of the
Shanghai Evaluation Committee of Senior Professional Titles
for Lawyers and Notaries. He is currently the head of Shanghai

Guangting Law Firm* ( L/ EBEZEMEFAT) .

*  For identification purposes only
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Dr. Yong Jun Tang, aged 44, independent non-executive
Director of the Group, chairman of audit committee and
member of nomination committee. He graduated from
Nanjing University with a PhD degree in accounting in 2007
and is an associate professor at the Business School of Hohai
University. Dr. Tang’s research interests and teaching areas
include advanced accounting and finance and internal control.
With profound theoretical knowledge, he has made a series
of research achievements in the fields of accounting and
financial management. He has published more than 20 papers
in Accounting Research (& &T478), Science of Science and
Management of S.&T. (Rl 2B R B {FEE), Public
Finance Research (EBf B #%t) and other journals, including
8 CSSCI papers and 2 SSCI papers. In addition, he issued a
number of case reports which are included in the Case Bank
of the China Management Case-sharing Center (FF &1 2
Bl = OZEPIE) and the Case Bank of the China Case
Center for Professional Degrees Education ( F Bl 51 % B3 # &2
Z IR 0ZEFIE) , and headed and participated in a number
of research projects at national and provincial levels. In 2014,
Dr. Tang was a senior visiting scholar at Catholic University
of Leuven in Belgium. He also holds a Certificate of Chinese
Certified Public Accountant (CPA) and serves as a financial
adviser at each of CAS Nanjing Astronomical Instruments Co.,
Ltd.* (F R BER X E =S AR 2 7)) and Nanjing Xiangling
Rebar Connecting Technology Co., Ltd.* (5335 8 A i 5%
BRMBERRAT) .

Ms. Hong Xue, aged 56, independent non-executive Director
of the Group, chairman of remuneration committee, member
of audit committee and nomination committee. She obtained
an MBA degree from Nanjing University Business School in
2002. Ms. Xue has worked in the core departments and
leadership positions of the financial system for a long time and
has extensive experience in operation and management. She
was the president and party secretary of Zhenjiang Branch of
China Everbright Bank.

*  For identification purposes only
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Ms. Xiao Yan Xu, aged 43, independent non-executive
Director of the Group, member of audit committee,
remuneration committee and strategy and investment
committee. She graduated from Zhejiang University with a
major in business administration in 2001. Ms. Xu has more
than 20 years of experience in international luxury hotel
management. She had been a senior executive at hotel
management groups including InterContinental, Accor and
Jumeirah. She currently works as manager (deputy general
manager) of Jumeirah Nanjing Hotel, responsible for the daily
operation and management of the hotel.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Yuping Jiang, aged 51, was appointed as the Company’s
vice president of sales and management. She oversees the
Company's overall operations in Nanjing, including overall sales
management, corporate rules formulation and enforcement,
appointment of the senior management. Ms. Jiang has gained
16 years of experience in factory management, retail outlet
management and expansion. She joined the Group in 2002.
Ms. Jiang oversees the expansion of the Company’s Nanjing
retail network, from one retail outlet to the current 80 retail
outlets. Before joining the Group, Ms. Jiang served as the
manager and deputy general manager of Jiangsu Xinxi Hotel
from 1996 to 2002. Ms. Jiang has extensive experience in
finance and human resources management. In 2007, Ms. Jiang
was elected as a deputy to the People’s Congress of Baixia
District, Nanjing. Ms. Jiang received her Bachelor Degree in
food industry and science from Wuxi Institute of Light Industry
in 1994.

Ms. Liping Huang, aged 54, was appointed as the Company’s
vice president of sales and management. She is mainly
responsible for sales and management matters in Zhejiang,
Wuxi and Suzhou. She joined the Group in 2006. Ms. Huang
has approximately 17 years of experience in marketing
and procurement. Before joining the Group, she worked in
Shanghai Kangcheng Storage Co., Ltd. from 2001 to 2002
and in Shihu Storage (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. from 2004 to 2005.
Ms. Huang graduated from Fuzhou University in 1989.

*  For identification purposes only
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The Directors are pleased to present the Company's annual
report together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2021.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as
an exempted company with limited liability on 11 March
2008. On 23 February 2012 (the “Listing Date"”), the Shares
successfully commenced dealing on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) by initially
offering 250,000,000 Shares at the offer price of HK$1.60
per Share. The Company subsequently issued 10,188,000
additional Shares pursuant to the exercise of the over-allotment
option granted by the Company in connection with the initial
public offering on the Listing Date.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group's
principal activities during the year ended 31 December
2021. Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Group as at
31 December 2021 are set out in note 24 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the Group’s business and affairs during the
year is provided in the section of “Management Discussion
and Analysis” in this annual report. An analysis of the Group’s
performance during the year using financial key performance
indicators is provided in the section of “Management
Discussion and Analysis” as well as the section of “Financial
Summary” in this annual report. Besides, the financial risk
management objectives and policies of the Group can be
found in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.
No important event after the period affecting the Group
has occurred since the end of the financial year. In addition,
the composition of the Board and the summary of the work
of all our Board committees, discussions on the Group's
environmental policies and performance, relationships with
its key stakeholders and compliance with relevant laws and
regulations which have a significant impact on the Group are
all contained in the “Corporate Governance Report” section
in this annual report. Our key relationship with our Directors
and employees can be found under “Human Resources”
paragraph in this section and the section of “Directors and
Senior Management” in this annual report. The probable
future business development of the Company is discussed in
the section of “Management Discussion and Analysis” in this
annual report.
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RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

During the year ended 31 December 2021, we continued to
face risks and uncertainties in the bakery industry due to intense
competition from competitors and other businesses. For details,
please refer to the section of “Management, Discussion and
Analysis” in this annual report. We continued to adopt the
policy of closing down cost-ineffective stores recording frequent
losses, continual increases in expenses or at inferior locations.
The increase in labour costs and raw materials are also other
types of ongoing risks and uncertainties that our Group faces
in our operations. All these risks and uncertainties have led
to our continual loss and the implementation of our strategy
of closing down of loss-making stores. To cope with such
risks and uncertainties, we strive to utilise our resources more
efficiently and explore new opportunities. For details, please
refer to the section of “Management, Discussion and Analysis”
in this annual report. Moreover, food safety continues to be the
greatest industry risk of the bakery industry. The Group adheres
to its commitment to ensure food safety. In the coming year,
apart from the business plans mentioned in this annual report,
the Group will also adhere to its original commitment with
regard to environmental, social responsibilities and corporate
governance. Apart from our goal to make profits, we also wish
to contribute to the environment, welfare of society and social
justice.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's loss for the year ended 31 December 2021 and
its financial position as at 31 December 2021 are set out in the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for 2021.

DIVIDEND POLICY

As the Group recorded operating loss in recent years,
and considering the competition risk of the industry, the
management will follow the principle of retaining funds as
its dividend policy. Firstly, the Group with aim to improve
the future financial structure, replenish working capital and
develop industry chain. After the establishment of sound
financial system and the achievement of business development
opportunity, the management will determine the appropriate
amount in aggregation for dividends distribution and propose
the proportion of dividends distribution if idle capital exists,
and submit the dividend distribution plan to the Board. The
dividends will be distributed to all shareholders after the
approval in general meeting, if required.
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Date and pursuant to the exercise of the over-allotment
option on 16 March 2012 amounted to HK$356,800,000.
Such net proceeds are intended to be or have been applied
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the section headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in
the prospectus of the Company dated 10 February 2012 (the
"Prospectus”). A summary of the use of proceeds are set out
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the listing, after deduction of the underwriting fees and expenses
paid by the Company in connection therewith, were approximately
HK$415.8 million. The actual net proceeds received by the Company
were approximately HK$356.8 million. The Company intends to
adjust the difference of approximately HK$59 million to each
business strategies in the same proportion as the original funds

applied as shown in the Prospectus.
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As at 31 December 2021, the balance of unutilised net
proceeds amounted to approximately HK$5,500,000 (2020:
HK$5,500,000) and the unutilised net proceeds are temporarily
placed as short-term deposits with licensed institutions in Hong
Kong.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial
years is set out in the section of “Financial Summary” in this
annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 20 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BORROWINGS AND PLEDGED ASSETS

The Group retained a healthy financial position. As at
31 December 2021, the Group has obtained bank borrowings
amounting to RMB130,000,000 (2020: RMB100,000,000),
which carries at fixed interest rate ranging from 4.35% to
5.00% (2020: fixed interest rate of 5.00%) and are secured by
a charge over the Group's investment properties and property,
plant and equipment with aggregate net carrying amount
of approximately RMB13,478,000 (2020: RMB14,657,000)
and approximately RMB182,850,000 (2020: approximately
RMB120,838,000) respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s Share capital during
the year are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company'’s articles of association (the “Articles”) or the laws
of the Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company
to offer new Shares on a pro rata basis to the existing
Shareholders of the Company.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year ended 31 December 2021.
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RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group during
the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity of this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company's reserves available for distribution represent
the share premium, reserves and profit which in aggregate
amounted to approximately RMB227,596,000 as at
31 December 2021. Under the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law
3 of 1961, consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands,
the share premium of the Company is available for paying
distributions or dividends to Shareholders subject to the
provisions of the Company's memorandum and the Articles
and provided that immediately following the date on which
distribution or dividend is proposed to be paid, the Company
is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course
of business. In accordance with the Articles, dividends may be
declared and paid out of the profits of the Company, realised
or unrealised or from any reserve set aside from profits which
the Directors determine is no longer needed. With the sanction
of an ordinary resolution, dividends may also be declared and
paid out of the share premium account of the Company.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, total sales to
the five largest customers accounted for less than 30% of
the Group's total sales. Total purchases from the five largest
suppliers accounted for less than 30% of the Group's total
purchases.
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CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group made
no charitable and other donations.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2021 and
up to the date of this annual report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chun Bin Xu

Mr. Yong Ning Zhu

Mr. Ming Tien-Lin

Mr. I-Sheng Chan

Mr. Chien-Li Tseng (ceased to be a director on 24 January 2022)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Dun-ching Hung
Mr. Chi-Ming Chou (ceased to be a director on 24 January 2022)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Hang Sheng Ye
Dr. Yong Jun Tang
Ms. Hong Xue

Ms. Xiao Yan Xu

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of
the view that all the independent non-executive Directors meet
the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and are independent in accordance with the terms of the
guidelines.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND
MEMBERS OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of
the Group are set out in the section of “Directors and Senior
Management”) of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company and was appointed for a specific term, none of
which is more than three years.

All of the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years and in accordance with the articles of
association of the Company. There is no service contract with
the Group which is not determinable by the Group within one
year without payment of compensation (other than normal
statutory compensation) in respect of any Director proposed
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company.

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company
or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable within one
year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Group were entered into or in existence during the year and as
at 31 December 2021.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no contract of
significance to the business of the Group which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director
or an entity connected with a Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted during the year and as
at 31 December 2021.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

Save as disclosed herein, during the year ended 31 December
2021 and up to the date of this annual report, none of the
Directors or their respective associates had engaged in or had
any interest in any business which competes or may compete
with the businesses of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITIES

Pursuant to the Articles, every Director shall be indemnified
and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which such Director shall or may incur
or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or
omitted in or about the execution of his duty in his office.

None of the Directors shall be answerable for the acts, receipts,
neglects or defaults of the other or for joining in any receipts
for the sake of conformity, or for any bankers or other persons
with whom any moneys or effects belonging to the Company
shall or may be lodged or deposited for safe custody, or for
insufficiency or deficiency of any security upon which any
moneys of or belonging to the Company shall be placed out
on or invested, or for any other loss, misfortune or damage
which may happen in the execution of his office, or in relation
thereto; provided that this indemnity shall not extend to any
matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach
to such Director.

Each Shareholder agrees to waive any claim or right of action
he might have, whether individually or by or in the right of
the Company, against any Director on account of any action
taken by such Director, or the failure of such Director to take
any action in the performance of his duties with or for the
Company; provided that such waiver shall not extend to any
matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach
to such Director.
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Cayman Islands law does not limit the extent to which the
Articles may provide for indemnification of officers and
directors, except to the extent any such provision may be held
by the court to be contrary to public policy (e.g. for purporting
to provide indemnification against the consequences of
committing a crime).

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’
liability insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the
Group.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief on taxation available
to the Shareholders by reason of their holdings of the Shares. If
the shareholders are unsure about the taxation implications of
purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in, or exercising of
any rights in relation to the Shares, they are advised to consult
their professional advisers.

CHANGE IN DIRECTOR'’S INFORMATION

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Company is not
aware of any information which is required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Board has the general power of determining the
Directors’ remuneration, subject to authorisation of the
Shareholders at the annual general meeting each year. The
remuneration of the executive Directors is subject to review
by the Remuneration Committee, and their remuneration is
determined with reference to the Directors’ qualifications,
experience, duties, responsibilities and performance and
results of the Group. As for the independent non-executive
Directors, remuneration is determined by the Board, upon
recommendation from the Remuneration Committee, and
which is determined with reference to, among others, the
Directors’ qualifications, experience, duties and responsibilities.
Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest
paid individuals are set out in note 14 and note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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No Director has waived or has agreed to waive any emolument
during the year ended 31 December 2021.

The Group had a total of 2,018 employees as at 31 December
2021, mainly consisting of administrative, research and
development, and sales staff. Total annual payroll amounted
to approximately RMB163.5 million. In addition to fixed
wages, our employees may be granted other allowances and a
year-end bonus subject to performance appraisal. Currently, the
Group carries out the store-closure plans and staff downsizing,
which results in job rotation, multi-skills training and legal
severance. Training and control of labour costs remain the key
focuses of our human resources work.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2021, the interests or short positions of
the Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the
Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO"))
which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests or short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO), or which were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO, or which
were required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

LR N
ERTREAESL
Percentage of the

ZERBE A

ROKESFAED REtEEER
Mr. Yong Ning Zhu @ Interest in a controlled corporation
HBOERE? A E R

Mr. Dun-Ching Hung @
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Interest in a controlled corporation

Number of Company'’s issued

ordinary Shares  Position share capital

119,790,227 & 11.86%
Long

68,571,303 if & 6.79%
Long
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Notes:

(1) China Huaneng Foundation Construction Investment Limited is
wholly owned by Mr. Yong Ning Zhu. Pursuant to Part XV of the
SFO, Yong Ning Zhu is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by
China Huaneng Foundation Construction Investment Limited.

(2) These Shares are held by Mr. Dun-Ching Hung, who is a
non-executive Director, through Sparkling Light Corporation, which is

wholly-owned by Mr. Dun-Ching Hung.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or the chief
executive of the Company had, as at 31 December 2021, any
interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which would have to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests or short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO), or which were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO, or which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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Name of Shareholders

ZHERIRRZBR (ARAEZTHHZEFITHRABRI) M

Bt/ BEME

Capacity/nature of Interest

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SHAREHOLDERS

So far as is known to any Director or chief executive of the
Company, as at 31 December 2021, Shareholders (other than
Directors or the chief executive of the Company) who had
interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long Positions of Substantial Shareholders in the Shares

Sino Century Universal Corporation”
Goyen Investments Ltd.®"

BHRREED

Mr. Lo Tien-An®

TERZ L0

Ms. Jo-Hsien Chiang®

Add Fortune Ventures Limited @

Lucky Creation Group Limited?

FRELLP

Ms. Hao Wang @

HRIERERERRERRARC

China Huaneng Foundation
Construction Investment Limited

RKELED

Mr. Yong Ning Zhu®

RERHR(RI)ERAE®

Oriental Petroleum (Yangtze) Limited®

EREEBRLAF

Matheson Enterprises Limited®

B — &k

Mr. Yifeng Zhou®

R AL

Mr. Mingxiang Wang®

Christine Princess Co. (PTC) Ltd.®

Sparkling Light Corporation®

BB K EO
Mr. Dun-Ching Hung®
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EnlEA

Beneficial owner

XA RS

Interest in a controlled corporation
REtER g

Interest in a controlled corporation
feiB s

Interest of spouse

EniBA

Beneficial owner

REtERER

Interest in a controlled corporation
R AR R

Interest in a controlled corporation
EniAA

Beneficial owner

R ER

Interest in a controlled corporation
EnlBA

Beneficial Owner
ZRE R ER

Interest in a controlled corporation
R ER

Interest in a controlled corporation
Xt AR RS

Interest in a controlled corporation
EEA

Trustee

EnEA

Beneficial owner

Xt AR RS

Interest in a controlled corporation

HART

EBR¥EA B BRARAED L

Percentage of

Number of the Company's

ordinary shares Position issued shares

184,212,244 TE 18.24%
Long

184,212,244 TeE 18.24%
Long

184,212,244 [59) 18.24%
Long

184,212,244 HE 18.24%
Long

121,500,000 TE 12.03%
Long

121,500,000 [59) 12.03%
Long

121,500,000 TE 12.03%
Long

119,790,227 TeE 11.86%
Long

119,790,227 39e) 11.86%
Long

100,780,798 TE 9.98%
Long

100,780,798 e 9.98%
Long

100,780,798 39e) 9.98%
Long

100,780,798 TE 9.98%
Long

75,000,000  #HE 7.42%
Long

68,571,303 & 6.79%
Long

68,571,303 TE 6.79%
Long
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$54 + Sparkling Light Corporation B3t EUE £ 4 2 B A ©
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Notes:

(1) Sino Century Universal Corporation is wholly owned by Mr. Tien-
An Lo through Goyen Investments Ltd. Mr. Tien-An Lo is deemed
to be interested in all the Shares held by Sino Century Universal
Corporation pursuant to the SFO. Ms. Jo-Hsien Chiang is Mr. Lo’s
spouse. Ms. Chiang was deemed to be interested in the Shares in
which Mr. Tien-An Lo was interested within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO.

(2) Add Fortune Ventures Limited is wholly owned by Ms. Hao Wang
through Lucky Creation Group Limited. Hao Wang is deemed to be
interested in all the Shares held by Add Fortune Ventures Limited
pursuant to the SFO.

(3) China Huaneng Foundation Construction Investment Limited is
wholly-owned by Mr. Yong Ning Zhu. Pursuant to Part XV of the
SFO, Mr. Yong Ning Zhu is deemed to be interested in the Shares
held by China Huaneng Foundation Construction Investment Limited.

(4) Oriental Petroleum (Yangtze) Limited is wholly owned by Matheson
Enterprises Limited. Matheson Enterprises Limited is owned by Yifeng
Zhou as to 35% and Mingxiang Wang as to 65%. Yifeng Zhou and
Mingxiang Wang are deemed to be interested in all the Shares held
by Oriental Petroleum (Yangtze) Limited pursuant to the SFO.

(5) Christine Princess Co. (PTC) Ltd. is a trust company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands, which holds its equity interest in the

Company on trust for the benefit of management employees.

6) These Shares are held by Mr. Dun-Ching Hung, who is a non-
executive Director, through Sparkling Light Corporation, which is
wholly-owned by Mr. Dun-Ching Hung.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, the
Company had not been notified by any persons (other than
Directors or the chief executive of the Company) who had
interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares
of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.
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RZE——F+ZA=++tH8 ' —&REChristine Princess
Co., (PTC) Ltd. M BN TS (R EBMEE]) &
BRRES ([BRESE]) (B ([st8)) srEl &k
Christine Princess i FriF AR B2 R BRHEBRETFE &
BRBHE - RRRTERABBITHR T AEHRAQ A
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PAT B

AR AR

Name of grantee

BRRKROHE

Shares awarded

PRE-IPO SHARE AWARD AND PRE-IPO
SHARE OPTIONS

On 27 December 2011, Christine Princess Co., (PTC) Ltd.,
being a Shareholder, adopted the share award scheme (the
“Share Award Scheme”) and the share option scheme
(the “Share Option Scheme”) (collectively named as the
“Schemes”). The Schemes involve the transfer of existing
Shares held by Christine Princess in the Company to eligible
participants under the Schemes. No new Shares will be issued
by the Company for the purposes of the Schemes, nor will
there be any grant of options over new securities of the
Company and accordingly, the Schemes do not fall within
the ambit of, and are not subject to, the regulations under
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. The Directors consider the
grant of any share awards and the share options has an impact
on the financial statements since the date of grant and the
subsequent financial periods. Such impact is disclosed in note
38 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report. A summary of the terms of the Schemes has been
set out in Appendix VI to the prospectus of the Company
dated 10 February 2012 under the section headed “D. OTHER
INFORMATION". The Shares awarded under the Scheme are
subject to a lock-up period of three years commencing from
the date of award, and the Share Award Scheme was expired
in year 2015.

As of 31 December 2021, the following Shares had been
awarded under the Share Award Scheme:

RERREMSREGNET DL
Approximate percentage of
shareholding held upon the award

Number of

KA

Xiuping Zhu @

RUE?

Qiuyi Yu @

Yuping Jiang

M5

(1) KFEFLFTERZT-—=ZF-A=-+N\AEK ¥REBEHEIAR
REEERITE

(2 AMEBLXIERZZT-AFHEA T+ BB

—T=—F4F3 Annual Report 2021

4,125,000 0.41

1,125,000 0.11

1,125,000 0.11
Notes:

(1 Ms. Xiuping Zhu retired on 28 February 2013 and ceased to be the
chief executive officer of the Company on the same date.

(2) Ms. Qiuyi Yu resigned on 16 April 2015.
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As of 31 December 2021, the Share Option Scheme had
lapsed.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Save as otherwise disclosed in this annual report, at no time
during the year ended 31 December 2021 were rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any Director or their
respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or were
any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company and
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors, or their respective spouse or children under 18 years
of age, to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of related party transactions of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note 44 to the
consolidated financial statements contained herein.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group entered
into certain related party transactions, each of which was fully
exempt continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. For details, please refer to note 44 to the
consolidated financial statements herein.

The related party transactions as disclosed in note 44(b)
to the consolidated financial statements are in respect of
the remuneration of Directors of the Company. The related
party transactions in respect of the remuneration of key
management personnel (other than Directors) of the Company
did not fall under the definition of connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

RRIHSTEMIZERARAT Christine International Holdings Limited

39



40

EEEHS
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

AEBYWETIEMAEEZMARET ETRFEI4ATIR
TERERiE FEEHLRMERBERENEERS

EER

EERARBE_T_—F+_A=1+—"RHLFER XQA
EREALETRAMBEAMEZERERTA (EXERT
R 2 RAIKREETREERTRIFTE 2B AT R 1
VAT B B R BiERR 51 -

BT AT RRICEC2.14%

RECEERTAMNTAGXEC21E TFEREFAT
E(BERVTENACEERED  TEH — ARKREI-
B-ZE_ZEFRAA-tT - RABEIFE "B -—EAREWEL
B

ARACEREFERNFENEE XHREAARNER
(BREFTERBERNB UM RAERERTHE) AES
EREFZERETER)RNEREENE D 2 BERE-
MEEEARRAERTIALRREERE REREFS
SR LIRHCFREEZEBRLENIEN B R
FZER W EFEZREHNER/AZHRRBB-E

FYEGE WERBANNRERRBCNEBRFEL EERE
ﬂ@ﬁ’\]@ﬁj‘&%Fjﬁ)&afﬁﬁ;%;%f%uw%&"

—T=—F4F3 Annual Report 2021

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group did not enter into any connected transactions which
are not otherwise fully exempt from shareholders’ approval,
annual review and all disclosure requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Directors consider that the Company has applied the
principles of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)
set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules and complied
with the applicable code provisions during the year ended
31 December 2021 as set out in the CG Code, except for the
following deviations:

Code Provision C.2.1 of the CG Code

Pursuant to code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the
responsibility between the chairman and the chief executive
officer ("CEQ") should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. The role of the chairman
has been assumed by Mr. Chun Bin Xu since 22 May 2020.

The Company has considered the issue of balance of power
of authority on the Board and believes the structure of the
Company, including strong independent elements in the Board,
delegation of authorities to the management, supervision by
the Board and Board committees, is sufficient to address the
potential issue on power concentration. All Directors, who
bring different experience and expertise to the Company, are
properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings and that
adequate, complete and reliable information is received by the
Directors. Furthermore, decisions of the Board are made by
way of majority votes. The Board believes that this structure
is conducive to a more precise and prompt response to the
fast changing business environment and a more efficient
management and implementation of business process.
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The Board understands that the roles of chairman and CEO
shall be independent from each other to ensure balanced
distribution of power and authorization, without facing the
situation that power is concentrated in one person. Therefore,
the Group would proactively identify appropriate talent with
rich experience in dealing with relevant businesses of the
Group, and appoint him as soon as practicable to manage the
daily operation of the Group.

Audit Committee and Review of Financial Statements

The audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) has adopted
written terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of
the Listing Rules and paragraph D.3 of the CG Code. The
primary duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the
Board in providing an independent view of the effectiveness
of the financial reporting process, internal control and risk
management system, to oversee the audit process and to
perform other duties and responsibilities as assigned by the
Board.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
discussed the auditing, internal controls and financial reporting
matters, including review of the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2021. The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2021 have been audited by the Company’s
external auditors, Mazars CPA Limited. For further details on
the responsibilities and duties of the Audit Committee, please
refer to the section of “Corporate Governance Report” in this
annual report.

MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS' SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the required standard for
securities transactions by Directors. Specific enquiries have
been made to all the Directors, including the existing Directors
and the former Directors who had been Directors during the
year ended 31 December 2021, and all the Directors, including
the existing Directors and the former Directors who had been
Directors during the year ended 31 December 2021, have
confirmed that they have complied with the required standards
set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended
31 December 2021.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company'’s total issued share capital was held by the public as
at the date of this annual report.

AUDITOR

Mazars CPA Limited was appointed as auditors of the
Company with effect from 21 October 2020 to fill vacancy
and was re-elected in the annual general meeting held on
18 June 2021, and will be subject to re-appointment in the
forthcoming annual general meeting in 2022.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE OBLIGATIONS
PURSUANT TO THE LISTING RULES

The Company does not have any other disclosure obligations
under Rules 13.20, 13.21 and 13.22 of the Listing Rules.

On behalf of the Board
Chun Bin Xu
Chairman

Shanghai, the PRC, 25 April 2022
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With an aim of creating an environment for the solid
sustainable growth of the Company and to enhance
Shareholders’ confidence and protect Shareholders’ interests,
the Board is committed to establishing an internally high
efficiency of corporate governance practices and procedures in
accordance with the Listing Rules and relevant applicable laws
and regulations.

The Company and the Board have adopted the code provisions
of the CG Code. During the year ended 31 December 2021,
save as disclosed in the section headed “Report of the
Directors” in this annual report, the Board believes that the
Company has fully complied with the CG Code.

MODEL CODE ON SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code. Having made
specific enquiries to all the Directors, all the Directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the required standards
set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended
31 December 2021.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Composition of the Board

During the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date
of publication of this annual report, the Board comprises the
following members:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chun Bin Xu

Mr. Yong Ning Zhu

Mr. Ming Tien-Lin

Mr. I-Sheng Chan

Mr. Chien-Li Tseng (ceased to be a director on 24 January 2022)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Dun-ching Hung
Mr. Chi-Ming Chou (ceased to be a director on 24 January 2022)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Hang Sheng Ye
Dr. Yong Jun Tang
Ms. Hong Xue

Ms. Xiao Yan Xu

The biographical details of the Directors and senior
management as at the publication of this annual report are
set out in the section of “Directors and Senior Management”
of this annual report. The composition of the Board is well
balanced which ensures that the unique expertise and
experience of each Director are pooled together to meet the
business needs of the Group and for the purposes of making
independent well-balanced judgments. Each Director has the
relevant professional and extensive corporate and strategic
planning experience, and thus will contribute well to the
business success of the Group.
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Independent non-executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors serve the important
function of ensuring and monitoring the basis for an effective
corporate governance framework. Their participations provide
adequate checks and balances to safeguard the interests of
the Group and its Shareholders, including the review of the
continuing connected transactions described above in this
annual report. One of the independent non-executive Directors
has the professional qualification of accounting. The Board
confirms that the Company has received from each of the
independent non-executive Directors an annual confirmation
letter of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. On this basis, the Company considers all such Directors
to be independent.

Term of non-executive Directors

Each of the non-executive Directors (including independent
non-executive Directors) has entered into service agreements
with the Company for a specific term of three years and are
required to offer themselves for re-election at the first annual
general meeting following their appointment. Pursuant to the
Articles, one-third of the Directors are subject to retirement
by rotation at the annual general meeting at least once every
three years. Retiring Directors are eligible for re-election at the
annual general meeting at which he or she retires.

Functions of the Board

The Board supervises the management of the business
and affairs of the Company. The primary duty of the Board
is to ensure the ongoing operation of the Company and
to ensure that it is managed in the best interests of the
Shareholders as a whole while taking into account the interests
of other stakeholders. The Board delegates the authority
and responsibility of daily operations, business strategies
and day-to-day management to the CEO and the senior
management.

Delegation by the Board

To assist the Board in execution of its duties and facilitate
effective management, certain functions of the Board
have been delegated by the Board to the audit committee,
remuneration committee, nomination committee, strategy and
investment committee, corporate governance committee and
the senior management.
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Management Function

The division of responsibility between the Board and
management is determined by the memorandum and Articles
of the Company. The authority of making daily decisions has
been delegated by the Board to the management.

Chairman and CEO

Code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles
of chairman and CEO should be served by different individuals
to achieve a balance of authority and power.

Pursuant to code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the
responsibility between the chairman and the chief executive
officer should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual. Following the resignation of Mr. Yu Lin
as the CEO on 29 July 2019, the Company did not have CEO
until 31 December 2021 as no suitable candidate has been
identified while the Board considered that the work of the CEO
could be shared among the members of the Board.

However, the Board understands that the independence of
the roles of chairman and CEO from each other could help
ensure balanced distribution of power and authorization,
without facing the situation that power is concentrated in one
person. Therefore, the Company would continue to identify
appropriate talent with rich experience in dealing with relevant
businesses of the Company, and appoint him as soon as
practicable to manage the daily operation of the Group.

The Company has considered the issue of balance of power
of authority on the Board and believes the structure of the
Company, including strong independent elements in the Board,
delegation of authorities to the management, supervision by
the Board and Board committees, is sufficient to address the
potential issue on power concentration. All Directors, who
bring different experience and expertise to the Company, are
properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings and that
adequate, complete and reliable information is received by the
Directors. Furthermore, decisions of the Board are made by
way of majority votes. The Board believes that this structure
is conducive to a more precise and prompt response to the
fast changing business environment and a more efficient
management and implementation of business process.
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Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

Each of the Directors, the executive Directors, non-executive
Directors and independent non-executive Directors has entered
into a service contract with the Company for a specific term
of three years and is subject to retirement by rotation at an
annual general meeting at least once every three years. The
retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election under the
Articles. Under the Articles, any Director appointed by the
Board, either to fill a casual vacancy in the Board or as an
addition to the existing Board, shall hold office only until the
next annual general meeting of the Company and shall be
eligible for re-election.

Shareholders may, at any general meeting convened and held
in accordance with the Company’s Articles, remove a Director
at any time before the expiration of his/her period of office
notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Company’s
Articles or in any agreement between the Company and such
Director.

Continuous development of Directors and senior
management of the Company

During the year, each of the Directors has complied with code
provision C.1.4 of the CG Code. The Company has arranged
the company secretary to provide reading materials for all the
Directors in 2021 on, among others, corporate governance and
changes to laws and regulations for their reference and study.
Directors are requested to provide their training records to the
Legal Department.

Directors’ and Senior Officers’ Liability Insurance and
Indemnity

The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance
to indemnify the Directors and senior officers for their
liabilities arising out of corporate activities. For the year ended
31 December 2021, no claim has been made against the
Directors and senior officers.

Board Meetings and Board Practices

The Board is scheduled to meet regularly and four times in one
year. A notice of meeting shall be given to all Directors at least
14 days prior to the date of the meeting to enable all Directors
to attend the meetings. The agenda of the meeting shall be
determined after consulting each Director so that each Director
is given the opportunity to include his/her proposals into the
agenda.
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The attendance of each Director at all the Board meetings and

ExgedRRAGNBFELENT

general meetings during the year ended 31 December 2021 is

as follows:
HE BT HE BT
ETEERRE BEXEXE
Number of Number of
Board meetings general meetings
attended/held attended/held
BITES Executive Directors
TREEW SR Mr. Chun Bin Xu 4/4 1/1
RAKEBSLA Mr. Yong Ning Zhu 4/4 11
MERMA T E Mr. Ming Tien-Lin 4/4 11
EmAfE Mr. I-Sheng Chan 4/4 1”1
wEMEG (F-FE-—F Mr. Chien-Li Tseng (ceased to be a director on 4/4 171
— A=A ETHELESE) 24 January 2022)
FEHITES Non-executive Directors
HBUE L E Mr. Dun-ching Hung 4/4 11
ERRAEL (F-FE-—F Mr. Chi-Ming Chou (ceased to be a director 4/4 171
— A=+ AETBEFESE) on 24 January 2022)
BIEBTES Independent non-executive Directors
BEmAEXE Mr. Hang Sheng Ye 4/4 11
EEEEL Dr. Yong Jun Tang 4/4 11
SR Ms. Hong Xue 4/4 11
TR+ Ms. Xiao Yan Xu 4/4 171
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Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held
a meeting with the independent non-executive Directors
without the presence of other Directors during the year ended
31 December 2021.

The Directors who had not attended the relevant general
meeting(s) have followed-up with the other Directors to
understand and discuss the subject matters.

Audit Committee

The Company established the audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) on 27 December 2011 with written terms of
reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules
and paragraph D.3 of the CG Code. The primary duties of
the Audit Committee are to assist the Board in providing an
independent view of the effectiveness of the financial reporting
process, internal control and risk management system, to
oversee the audit process and to perform other duties and
responsibilities as assigned by the Board.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group and discussed auditing,
internal control and financial reporting matters, including
the review of the interim consolidated financial statements
for the six months ended 30 June 2021 and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2021 and considered that the Company
had complied with all relevant accounting standards and
requirements and made adequate disclosures.

During the year, the Audit Committee has held two meetings.
The attendance of each member at the Audit Committee
meetings is set out in the following table:

HEBITH
EREES
=RV
Number of Audit
Committee
meetings
attended/held

FEBEERL
(SR g
£ (hedum

Dr. Yong Jun Tang 2/2
Ms. Hong Xue 2/2
Ms. Xiao Yan Xu 2/2
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During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Audit
Committee had performed the following duties:

(1) reviewed with the management of the Company the
unaudited consolidated financial statements, the interim
results announcement and the interim report for the six
months ended 30 June 2021 and the related accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group with
recommendations to the Board for approval;

(2)  reviewed the nature and scope of the audit for the year
ended 31 December 2021, the reporting obligations
and the work plan of the independent auditor of the
Company;

(3) reviewed and discussed the financial reporting system,
risk management and internal control systems of the
Group with the management of the Company to ensure
that the management of the Company has performed
its duty to have effective systems. The review covered
all material controls, including financial, operational
and compliance controls, and the discussion with the
management of the Company regarding adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting and
financial reporting function etc.; and

(4)  reviewed the compliance with accounting standards,
Listing Rules, legal and statutory requirements in relation
to financial reporting.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established the remuneration committee (the
“"Remuneration Committee”) in compliance with Rule
3.25 of the Listing Rules on 27 December 2011 and adopted
written terms of reference pursuant to paragraph E.1 of
the CG Code. The Remuneration Committee has adopted
the second model described in paragraph E.1.2(c) under
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules (i.e. make recommendation
to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual
executive Director and senior management member). The
primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include but
without limitation: (i) making recommendations to the Board
on the policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors
and senior management and on the establishment of a
formal and transparent procedure for developing policies
on such remuneration; (ii) determining the terms of the
specific remuneration package of the Directors and senior
management; (iii) reviewing and approving performance-based
remuneration by reference to corporate goals resolved by the
Directors from time to time; and (iv) evaluating and making
recommendations on employee benefit arrangements.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee has held one
meeting and performed the following main tasks:

(1)  making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of non-executive Directors;

(2)  reviewing the emoluments of the executive Directors;
and

(3) reviewing the remuneration policy and structure
(including any performance-based remuneration) for all
Directors and senior management.
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ERERFTHNEZESSRAMNENEEBRAOT The attendance of each member at the Remuneration
Committee meetings is set out in the following table:
HE BTN
FMEES
BERH
Number of
Remuneration
Committee
meetings
attended/held
BTt Ms. Hong Xue 11
RoKBEIR A Mr. Yong Ning Zhu 11
IREEW ST Mr. Chun Bin Xu 1/1
EMAELE Mr. Hang Sheng Ye 11
iRl Ms. Xiao Yan Xu 171
EREEE 2 H M Remuneration of Senior Management

BE-_Z-_—F+-_A=1+—HULFE SREEEXEZ The remuneration of the members of the senior management

=

e E R T for the year ended 31 December 2021 is set out below:
AE
Number of
N E Remuneration bands individuals
7851 000,000 7T R IAT HK$1,000,000 and under 2
751,000,001 JTE B #1,500,000 JT HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 -
7 #1,500,001 JT &8 #£2,000,000 JT HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 -
7 #52,000,001 JT & 4 #£2,500,000 JT HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 -

FHEEMe R AU ESTMNEEZESHBEENEE Y Further particulars regarding directors’ remuneration and the
ERR 14 M FE1S © five highest paid employees are set out in note 14 and note 15
to the consolidated financial statements.
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Nomination Committee

The Company established a nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) on 27 December 2011 with
written terms of reference in compliance with paragraph
B.3 of the CG Code. The primary duties of the Nomination
Committee are to review the Board composition and to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
removal of Directors of the Company.

During the year, the Nomination Committee has held one
meeting and performed the following work:

(1) reviewing the structure, size, composition and diversity
(including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, or professional experience)
of the Board and achievement of objectives pursuant
to the board diversity policy and effectiveness of the
board diversity policy and the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors; and

(2)  considering the qualifications of the retiring Directors
standing for re-election at the annual general meeting.

ERERREEZESSAMERNLFEBRAOT The attendance of each member at the Nomination Committee
meetings is set out in the following table:

HEBITH
REZES
BB
Number of
Nomination
Committee
meetings
attended/held
EMAELE Mr. Hang Sheng Ye 11
RoKERA Mr. Yong Ning Zhu 11
REW R Mr. Chun Bin Xu 1/1
EFEBEEELT Dr. Yong Jun Tang 11
Bt Ms. Hong Xue 11
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Board Diversity Policy

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having
a diversity of Board members. It endeavours to ensure that
the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s
business. All Board appointments will continue to be made
on a merit basis with due regard for the benefits of diversity
of the Board members. Selection of candidates will be based
on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited
to gender, age, race, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length
of service. The ultimate decision will be made upon the merits
and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.

Measurable Objectives of Board Diversity Policy

In reviewing the composition of the Board, the Nomination
Committee would take into account all measurable
objectives for achieving diversity on the Board set out in the
board diversity policy, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, professional
qualifications, skills, knowledge and industry and regional
experience. The Nomination Committee would discuss and
agree on measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the
Board, where necessary, and recommend them to the Board
for adoption.

Nomination Policy

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of
a Board with a balance of skills, experience and diversity
of perspectives. Given the importance of the Nomination
Committee’s role in ensuring the balance within the Board
and to give greater focus and transparency in relation to
the election of Directors, the Company has established the
Nomination Policy. This policy aims to set out the approach to
guide the Nomination Committee in relation to the selection,
appointment and re-appointment of the Directors, and to
ensure the Board has a balance of skills experience, knowledge
and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements
of the Company’s business.
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Measurable Objectives of Nomination Policy

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for
directorships, the Nomination Committee would consider the
candidate’s character, qualifications, experience, independence
and other relevant criteria necessary to complement the
corporate strategy and achieve Board diversity before making
recommendation to the Board.

Before appointments are made by the Board, the Nomination
Committee will evaluate the skills, knowledge and experience
on the Board, and, in the light of this evaluation prepare
a description of the role and capabilities required for a
particular appointment. In identifying suitable candidates,
the Nomination Committee will (where applicable and
appropriate):

(1) use public advertisement or the services of external
consultants to facilitate the search;

(2)  consider candidates from a wide range of backgrounds;
and

(3)  consider candidates on merit and against objective
criteria, taking into account the amount of time required
to be devoted to the position.

Based on the Nomination Committee’s review for the year
ended 31 December 2021, the Nomination Committee
considers that the above measurable objectives of the board
diversity policy and nomination policy have been satisfactorily
implemented and that there is sufficient diversity in the
Board for the Company’s corporate governance and business
development needs. Details on the Directors are set out in the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this
annual report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

The Company established a corporate governance committee
(the “Corporate Governance Committee”) on 27 December
2011 with written terms of reference in compliance with
paragraph A.2.1 of the CG Code. The primary duty of the
Corporate Governance Committee is to implement the
Company'’s internal control rules and advise and provide
guidance on matters relating to corporate governance. The
Corporate Governance Committee holds meetings monthly
and members of the Committee are required to report to
the Company Secretary, who reports to the Board during the
quarterly Board meetings. As at the date of this report, the
Corporate Governance Committee consists of Ms. Yan Yang,
the manager of the purchase department of the Company,
and Ms. Chuanhong Bian, the director of the group finance
department of the Company. Ms. Yang is the chairlady of the
Corporate Governance Committee. The Corporate Governance
Committee does not comprise any independent non-executive
Director, non-executive Director or executive Director.

STRATEGY AND INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

The Board has established a Strategy and Investment
Committee (the “Strategy and Investment Committee”)
on 22 March 2013 with written terms of reference. The
primary duties of the Strategy and Investment Committee
include, without limitation: (i) reporting to the Board on its
work, significant decisions, findings and recommendation
in connection with the potential investment or strategic
investment reviewed, analysed or evaluated; (ii) reminding
the Board of the disclosure requirements under the Listing
Rules in connection with any potential strategic investment
reviewed, analysed or evaluated; (iii) getting informed of the
backgrounds of the investments; (iv) ensuring the investments
are in compliance with local policies and regulations; (v)
executing its powers strictly within the authorities granted
by the Board through reviewing, analysing, evaluating and
approving investment opportunities; and (vi) timely reporting
to the Board if necessary.

As at the date of this report, the Strategy and Investment
Committee consists of five members, namely Mr. Chun Bin Xu,
Mr. Yong Ning Zhu, Mr. Ming-Tien Lin, Mr. I-Sheng Chan and
Ms. Xiao Yan Xu. Mr. Yong Ning Zhu is the chairman of the
Strategy and Investment Committee.

During the year, the Group had no material investments.
Accordingly, the Strategy and Investment Committee has not
held any meeting during the year.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group in accordance with the Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA) and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The Directors have acknowledged their responsibility for
preparing the financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2021. The statement of the Company’s
auditor as to its responsibility for the financial statements is set
out in the Independent Auditor’s Report of this annual report.

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to the “Going concern” section in note 2 to
the consolidated financial statements concerning the adoption
of the going concern basis on which the consolidated financial
statements have been prepared. The Group reported a loss
attributable to the owners of the Company of approximately
RMB170.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2021
and as at 31 December 2021, the Group had net current
liabilities and net liabilities of approximately RMB542.6 million
and approximately RMB206.0 million, respectively. These
conditions, along with other matters as set forth in note 2 to
the consolidated financial statements, indicate that a material
uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. The directors of
the Company, having considered the measures being taken by
the Group, are of the opinion that the Group would be able
to continue as a going concern. The Auditor’s opinion is not
modified in respect of this matter.

In view of above, the directors of the Company have given
careful consideration to the future liquidity and performance
of the Group and its available sources of financing in assessing
whether the Group will have sufficient financial resources
to continue as a going concern. The plans and measures
undertaken to mitigate the liquidity pressure and to improve
the financial position of the Group are summarised in note 2
to the consolidated financial statements.
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Risk Management and Internal Control

Objectives and Goals

The Board provides reasonable assurance for the effective
operation of the Group’s risk management and internal
control system. The system aims to ensure the operation
and management of the Company complies with laws and
regulations and ensure the security of the Company’s asserts
and the truthfulness and completeness of the Company's
financial reports and relevant information.

Monitoring framework

Board of Directors

Supervising the establishment of internal control and its
sound and effective implementation;

- Clear enterprise development strategy and important
decision-making, and establishing enterprise’s acceptable
risk tolerance level; and

- Clarifying the responsibilities and rights of various special
committees and management, and providing support for
the Board’s decision-making.

Audit Committee

- Supervising the formulation of internal audit system
of the Company and the implementation of work on
internal control evaluation;

- Reviewing the Company’s financial information and its
disclosure; and

- Fully grasping the scope of work of internal and external
auditors in the inspection of internal control and if
necessary, communicating with external auditor about
significant issues.
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Management

- Properly designing, implementing and supervising risk
management and monitoring systems and ensuring that
they are effectively implemented;

- Responding promptly to and following up the findings
of internal or external auditors’ investigations on internal
control matters; and

- Assuring the Board of effectiveness of risk management
and monitoring system.

Internal Audit Department

- Supervising and inspecting the effectiveness of internal
control; and

- Reporting in accordance with the internal audit work
procedures of enterprise internal control deficiencies
found in supervision and inspection.

Monitoring Methods

Management has adopted a variety of methods to monitor
internal control environment:

(1)  Methods: The management actively communicates
with relevant staff, reviews deficiencies of the design
of internal control manual and related documents
and makes improvements through effective measures.
Reporting the scope of inspection of risk management
and internal control and results to Audit Committee for
assessment every year.
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(2) Internal control manual and operational guidelines:
Developing internal control manuals and related
systems to ensure the safety of assets in order to avoid
unauthorised use or disposal, ensuring compliance with
legal requirements, maintaining appropriate accounting
records to provide reliable financial information for
internal use or external disclosure.

(3) Information system and technology: The Company's
information system covers business level, financial level
and management level. The Company sets up stringent
rights of operation for its staff to avoid non-separation
of incompatible duties. The system rights of all staff have
been authorised.

(4)  Reporting and differences analysis: Executing financial
analysis and budget execution analysis on subsidiaries
and developing a timely understanding of operation
situation of each Company.

Risk Management

Risk management processes include: risk identification, risk
assessment, risk processing and risk monitoring and review.
The management of the Company is responsible for the
design, implementation and inspection of risk management
and internal control systems with the assistance of the Audit
Committee and the internal audit department and submit the
relevant periodic reports to the Board or the Audit Committee.

(1) Risk identification: The Board and management identify
internal and external risk factors that affect realization of
the Company's objectives.

(2)  Risk assessment: The Board and management determine
the method of managing risks based on the likelihood
and impact of risk factors.

(3)  Risk processing: The Board and management select risk
management strategies based on the Company's risk
tolerance and risk preference.

RRI##STEIBRIZRAMR AT Christine International Holdings Limited



EREABE
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

4) BEREEFSEK: ARANEFFETFAYEERNE
RA L ENRBEREEASPIEHETERETRE
HEBRERBRHIMMITHIRBIZE DN EZ-FF
K- ARSFIBHES A TEFHREREIE RN IIE
FIETIBRETRE  RFE S AR EEFIEHERE
MEREETRE RS A RMREERNTE
WAEZE B giERRAREERANSDEFNGEEE
BB EB B Z R AR A E R R E R
KE-BEZZZ—F+_A=+—HLFE AP
FIZFPIEIT iR -

R EREL

/‘TW%jﬁFﬂlﬂéiﬁw“ B 7% Ko & #5777 T B PR B4 5
TRE MEBERS mRSHRERE AR
RHOBCEZZEARLER TE’JW*B% il o ARREAZ A R R B K
AFERBRBRREREENMEESER

B BEEEDE?

vES B iEIE 0 N BB E R R R AN
REIMEE BB RARE

lﬂﬁﬁ B

- DEIEENER ?ab’ﬁz R EHE K

- BARZBESRHUBERER URARALE
B MBARR KA R R

ZEZ—FF Annual Report 2021

(4)  Risk monitoring and review: In June each year, the
Company’s internal audit department examines the
risk management and internal control operation of the
Group and its subsidiaries covering the first half of the
year and puts forward the rectification suggestions for
the control defects found in the inspection process. At
the end of each year, the internal audit department will
check the operation of the risk management and internal
control of various companies covering the second half
of the year, while tracking the rectification of control
deficiencies of various companies covering the first half
of the year to ensure that various companies’ defects
have been rectified. It also reports overall comments to
the Audit Committee on risk management and internal
control. The Company's risk management level is
enhanced through sharing risk knowledge with different
business units. The above reviews have been performed
by the internal audit department during the year ended
31 December 2021.

Internal Control

The internal audit department of the Company semi-annually
inspects the internal control of such aspects as operation,
finance and compliance, reports the results of the review to
the management, and makes suggestions for improvement in
the internal control of the Company. The results of the internal
audit and rectification plan shall be reported to the Audit
Committee and the Board in a timely manner.

The Board was informed that the management has gradually
implemented a comprehensive internal monitoring system and
ensured the effective operation of the Company’s operating,
financial and compliance aspects.

(1) Financial Reporting Management:

- Appropriate monitoring measures have been
established to ensure a comprehensive, accurate
and timely record of accounting and management
information;

- Issuing financial statements to all Directors
on a monthly basis to show the Company’s
operating conditions, financial status and outlook
assessment; and
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- External auditors auditing consolidated financial
statements every year to ensure consolidated
financial statements are prepared in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles,
the Company's accounting policies and applicable
laws and regulations.

Inside Information Processing and Disclosure: The
Group regulates the handling and disclosure of inside
information in accordance with the Company’s
responsibility policy and related procedures to ensure
confidentiality prior to the appropriate disclosure
of relevant information and to disseminate relevant
information in an efficient and consistent manner.

The Board continuously assesses the likely impact of
any unexpected and significant event that may impact
the price of the Company's Shares or their trading
volume, and decides whether the relevant information
is considered as inside information and needs to be
disclosed as soon as reasonably practicable pursuant
to Rules 13.09 and 13.10 of the Listing Rules and the
Inside Information Provisions under Part XIVA of the SFO.
Executive Directors also have responsibility for approving
certain announcements and/or circulars to be issued by
the Company under powers delegated by the Board
from time to time.

Through measures such as the setting up of suggestion
box, whistle-blowing telephone and whistle-blowing
mailbox, we encourage employees to report any
misconduct which may arise from financial reporting,
internal control and other issues. Internal audit
department will undertake investigation and collect
relevant evidence, and will report to the Board if the
issues are confirmed.

Internal audit department semi-annually checks the
compliance of the Company with relevant laws and
regulations to ensure that the Company’s business
activities are in compliance with the laws and
regulations.
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The Board acknowledged that it is responsible for the risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing their
effectiveness. Such systems are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss. During the year ended
31 December 2021, the Board and the Audit Committee have
reviewed the Group's risk management and internal control
systems (through, among others, reviewing their processes as
well as confirming the adequacy of the resources and staff
qualifications and experiences of the Company's accounting,
internal audit, financial reporting, risk management and
internal control functions), as well as the responsibilities and
work of the internal audit department, and have not found any
major problem which may adversely affect the effectiveness
and adequacy of the Group's system, the independence,
objectivity and effectiveness of the internal audit function.
The Board and the Audit Committee consider that the risk
management and internal control systems effective and
adequate for the Group’s operation.

For details of the significant risks faced by the Company, please
refer to the section of “Management Discussion and Analysis”
and the “Report of the Directors” of this annual report.

In addition, the independent non-executive Directors have
reviewed the Company’s compliance records on the internal
control measures and the relevant laws and regulations
quarterly, and confirmed the Company’s compliance records
for the year ended 31 December 2021. Save as disclosed in
this annual report, during the year ended 31 December 2021,
no material breach of the relevant laws and regulations was
found.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE ("ESG"”) REPORT

For more information on the Group’s environmental protection
practices and performance, employee relations, and other
ESG-related risks, please refer to the Group’s “ESG Report
2021", which will be separately uploaded to the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange by the end of July 2022.

AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

An analysis of the remuneration payable to auditor of the
Company, Mazars CPA Limited, during the year is set out as
follows:
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Note: Non-audit services provided by Mazars CPA Limited during the year
ended 31 December 2021 included agreed-upon procedures report
on the Group’s interim financial information for the six months
ended 30 June 2021.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chen Kun is the company secretary, who has complied
with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

In compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, during the
year ended 31 December 2021, Mr. Chen has taken no less
than 15 hours of relevant professional trainings to update his
skills and knowledge.
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INVESTOR RELATIONSHIP AND
SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

The Company’s annual general meeting remains the principal
forum for dialogue with Shareholders. Shareholders are
encouraged to participate in the proceedings and ask questions
about the resolutions being proposed and the operations
of the Group. The Company’s Articles allows a Shareholder
entitled to attend and vote to appoint more than one proxy to
attend and vote on behalf of the Shareholder and also provides
that a proxy need not be a Shareholder of the Company.

Code provision F2 of the CG Code stipulates that the issuer
should ensure that shareholders are given sufficient notice of
shareholders meetings.

The Company’s external auditor is invited to attend the
Company’s annual general meeting and will assist the Directors
in addressing queries from Shareholders relating to the conduct
of the audit and the preparation and content of the auditors’
report.

All resolutions put forward at Shareholder meetings will be
voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results
will be posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange after each Shareholder meeting.

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary
General Meeting

In accordance with article 58 of the Articles, any one or
more Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Secretary of the Company, to
require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two months
after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such
deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting
the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the
same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at General
Meeting

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to propose
new resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman
Islands Companies Law (2012 Revision). However, Shareholders
who wish to propose resolutions may follow Article 58 of the
Articles for requisitioning an extraordinary general meeting and
including a resolution at such meeting. The requirements and
procedures of article 58 of the Articles are set out above.

As regards proposing a person for election as a director, the
procedures are available on the website of the Company.

Environmental Policy

The Company is committed to the sustainable development
of the environment and the society. Apart from making
corresponding investment that complies with relevant national
laws and reaches statutory standards, we have also referred
to the practices of industry players in developed countries and
prepared for sustainable management and self-improvement.

Relationships with Stakeholders

The Company recognises that the employees, customers and
suppliers of the Company are crucial to the sustainability
journey of the Company. The Group expects employees,
customers and suppliers to be the companions along the way
to business growth who share benefits and experience in
brand growth.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, during the year, there
was no other material breach of or non-compliance with the
applicable laws and regulations by the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company has
not made any changes to its Articles. The latest version of the
Articles is available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange. Shareholders may refer to the Articles for
details of their rights.

The Company maintains a website at www.christine.com.cn which
contains the Company's publicly disclosed financial information,
annual reports, news releases, announcements, the procedures
that Shareholders can use to propose a person for election as a
Director and corporate developments.

Shareholders and investors may send written enquiries or
requests to the Company as follows:

Address:  No. 33, Jinshajiang Road, Putuo District, Shanghai,
The People’s Republic of China

Fax: 86-021-62862255

Email: info@christine.com.cn

Enquiries will be dealt with in a timely and informative manner.
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Mazars CPA Livitep
R (FE) enwssnrman

42nd Floor, Central Plaza,

18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
T AT 18 SRR BRI 42 1
Tel FE&: (852) 2909 5555

Fax f#E: (852) 2810 0032

Email & info@mazars.hk
Website #81ik: www.mazars.hk

TO THE MEMBERS OF CHRISTINE INTERNATIONAL
HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Christine International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages
76 to 183, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position at 31 December 2021, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Group at
31 December 2021, and of its financial performance and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
"HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the "Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO
GOING CONCERN

We draw attention to the “Going concern” section in note 2 to
the consolidated financial statements concerning the adoption
of the going concern basis on which the consolidated financial
statements have been prepared. The Group reported a loss
attributable to the owners of the Company of approximately
RMB170.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2021
and at 31 December 2021, the Group had net current
liabilities and net liabilities of approximately RMB542.6 million
and approximately RMB206.0 million, respectively. These
conditions, along with other matters as set forth in note 2 to
the consolidated financial statements, indicate that a material
uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. The directors of
the Company, having considered the measures being taken by
the Group, are of the opinion that the Group would be able
to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in
respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the
“Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern”
have determined the matters described below to be the key
audit matters to be communicated in our report.

section, we
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ARELSEE(E)

HEELER

Key audit matter

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

EENERNTEERRERSER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ME - BERRE EAREEREVEE (RBIIRBEE]) WREFNME

Impairment assessment on property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets (together the “Non-

current Assets”)

E2MR A IEHMERMFES 20 - 21K%23 °

Refer to notes 5, 20, 21 and 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

RZZZ—F+A=+—R 9% BERXENE@E
#m AR #255,991,0007T AR EENREENAAR
#77,237,0007C & 128 B # BRI B X0 & A K #1,868,000
Toth BEEENIEREEEMLELNIBI%

At 31 December 2021, the carrying amounts of property,
plant and equipment of approximately RMB255,991,000,
right-of-use assets of approximately RMB77,237,000 and
intangible assets of approximately RMB1,868,000, respectively,
which represented about 93.9% of the total non-current
assets of the Group.

ENMFREEREBE EEERRIERNDEEFTEM
BEFR-BEEZRBE L EXAEMNEIERDEENE
REE EREENENEFRDEERBZEREES
B ((ReEESBM]) 2 KE S E  REN G RER
BHETEINMGT SERMRERERRKTSHFNR
MHEERERESTRN - BB BN EMNES e &
SEEREAUBTE -

In view of operating loss incurred during the recent years,
the management identified the existence of impairment
indications on the Non-current Assets. The management
engaged an independent professional valuer to assess the
value-in-use of the Non-current Assets, which is determined
based on the recoverable amount of the respective cash
generating units ("CGUs") to which the Non-current Assets
relate. The impairment assessment involves the management’s
estimates in certain areas including the discount rate and
the underlying cash flow projection based on the future
market supply and demand conditions. Any changes in the
management’s estimates may result in significant financial
impact to the Group.

—T=—F4F3 Annual Report 2021

BN EFEE (EPEHE)

Our procedures, among others, included:

a)

a)

MERESH BHEITEEHEETRETROES &
ERBEEREEAATA:

inquiring the management, understanding and evaluating
the control on their determination of impairment indications
and their method used for the impairment assessment of
the Non-current Assets;

R EnETAE FER (WERENTEE ) #EITHE
WREBERE RBMEEBOERRT L EEEY
BEM:

comparing cash flow projection to supporting evidence,
such as approved budgets, and evaluating the
reasonableness of these budgets with reference to the past
performance and our knowledge of the business;

MERER (NREBRR)ETHREDN LT HER
BFRREZEZHABEBELEBRR (BEMREXR)NEEMN:
performing a sensitivity analysis for the key assumptions,
such as projected revenue and evaluating the
reasonableness of key inputs and assumptions used by the
management, including discount rate;
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ARELSEE(E)

HEELER

Key audit matter

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

EENERNTEERRERSER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ME - BERRE EAREEREVEE (RBIIRBEE]) WREFNME

Impairment assessment on property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets (together the “Non-

current Assets”)

mrY BERENERDEEYH BESEFAVBHRRNE
S0 EEREYIEREE EETRER RS R #
B fhET  EEEERBEENRERM AR EZEE-
We have identified the impairment of the Non-current Assets
as a key audit matter due to the significance of the Group’s
Non-current Assets in the context of the Group’s consolidated
financial statements, combined with the judgements
and estimates involved in the management’s impairment
assessment of the Non-current Assets.

WMankR e M BHMRMFA2NAE - ERERARSEEEN
WA ERERNEREE Rt AFERERAEEER
RO B8 #) A K #38,332,0007T °

As set out in note 21 to the consolidated financial statements,
the management concluded that the recoverable amount
of the CGU was lower than its carrying value and that
impairment loss of approximately RMB38,332,000 was
recognised in right-of-use assets for the current year.

ZEZ—FF Annual Report 2021

LB EXMAEMNER e RFHIT:
evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity of
the independent professional valuer;

BB EXMEMN AT ERReELELT KRR
B AN T ERFFANEZRAZE T HEE
BEBRAREXE:

understanding the independent professional valuer’s
methodology adopted on the estimation of recoverable
amount of the relevant CGUs and the key inputs used, and
assessing whether they are reasonable and supportable;

BERITETERNR ETEEEEYERDEEME
MEFHEEIET: &

assessing the reasonableness of the management'’s
impairment assessment of the Non-current Assets in
accordance with the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards; and

ZE EEEEWERETENEESSRE -
considering the adequacy of the Group’s disclosure in
respect of the impairment assessment.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the 2021 annual report of the Company but does
not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group's financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

3 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group's internal control.
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o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors of the
Company.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 25 April 2022

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is:

She Shing Pang

Practising Certificate number: PO5510
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HEZT-—4F+=-A=+—HIFE Year ended 31 December 2021

—E-—F —ET-EF
2021 2020
s AR¥FT AREFIT
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
& Revenue 7 292,034 403,919
BHE KA Cost of sales (169,118) (242,229)
EF Gross profit 122,916 161,690
HAn A -~ Uz &2 B 18 Other income, gains and losses 8 6,188 47,305
SREEBBRETIETE Charge of loss allowances of
financial assets, net 9 - (706)
ERAEEERBEREE Impairment losses on right-of-use assets 21 (38,332) =
HE RS HRAEZ Selling and distribution expenses (206,507) (266,315)
1TEAX Administrative expenses (45,454) (42,133)
REEE Loss from operations (161,189) (100,159)
& Bk A Finance costs 11 (11,223) (9,552)
BB AR Loss before tax (172,412) (109,711)
FisfiEe (AX) Income tax credit (expense) 12 2,287 (660)
AATREEAEEERNEBIER Loss and total comprehensive loss
THEBERS for the year attributable to
owners of the Company 13 (170,125) (110,371)
gRER Loss per share
EAREE(ARESD) Basic and diluted (RMB cents) 18 (16.8) (10.9)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R-ZE=——F+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2021

—EB=-—F —T-TF
2021 2020
s ARB¥T T ARKFT
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
BE ASSETS
FRBEE Non-current assets
A Investment properties 19 14,434 15,786
YE BB KR A& Property, plant and equipment 20 255,991 277,514
FEREEE Right-of-use assets 21 77,237 148,791
EES Goodwill 22 - _
BVAE Intangible assets 23 1,868 2,736
e Deposits 7,249 8,128
BEIRDEENES Deposits for purchase of non-current assets - 954
356,779 453,909
REEE Current assets
758 Inventories 25 16,923 20,411
B 5 Kk E b EINGRIA Trade and other receivables 26 56,571 71,743
Jicide b NCIE /S| Amounts due from a related company 44 234 234
RITEHR KA Bank balances and cash 27 17,902 63,847
REBEELRE Total current assets 91,630 156,235
BEEHBHE TOTAL ASSETS 448,409 610,144
EEREE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
& Share capital 28 8 8
#E Reserves 30 (206,045) (35,920)
B Total equity (206,037) (35,912)
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R-ZE=——F+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2021

—EB=-—F —ET-EF
2021 2020
s AR¥FT ARKFT
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
=R LIABILITIES
FnBEE Non-current liabilities
HEBRE Lease liabilities 32 20,221 34,550
REEE Current liabilities
EEUWA Deferred revenue 31 = 80
BRERE Contract liabilities 34 278,162 317,366
RITIEK Bank borrowings 35 130,000 100,000
RERE K Loan from a shareholder 36 52,000 =
HEEBE Lease liabilities 32 45,941 50,078
B 5 R AEAMER IR Trade and other payables 37 122,377 135,390
FERTEAE R RSB Amounts due to related companies 44 1,037 1,597
FET AR B Dividend payable 4,708 4,708
BEARITE B & Current tax liabilities = 2,287
REBBEARE Total current liabilities 634,225 611,506
BakAEEE TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 448,409 610,144
B 8RR NET CURRENT LIABILITIES 542,595 455,271
FI6RI1BEMNAEMBBRRENR _E__FMOMA-_+hH The consolidated financial statements on pages 76 to 183 were
KESSHERKENE THTINESKRRES: approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
25 April 2022 and signed on its behalf by:
BREEWRE REKEBEREE
Mr. Chun Bin Xu Mr. Yong Ning Zhu
EE EE
Director Director
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RERBZBER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HE-ZZ-—F+=-A=+—HLFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

ARFEFAER
Attributable to owners of the Company

BRax  RGOEE  BHRE  HURE LEBRBREE  RHEBR ERAH

Statutory
Share Share Special Other surplus  Accumulated Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses equity
ARBTFT AEETFT ARETT ARETT AREFT AREFT ARETZT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000

(P7E3000))  (FF5E30bG)) (BF3E300GH)  (FiT3E3060v))

(Note 30b ()  (Note 30b (ii)) (Note 30b (iii)) (Note 30b (iv))
RZZZTE-A—H At 1 January 2020 8 311,833 235,868 3,687 112,323 (589,260) 74,459

TEBERZEBELSE Loss and total comprehensive loss
for the year - - - - - (110,371) (110,371)
EEREEN Statutory reserve appropriation - - S S 165 (165) =
FRERZE Changes in equity for the year = = = = 165 (110,536) (110,371)
RZZ-FF+-A=1+—H At 31 December 2020 8 311,833 235,868 3,687 112,488 (699,796) (35,912)
RZE-Z—-%—-F—H At 1 January 2021 8 311,833 235,868 3,687 112,488 (699,796) (35912)
TEBER2ABRASE Loss and total comprehensive loss

for the year - - - - - (170,125) (170,125)
RZZZ—%+ZA=F—H At31 December 2021 8 311,833 235,868 3,687 112,488 (869,921) (206,037)
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RERERER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HE-ZZT-—F+=-A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

—E-— —ZEETF
2021 2020
Bt 5E AREFT AREFIT
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
RETED OPERATING ACTIVITIES
R i A B 1R Loss before tax (172,412) (109,711)
HEE Adjustments for:
A& B Finance costs 11 11,223 9,552
B A Interest income 8 (457) (818)
KREMENRE Depreciation of investment properties 19 1,352 878
Y BEREETE Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment 20 20,403 27,374
FREEERE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 21 56,433 81,355
EE EE Amortisation of intangible assets 23 868 1,011
HLIEHE 2 B8 () Loss (Gain) on termination of leases 8 889 (498)
HEWE - BE KA Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment 8 (3,882) (34,797)
TREEBBEREDFR Charge of loss allowances on
financial assets, net 9 - 706
ERREEREEBR Impairment losses on right-of-use assets 21 38,332 =
R EEBBBUT/E Release of asset-related
government grants 8 (80) (468)
B K & 1B AR RE Y Income on COVID-19-related
R WA rent concession 21 (220) (4,679)
ZIEME B E KR E Write-off of property, plant and
equipment 8 160 1,315
ZIEBEERDEE RS Write-off of deposits for purchase of
non-current assets 8 954 -
BELELEHAKEELRE Operating cash flows before
movements in working capital (46,437) (28,780)
BEBSEE: Changes in working capital:
78 Inventories 3,488 6,822
B 5 N E b E Trade and other receivables 15,172 (47,727)
FEUS BE i N R FRIE Amounts due from related companies - 656
®’e Deposits 1,146 1,997
B 5 & H b fEfS 5k1E Trade and other payables (13,013) 15,062
AHBE Contract liabilities (39,204) (31,169)
JETRAiE N R RUE Amounts due to related companies (560) 1,168
BEFARS Cash used in operations (79,408) (81,971)
EATFTEHR Income taxes paid = (192)
B FE Interest paid (5,862) (1,639)
KETEHFTARESFE Net cash used in operating activities (85,270) (83,802)
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RERERER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HE-ZZ-—F+=-A=+—HLFE For the year ended 31 December 2021
—E-—F TECTF
2021 2020
BT AR T T ARMTFT
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
REEE INVESTING ACTIVITIES
2B Interest received 190 504
HEWE BEMZBEFTSFKIE Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment 6,932 79,160
BEME BE &R Purchase of property, plant and
equipment (2,090) (1,181)
RETEFIBHELSFE Net cash from investing activities 5,032 78,483
A& SEE FINANCING ACTIVITIES
153§TE&§1$ Repayment of lease liabilities (47,707) (69,815)
ERITIER Bank borrowings raised 80,000 100,000
1%5\%_%&{715 P Repayment of bank borrowings (50,000) (35,950)
B—R2REREER Inception of loan from a shareholder 52,000 -
RMESEE S (FTA) Net cash from (used in) financing
HEFER activities 34,293 (5,765)
REeERASEEWRDF NET DECREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS (45,945) (11,084)
REDHRERAELEEY CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 63,847 74,931
RERNRERREEEY CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR 17,902 63,847
ReRASEEYESRDWN ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
RITHEBRRIAS Bank balances and cash 27 17,902 63,847
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A BRRNE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-ZZT-—F+=-A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

—REH

A TREERER AR (XA EREWES
REsmE I AEE])RHSHSEMK LN EE RE
BN AR A A o H#F fl #% = 5E # 4k & Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, PO. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-
1111, Cayman lIslands o B = 2 & i Bl A ZE A
REME ([HE]) HEmEERSDIIE335% (54 :
200062) * RABIRND N EABEZZAER AR ([H
Rl ER LT

ARBD—FREZERAR -HHB R
MEEERHERBER-
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B
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EREE

RAEMBRRDBEFTEEHMNAG ([EBEFHEQ
B RMZEEMBRSER ([FEMBHEER
BREMBERZEAUHRERER FEGHEL (&
BEHERN]ERE) FEAREFRURFTER
ARPIZBEBERERE -V BRRTT BN
EHFLETRA(TETRA) 2 ERWERE

HRAEVBHREAARE (AR 27 EXRAH
DR EBHER - A SBANBEREAM TR

GENERAL INFORMATION

Christine International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the
“Group”) was incorporated and registered as an
exempted company with limited liability in the Cayman
Islands. The address of its registered office is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, PO. Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The address of its principal
place of business is No. 33 Jinshajiang Road, Putuo
District, Shanghai 200062, The People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC"). The Company's shares are listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries are primarily
engaged in the production and sales of bakery products
in the PRC.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”), which collective term
includes all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs")
and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. The consolidated financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure requirements
under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi ("RMB") which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company. All amounts have been
rounded to the nearest thousand.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-ZZ-—F+=-A=+—HLFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

EHEE(H)

BREMBREDNRE-T _TFEE T HRERTEM

S BRE B EERE HERARERNEGS
M RARM IS EAREAE A SN FEREER (R
FRAKRIN) 2 HE]EHERT B BM B M ELERIBR SN o

REUGEAVBEREE ERAEBER - =-—F
T A+t BHORDEEBEERDEENARE
SR eREET BABBBRBEENARK20608ET
EAEEREBEZALFEREBIEHARE170.1
BEL AAREECEEEREAEENARAHE
SER -HBZERREEZEXTETEREAEH A
EEEERLENBRENRERM -

REBUTERR ARAAEERR BEAVBER
R BRRAEDRRT @R AEBBER T
RMNEEESREXBEERHESRBITHMBR
£

@ @EEOTAZ KEERSET-EATAE
B L ARG RARA R EER

() FRONREETER BRETRRERE
BORITREREBVAZERE -

BASIS OF PRESENTATION (Continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a basis consistent with the accounting
policies adopted in the 2020 consolidated financial
statements except for the adoption/early adoption of
the new/revised HKFRSs that are relevant to the Group
and effective from the current year (except for any
early adoption) as set out in note 3 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Going concern

In preparing the consolidated financial statements,
the directors of the Company have given careful
consideration to the future liquidity of the Group in light
of the fact that the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its
current assets and total liabilities exceeded its total assets
by approximately RMB542.6 million and approximately
RMB206.0 million, respectively, at 31 December 2021,
and that the Group incurred a loss of approximately
RMB170.1 million for the year then ended. This is a
material uncertainty related to those conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that
the Group will have sufficient working capital to finance
its operations and to meet its financial obligations for at
least the next twelve months from the date of approval
of the consolidated financial statements, after taking
into consideration of the following:

(@  The banking facilities from the Group’s bankers
for its working capital requirements for the next
twelve months will be available as and when
required, having regard to the following:

(i) negotiation for external financing, including
but not limited to, obtain further bank
facilities and various forms of capital fund
raising.
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A BRRNE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-ZZT-—F+=-A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

2. EHREE(E)

FEgE ()

() REBWTER AKERSE+_EAARE
EREEARBITRGERTHE HEEEESR

eHFFR: ()

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION (Continued)

Going concern (Continued)

(a)

(i) BERITHREBHLHFRARITERZENRG
EETER SERIPAER—FRE
RBERTREFER—%-

(iii)

BE_T_—S+-A=1t—HIFE"

AEBERDEFNTHIHE AT =
RA-+-BR-_ZE-_—_FXAT+HAHD
IR A R 1718 5K A R #100,000,0007T # i8
REEZE WHRARITHELER —F-

(iv)

HE-Z

Z—HF+A=t—RBLEERE"

7N & B S H iR 17 18 BA R #30,000,000
T AR T —F+-_A=+—H#E=
AR AR AEEK B Z
ERTERNEREPALERE —FE=F
—=%-HA+H-

by MR-ZTE-_—F+A KEEZKHELEH— (b)
BEYE REHEAREE6932,000L - BHE-Z
T F+Z A=+ HALFE RECEHKD -
AEBEFRGERRBALESEMERBEIN
BERARRAOKE -
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The banking facilities from the Group's bankers
for its working capital requirements for the
next twelve months will be available as and
when required, having regard to the following:
(Continued)

(i)  negotiation with the banks for the
restructure of repayment schedules of the
existing bank borrowings so as to extend
the repayment due date for one year and
extend the existing bank facilities for one
more year.

(i) during the year ended 31 December

2021, the Group successfully restructured

repayment schedules of the existing bank

borrowings of RMB100,000,000 with
maturity dates on 21 May 2022 and

15 June 2022 and extended the existing

bank facilities for one more year.

(iv)  during the year ended 31 December 2021,
the Group obtained a new bank borrowing
of RMB30,000,000 and subsequent to
31 December 2021 and up to the date
of approving the consolidated financial
statements, the Group successfully extended
the repayment due date of the bank loan
for one more year with maturity date on

7 February 2023.

In October 2021, the Group completed the
disposal of a property located in Shanghai at a
consideration of approximately RMB6,932,000.
Full amount of consideration was received during
the year ended 31 December 2021. The Group
is actively exploring the opportunity of obtaining
additional source of cash inflows from sales of its
owned properties.



)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHEZ

2.

Bt %5 R R RE

—F+=A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

EHEE(H)

FEgE ()
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(e)

V)

REBEBEHRQEAEANERIRNEARESE
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION (Continued)

Going concern (Continued)

(o)

(d)

(e)

)

ZEZ—FF Annual Report 2021

The Group continues to implement operational
plans to control costs and generates sufficient
operating cash flows to meet its current and future
obligations. Relevant actions include collection of
outstanding receivables, utilisation of the capacity
of the production plants, and closure of loss-
making retail outlets. Subsequent to 31 December
2021 and up to the date of approving the
consolidated financial statements, the Group had
recovered other receivables of RMB40,100,000.

China Huaneng Foundation Construction
Investment Limited (“Huaneng”), the substantial
shareholder of the Company, Huaneng's
controlling shareholder and related parties
of Huaneng’s controlling shareholder, have
committed and have proved their ability to provide
continuous financial support to meet the Group's
day-to-day operations and the Group’s financial
obligations as they fall due.

Huaneng has undertaken that the repayment
of its loan to the Group of approximately
RMB52,000,000 at 31 December 2021 will not be
requested within twelve months from the date of
approval of the consolidated financial statements,
unless the Group has obtained funding from other
sources and is in a position to meet all repayment
obligations at that time.

The Group is actively exploring the availability of
alternative source of financing.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-ZZT-—F+=-A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

EHEE(H)

FEgE ()

KEEAEB 2R RETEDN (EREZ LB EES
RUMBER TR RFEHR —FREITHNENE
ETER S EL A ARE121,609,0000T KRB EER
B ERESTHEBMzER EREMELETZE
Mz BHER AEESBERCESRFEAREE
AREEESRAMBEFT K- AR EFTHE &
EASEERENTEHSE N LBk geRisKI -

A HRAEEEREROTER D8 RER
FHEERTHEEE AEBEFELEHENIURNRE
DRBERATFHEELTHRERKERDR:

(@) FATEBEERITEHRY:
() BISEEIMRITRE R

(i) BAERART—EAHRARNRAR
ERNESRENAALER—FRERAR

b) RBEURTZKRERLEEEENELREELRH
M ERI AT BER S ENG B BRI E &

BASIS OF PRESENTATION (Continued)

Going concern (Continued)

Having regard to the cash flow projection of the
Group, which are prepared assuming that the above
measures are successful, and on the projected amount
of contract liabilities that are expected to be fulfilled
within one year of approximately RMB121,609,000, the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that, in
the light of the measures taken to-date, together with
the expected results of the other measures in progress,
the Group will have sufficient funding resources to
satisfy its future working capital and other financing
requirements. The directors of the Company believe that
the aforementioned measures will be successful, based
on the continuous efforts by the management of the
Group.

However, significant uncertainties exist as to whether
the management of the Group will be able to achieve
its plans and measures as described above. The Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern depends on the
generation of adequate financing and operating cash
flows through the successful fulfilment of the following
plans:

(@  negotiating with the banks successfully for
(i) obtaining additional bank facilities; and

(i)  extending the repayment due date of
the existing bank borrowings that might
become overdue in next twelve-month
period for one year and extend the existing
bank facilities for one more year;

(b) obtaining the necessary approvals from the
shareholders if required for the execution and
completion of any possible transactions in relation
to the disposal of its owned properties and capital
fund raising activities; and
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HE-ZZ-—F+=-A=+—HLFE For the year ended 31 December 2021
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION (Continued)

Going concern (Continued)

(©)  timely implementing operational plans to control
costs and generating sufficient operating cash
flows to meet its current and future obligations.
Relevant actions include collection of outstanding
receivables, utilisation of the capacity of the
production plants, and closure of loss-making
retail outlets.

Should the above measures not be able to implement
successfully, the Group may not have sufficient
funds to operate as a going concern, in which case
adjustments might have to be made to the carrying
values of the Company’s assets to their recoverable
amounts, to reclassify the non-current assets and non-
current liabilities as current assets and current liabilities,
respectively and to provide for any further liabilities
which might arise. The effects of these potential
adjustments have not been reflected in the consolidated
financial statements.

APPLICATION OF NEW/REVISED
HKFRSs

The Group has applied, for the first time, the following
new/revised HKFRSs:

Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRSs  Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
4,7,9and 16 Phase 2

Amendments to HKFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions

Beyond 30 June 2021

Except for the early adoption of Amendments to HKFRS
16 as set out below, the adoption of the new/revised
HKFRSs that are relevant to the Group and effective from
the current year had no significant effects on the results
and financial position of the Group for the current and
prior years.
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APPLICATION OF NEW/REVISED
HKFRSs (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRSs 4, 7, 9 and 16:
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2

The amendments address issues that might affect
financial reporting when a company replaces the old
interest rate benchmark with an alternative benchmark
rate as a result of the interest rate benchmark reform
(the “Reform”). The amendments complement those
issued in November 2019 and relate to:

o changes to contractual cash flows — a company
will not have to derecognise or adjust the carrying
amount of financial instruments for changes
required by the Reform, but will instead update
the effective interest rate to reflect the change to
the alternative benchmark rate;

o hedge accounting — a company will not have to
discontinue its hedge accounting solely because
it makes changes required by the Reform, if the
hedge meets other hedge accounting criteria; and

o disclosures — a company will be required to
disclose information about new risks arising from
the reform and how it manages the transition to
alternative benchmark rates.

The adoption of the amendments does not have
any significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW/REVISED
HKFRSs (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 16: COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions Beyond 30 June 2021

The amendments exempt lessees from having to
consider individual lease contracts to determine whether
rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of
the COVID-19 pandemic are lease modifications and
allow lessees to account for such rent concessions as if
they were not lease modifications. It applies to COVID-
19-related rent concessions that reduce lease payments
due on or before 30 June 2022. The amendments do
not affect lessors.

These amendments shall be applied for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021 with earlier
application permitted. The Group has elected to early
adopt the amendments in the current year. In accordance
with the transition provisions therein, the amendments
have been applied retrospectively by the Group
recognising the cumulative effect of initially applying the
amendments as an adjustment to the opening balance
of accumulated losses and therefore the comparative
information has not been restated.

The early adoption of the amendment has no impact
to the opening accumulated losses at 1 January 2021.
The Group recognised changes in leases payments
that resulted from rent concessions of approximately
RMB220,000 in the profit or loss for the year ended
31 December 2021.
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APPLICATION OF NEW/REVISED
HKFRSs (Continued)

Future changes in HKFRSs

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated
financial statements, the HKICPA has issued the
following new/revised HKFRSs that are not yet effective
for the current year, which the Group has not early
adopted.

Amendments to HKAS 16
Amendments to HKAS 37
Amendments to HKFRS 3

Proceeds before Intended Use '
Cost of Fulfilling a Contract '
Reference to the Conceptual
Framework '
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs  2018-2020 Cycle
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current ?
Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Disclosure of Accounting Policies ?

Definition of Accounting Estimates ?

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction ?

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 17

Insurance Contracts ?

Initial Application of HKFRS 17
and HKFRS 9 - Comparative
Information 2

Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture 3

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2022

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2023

& The effective date to be determined

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
adoption of these new/revised HKFRSs in future periods
will have any material impact on the results and financial
position of the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, unless
mentioned otherwise in the accounting policies below.

The significant accounting policies applied in the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements are
set out below.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and all of its
subsidiaries made up to 31 December. Subsidiaries are
entities over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. The Group has power over an
entity when the Group has existing rights that give it
the current ability to direct the relevant activities, i.e.
activities that significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by
other parties. A potential voting right is considered only
if the holder has the practical ability to exercise that
right.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date the control ceases.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Changes in ownership interest

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying
amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests are
adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
the owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest determined at the date when control is lost
and (i) the carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interests at the date when control is lost. The
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to the disposed subsidiary are
accounted for on the same basis as would be required if
the holding company had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. Any investment retained in the
former subsidiary and any amounts owed by or to the
former subsidiary are accounted for as a financial asset,
associate, joint venture or others as appropriate from the
date when control is lost.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Changes in ownership interest (Continued)

In the Company’s statement of financial position
as set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements, an investment in a subsidiary is stated at
cost less impairment losses. The carrying amount of
the investment is reduced to its recoverable amount on
an individual basis, if it is higher than the recoverable
amount. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivable.

Business combination and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the
acquisition of a subsidiary in a business combination.
The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at the acquisition-date fair value of the
assets given, equity instruments issued, liabilities incurred
and any contingent consideration. Acquisition-related
costs are recognised as expenses in the periods in which
the costs are incurred, and the services are received.
Identifiable assets and liabilities of the subsidiary in the
acquisition are measured at their acquisition-date fair
values.

The excess of the sum of the consideration transferred
over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded
as goodwill. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over
the sum of the consideration transferred is recognised
in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase which is
attributed to the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combination and goodwill (Continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating
units (“CGUs") or groups of CGUs that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination. Each
unit or group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the Group at which
the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The
carrying value of the CGU containing the goodwill is
compared to its recoverable amount, which is the higher
of value-in-use and the fair value less costs of disposal.
Any impairment is recognised immediately as an expense
and is not subsequently reversed.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including buildings
and held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services, or for administrative purposes (other than
construction in progress as described below), are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised
in profit or loss during the period in which they are
incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost less
their residual values over the estimated useful lives on
a straight-line basis. The principal annual rates are as
follows:

Leasehold Improvements Over the shorter of the

lease term or 3 years

Buildings 2.25-4.5%
Machinery and equipment 9%
Motor vehicles 18%
Fixtures and office equipment 18%

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method
are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

Construction in progress represents buildings under
construction and plant and equipment pending
installation and is stated at cost less impairment losses.
Depreciation begins when the relevant assets are
available for use.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset,
and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are leasehold land and buildings
held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation and
include land held for undetermined future use, which is
regarded as held for capital appreciation purpose.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment properties (Continued)

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses.

Depreciation on leasehold land and buildings is
calculated using the straight-line method to write off the
cost less accumulated impairment losses of investment
properties over their estimated useful lives at the annual
rate of 2.25-4.5%.

When a property occupied by the Group as an owner-
occupied property or as a right-of-use asset becomes
an investment property following a change in its use, at
which time it is reclassified and subsequently accounted
for as an investment property.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are
expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the
period in which the item is derecognised.

Intangible assets

(i) Intangible assets acquired separately —
software

Software is stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated amortisation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Amortisation is calculated on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives at an annual rate
of 10%.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

(ii) Intangible assets acquired in business
combination - trademarks and sales network

Trademarks and sales network are stated at cost
less subsequent accumulated amortisation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Amortisation is calculated on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives at an annual rate
of 5%.

Financial assets

Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets are recognised when and only when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instruments and on a trade date basis.

A financial asset is derecognised when and only when (i)
the Group's contractual rights to future cash flows from
the financial asset expire or (ii) the Group transfers the
financial asset and either (a) it transfers substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset,
or (b) it neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset but
it does not retain control of the financial asset.

Classification and measurement

Financial assets (except for trade receivables without a
significant financing component) are initially recognised
at their fair value plus, in the case of financial assets
not carried at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL"),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial assets. Such trade receivables
are initially measured at their transaction price.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and measurement (Continued)

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as
(i) measured at amortised cost; (ii) debt investment
measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income; (iii) equity investment measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income; or (iv) measured
at FVPL.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the Group’s business model for managing
the financial assets and the financial asset’s contractual
cash flow characteristics. Financial assets are not
reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless
the Group changes its business model for managing
them, in which case all affected financial assets are
reclassified on the first day of the first annual reporting
period following the change in the business model.

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets
both of the following conditions and is not designated
at FVPL:

(i) it is held within a business model whose objective
is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

(i) its contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses arising from
impairment, derecognition or through the amortisation
process are recognised in profit or loss.

The Group's financial assets at amortised cost include
deposits, trade and other receivables, amounts due from
related companies and bank balances and cash.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial liabilities

Recognition and derecognition

Financial liabilities are recognised when and only when
the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instruments.

A financial liability is derecognised when and only when
the liability is extinguished, that is, when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires.

Classification and measurement

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at their fair
value plus, in the case of financial liabilities not carried
at FVPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the issue of the financial liabilities.

The Group's financial liabilities include bank borrowings,
loan from a shareholder, lease liabilities, trade and
other payables, amounts due to related companies
and dividend payable. All financial liabilities, except for
financial liabilities at FVPL, are recognised initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method, unless the effect of
discounting would be insignificant, in which case they
are stated at cost.

Financial liabilities at FVPL include financial liabilities
held for trading, financial liabilities designated upon
initial recognition at FVPL and financial liabilities that are
contingent consideration of an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 applies. They are carried
at fair value, with any resultant gain and loss recognised
in profit or loss, except for the portion of fair value
changes of financial liabilities designated at FVPL that
are attributable to the credit risk of the liabilities which
is presented in other comprehensive income unless
such treatment would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss. The amounts presented in
other comprehensive income shall not be subsequently
transferred to profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Classification and measurement (Continued)

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if it is:
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(iii)

incurred principally for the purpose of
repurchasing it in the near term;

part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that are managed together and for
which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking on initial recognition;
or

a derivative that is not a financial guarantee
contract or not a designated and effective hedging
instrument.

Financial liabilities are designated at initial recognition at
FVPL only if:

0]

(ii)

(iii)
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the designation eliminates or significantly reduces
a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise from measuring assets or
liabilities or recognising the gains or losses on
them on different bases;

they are part of a group of financial liabilities or
financial assets and financial liabilities that are
managed and their performance evaluated on a
fair value basis, in accordance with a documented
risk management strategy; or

they contain one or more embedded derivatives,
in which case the entire hybrid contract may
be designated as a financial liability at FVPL,
except where the embedded derivatives do not
significantly modify the cash flows or it is clear
that separation of the embedded derivatives is
prohibited.
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Derivatives embedded in a hybrid contract with a host
that is not an asset within the scope of HKFRS 9 are
treated as separate derivatives when they meet the
definition of a derivative, their economic characteristics
and risks are not closely related to those of the host, and
the hybrid contract is not measured at FVPL.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group always recognises lifetime expected credit
losses (“ECL") for trade receivables. The ECL on these
financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix
based on the Group's historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions and an assessment of both
the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions
at the reporting date, including time value of money
where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises
lifetime ECL when there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition. However, if the
credit risk on the financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures
the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an
amount equal to 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of
a financial instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to
result from default events on a financial instrument that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ZT = —FFW Annual Report 2021 RRIASTEIBRIZRAMR AT Christine International Holdings Limited

101



102

A BRRNE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-ZZT-—F+=-A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

—T=—F4F3 Annual Report 2021

TESTHBER(E)

TREERE (&)

=& m R KR b0

EFEENEERARERTIANEERRITRE
BN AEEBSRTIARREAHELENRZOE
R TARVIER R HELNZORRETY
R ETUFAER AREEERAEAREENE
EREUHER BEBELREEFNHTLENK
AEBHMAESORELEER -FTEBOATELEE
HEREREQBEERRE SRONED - BUTHEE -
HEEEREMBEUABNAEEERALERET
EOMARAZ AREXAKEZOEFERNER R
FERIE BB R BTSN AR AR -

EHEBVEERREERRETBERME SR
ERIATER

- SRTANIIF(NB)RKABEETFRNER
HEHBERL:

- FESRTIANINBTSERARESBEER
e

- BEBE AR B E AR
TROEY M REERRORAEREANT
L

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument at the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue
cost or effort. Forward-looking information considered
includes the future prospects of the industries in which
the Group's debtors operate, obtained from economic
expert reports, financial analysts, governmental bodies,
relevant think-tanks and other similar organisations,
as well as consideration of various external sources of
actual and forecast economic information that relate to
the Group's core operations.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

- significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk for a particular financial
instrument;

- existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations;
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor;

- significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same debtor;

- an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date. A financial instrument is determined to
have low credit risk if:

(i) the financial instrument has a low risk of default;

(i) the debtor has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term;
and

(i) adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to
fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

The Group considers a financial asset to have low
credit risk when the asset has external credit rating
of “investment grade” in accordance with the
globally understood definition or if an external rating
is not available, the asset has an internal rating of
“performing”. Performing means that the counterparty
has a strong financial position and there is no past due
amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an
event of default for internal credit risk management
purposes as historical experience indicates that
receivables that meet either of the following criteria are
generally not recoverable:

- when there is a breach of financial covenants by
the counterparty; or

- information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group,
in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Definition of default (Continued)

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset is
generally more than 90 days past due unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
counterparty;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

- the lender(s) of the counterparty, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the counterparty’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
counterparty a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;

- it is becoming probable that the counterparty will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
or

- the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, including when the debtor has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when
the amounts are over two years past due, whichever
occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group's
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised
in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information as described above. As
for the exposure at default, for financial assets, this is
represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the
reporting date.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the
difference between all contractual cash flows that are
due to the Group in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the original effective interest rate.

RRI##STEIBRIZRAMR AT Christine International Holdings Limited



A M BRRNE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-ZZ-—F+=-A=+—HLFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

TESTHBER(E)

TREERE (&)

HERERARGEEER (8)

HAEER E—AREHEZASENE2HNAHEES
BENEeRAESRITANBERE EXRARSE B
EEZzHBEHEEERNGETENEG AAKHE
RAREBHRBSER2EABREEBREN SR
EEEBE  EERECENEERS -

AEBERBHETHEIMESH TAORERSLEE -
Wi BEEREREAEAERREE-

RERREEEY

RehBHeFEVRBARTRFEES FHRIRT
REMEREENERFERARBARR=EARNE
HrRERERAENeRReNENRREMLAE
BERERBRTIANKRE - RGARSRERME &%
ERBEEIBEBRAEERSEE T A HREMD Z|IT
B MIRRERREEEY-

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a
financial instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL
in the previous reporting period, but determines at the
current reporting date that the conditions for lifetime
ECL are no longer met, the Group measures the loss
allowance at an amount equal to 12-month ECL at
the current reporting date, except for assets for which
simplified approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount
through a loss allowance account.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity
at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated
statement of cash flows.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is expected
to be entitled, excluding those amounts collected on
behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax
or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts.

Revenue from the sales of bakery products is recognised
when control of the products has transferred, being
when the products are delivered to the customers.
Delivery occurs when the products have been shipped to
the specific location. A receivable is recognised when the
goods are delivered as this is the point in time that the
consideration is unconditional because only the passage
of time is required before the payment is due.

The Group issues and sells coupons to the customers
which are non-refundable and are redeemed in
exchange for products of the Group within a fixed
future period. Customers may not always exercise all
their rights and those unexercised rights are recognised
as revenue in proportion to the pattern of rights excised
by the customers, taking into account of constrain in the
estimation of variable consideration.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised
when the properties are let out and on the straight-line
basis over the lease term.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method. For financial assets measured
at amortised cost that are not credit-impaired, the
effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset. For credit impaired financial assets,
the effective interest rate is applied to the amortised cost
(i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the
asset.

Bank interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Contract assets and contract liabilities

If the Group performs by transferring goods or services
to a customer before the customer pays consideration
or before payment is due, the contract is presented as
a contract asset, excluding any amounts presented as a
receivable. Conversely, if a customer pays consideration,
or the Group has a right to an amount of consideration
that is unconditional, before the Group transfers a good
or service to the customer, the contract is presented as
a contract liability when the payment is made or the
payment is due (whichever is earlier). A receivable is the
Group's right to consideration that is unconditional or
only the passage of time is required before payment of
that consideration is due.

For a single contract or a single set of related contracts,
either a net contract asset or a net contract liability is
presented. Contract assets and contract liabilities of
unrelated contracts are not presented on a net basis.

For the Group’s business, it is common for the Group
to receive from a customer the whole or some of the
contractual payments before the services are completed
or when the goods are delivered (i.e. the timing of
revenue recognition for such transactions). The Group
recognises a contract liability until it is recognised as
revenue. During that period, any significant financing
components, if applicable, will be included in the
contract liability and will be expensed as accrued unless
the interest expense is eligible for capitalisation.
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4., TESTHEE (&) 4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
SMBE Foreign currency translation
() TheERZIEY (i)  Functional and presentation currency
AEEEERBNVBREMINIERYUAZER ltems included in the financial statements of each
KEMENEZELBERENGE ([Theeg%]) of the Group's entities are measured using the
HAEBREMBREIUNARE (KRAFRZ27 currency of the primary economic environment
BRI EE) 25 - ARFESRAEAARE in which the entity operates (the “functional
EREVNEE e HmERRRBEENT currency”). The consolidated financial statements
2o are presented in RMB, which is the Company’s
presentation and functional currency. The directors
of the Company consider that choosing RMB as
the presentation currency best suits the needs of
the shareholders and investors.
(i) BERMBBRRZIIZRER (ii) Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements
INERGRVEERBERZ S A Z@ITE Transactions in foreign currencies are translated
FME R EE - LINERBEL B EE into the functional currency on initial recognition
FEBERSHREHARZIEZRE UWREHREE using the exchange rates prevailing on the
EZBEREBERNER - transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities in
foreign currencies are translated at the exchange
rates at the end of each reporting period. Gains
and losses resulting from this translation policy are
recognised in profit or loss.
RAREBE d‘i&%@l\ﬁguﬂﬁZ#fﬁglﬁﬁ 75 Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
REETAABEEBZERRE value in foreign currencies are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates when the fair values
are determined.
EHEBEAZREREMEEBRBBAR  Z When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
BB ZEMELBHHREMEERAER & is recognised in other comprehensive income,
FERIBE 2 BRERBESERE BB 2EM any exchange component of that gain or loss
EH IR IBRER - is recognised in other comprehensive income.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in profit or loss, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iii)

ZEZ—FF Annual Report 2021

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different
from the Company’s presentation currency are
translated into the Company’s presentation
currency as follows:

- assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated
at the closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position;

- income and expenses for each statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income are translated at average exchange
rates for the period (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the exchange
rates on the transaction dates); and

- all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the foreign currency
translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of monetary items that form
part of the net investment in foreign entities are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the foreign currency translation
reserve. When a foreign operation is sold,
such exchange differences are reclassified to
consolidated profit or loss as part of the gain or
loss on disposal.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average basis. The cost of finished goods comprises raw
materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion
of all production overhead expenditure, and where
appropriate, subcontracting charges. Net realisable value
is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense
in the period of the write-down or loss occurs. The
amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories
is recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.

Impairment of non-financial assets, other than
goodwill

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are
reviewed at each reporting date for indications of
impairment and where an asset is impaired, it is
written down as an expense through profit or loss to
its estimated recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets. If this is the case, recoverable amount is
determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs.
Recoverable amount is the higher of value-in-use and
the fair value less costs of disposal of the individual asset
or the cash-generating unit.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets, other than
goodwiill (Continued)

Value-in-use is the present value of the estimated
future cash flows of the asset/CGU. Present values are
computed using pre-tax discount rates that reflect the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset/
CGU whose impairment is being measured.

Impairment losses for CGUs are allocated first against
the goodwill of the unit and then pro rata amongst the
other assets of the CGU. Subsequent increases in the
recoverable amount caused by changes in estimates are
credited to profit or loss to the extent that they reverse
the impairment.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and
used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset,
the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation
is determined by applying a capitalisation rate to the
expenditures on that asset. The capitalisation rate is the
weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to
the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding during
the period, other than borrowings made specifically
for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset. Any
specific borrowing that remains outstanding after the
related asset is ready for its intended use or sale is
included in the general borrowing pool for calculation of
capitalisation rate on general borrowings.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Borrowing costs (Continued)

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money
is material, provisions are stated at the present value of
the expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is
remote.

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to it and that the grant will be
received.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and
recognised in profit or loss over the period to match
them with the costs they are intended to compensate.

Government grants that become receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or
for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to
the Group with no future related costs are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether
the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed
where the customer has both the right to direct the use
of the identified asset and to obtain substantially all of
the economic benefits from that use.

(i) Aslessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s)
and non-lease component(s), the Group has
elected not to separate non-lease components
and accounts for each lease component and any
associated non-lease components as a single lease
component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value
assets which, for the Group are primarily laptops
and office furniture. When the Group enters into
a lease in respect of a low-value asset, the Group
decides whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-
by-lease basis. The lease payments associated
with those leases which are not capitalised are
recognised as an expense on a systematic basis
over the lease term.
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As lessee (Continued)

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability
is initially recognised at the present value of the
lease payments payable over the lease term,
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined,
using a relevant incremental borrowing rate. After
initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at
amortised cost and interest expense is calculated
using the effective interest method. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or rate
are not included in the measurement of the lease
liability and hence are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-
of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs
to dismantle and remove the underlying asset
or to restore the underlying asset or the site on
which it is located, discounted to their present
value, less any lease incentives received. The right-
of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost less
accumulated impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is
reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the
underlying leased assets at the end of the lease
term are depreciated from commencement date
to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-
use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the
lease term.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

(0]

As lessee (Continued)

Refundable deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition
are considered as additional lease payments and
included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a
change in an index or rate, or there is a change in
the Group's estimate of the amount expected to
be payable under a residual value guarantee, or
there is a change arising from the reassessment
of whether the Group will be reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option. When the lease liability is remeasured in
this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do
not meet the definition of investment properties
and lease liabilities separately in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

A lease modification is accounted for as a separate
lease if

(@  the modification increases the scope of
the lease by adding the right to use one or
more underlying assets; and

(b)  the consideration for the lease increases by
an amount commensurate with the stand-
alone price for the increase in scope and
any appropriate adjustments to that stand-
alone price to reflect the circumstances of
the particular contract.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

As lessee (Continued)

When a lease modification is not accounted for as
a separate lease, at the effective date of the lease
modification,

(@  the Group allocates the consideration in the
modified contract on the basis of relative
stand-alone price as described above.

(b)  the Group determines the lease term of the
modified contract.

(0 the Group remeasures the lease liability
by discounting the revised lease payments
using a revised discount rate over the
revised lease term.

(d) for lease modifications that decrease the
scope of the lease, the Group accounts for
the remeasurement of the lease liability
by decreasing the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset to reflect the partial or
full termination of the lease and recognising
any gain or loss relating to the partial or full
termination of the lease in profit or loss.

(e)  for all other lease modifications, the Group
accounts for the remeasurement of the
lease liability by making a corresponding
adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

The Group has applied the practical expedient
provided in Amendments to HKFRS 16: COVID-
19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June
2021 and does not assess whether eligible rent
concessions occurring as a direct consequence of
the COVID-19 pandemic are lease modification.
The Group accounts for any change in lease
payments resulting from the rent concession
the same way it would account for the change
applying HKFRS 16 if the change were not a lease
modification.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

(0]

(ii)

ZEZ—FF Annual Report 2021

As lessee (Continued)

The practical expedient applies only to rent
concessions occurring as a direct consequence
of the COVID-19 pandemic and only if all of the
following conditions are met:

(@)  the change in lease payments results in
revised consideration for the lease that is
substantially the same as, or less than, the
consideration for the lease immediately
preceding the change;

(b) any reduction in lease payments affects
only payments originally due on or before
30 June 2022; and

(c)  there is no substantive change to other
terms and conditions of the lease.

The Group has applied the practical expedient
consistently to all eligible rent concessions with
similar characteristics and in similar circumstances.

As lessor

The Group classifies each of its leases as either
a finance lease or an operating lease at the
inception date of the lease. A lease is classified as
a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the
underlying asset. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it
accounts for the head lease and sublease as two
separate contracts. The sublease is classified as
an operating lease if the head lease is a short-
term lease to which the Group has applied the
recognition exemption. Otherwise, the sublease
is classified as a finance or operating lease by
reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the
head lease.
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Leases (Continued)
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As lessor (Continued)

The Group accounts for each lease component
within a lease contract as a lease separately from
non-lease components of the contract. The Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each
lease component on a relative stand-alone price
basis.

As lessor — operating lease

The Group applies the derecognition and
impairment requirements in HKFRS 9 to the
operating lease receivables.

A modification to an operating lease is accounted
for as a new lease from the effective date of the
modification, considering any prepaid or accrued
lease payments relating to the original lease as
part of the lease payments for the new lease.

Employee benefits

(i
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Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as
a result of services rendered by employees up to
the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

The Group operates various post-employment
schemes, including defined contribution pension
plans.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii) Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by
the Group and employees are calculated as a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The
retirement benefit scheme cost charged to profit
or loss represents contributions payable by the
Group to the funds.

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier
of the dates when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits, and when
the Group recognises restructuring costs and
involves the payment of termination benefits.

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to
certain directors and employees.

Equity-settled share-based payments to directors and
employees are measured at the fair value (excluding the
effect of non-market based vesting conditions) of the
equity instruments at the date of grant. The fair value
determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-
based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period, based on the Group's estimate
of shares that will eventually vest and adjusted for the
effect of non-market based vesting conditions.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in other reserve will be
transferred to accumulated losses.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not
ultimately vest, except for awards that are conditional on
a market condition or non-vesting condition is satisfied,
provided that all non-market vesting conditions are
satisfied. Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it
is treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation,
and any expense not yet recognised for the award is
recognised immediately. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and designated as
a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the
cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a
modification of the original award, as described above.

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised
in profit or loss because of items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses or unused tax
credits can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset
to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except when it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable
to the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies
HKAS 12 requirements to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities separately. Temporary differences relating to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are not recognised
at initial recognition and over the lease terms due to
application of the initial recognition exemption.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the
Group.

(@ A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of the holding
company of the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
holding company, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.
If the Group is itself such a plan, the
sponsoring employers are also related to the
Group.

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a holding company of the entity).

the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
holding company of the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity and include:

(@)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(b)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(c)  dependants of that person or that person’s spouse
or domestic partner.

In the definition of a related party, an associate includes
subsidiaries of the associate and a joint venture includes
subsidiaries of the joint venture.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to Group’s most senior executive management
for the purpose of allocating resources to, and assessing
the performance of, the Group's various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individual material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Segment reporting (Continued)

Operating segments are reported in @ manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker (“CODM"). The Company’s
executive directors and the chief executive officer, who
are responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, have been
identified as the CODM that make strategic decisions.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell
the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in
the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the
absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous
market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the
use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use
of unobservable inputs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of
the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,
which are described as follows:

inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities that the entity can access
at the measurement date;

. Level 1

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that
are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the

asset or liability.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
consolidated financial statements on a recurring
basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at
the end of each reporting period.
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5.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTIES AND CRITICAL
ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and assumptions concerning the future
and judgements are made by the management of
the Group in the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements. They affect the application of
the Group's accounting policies, reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses, and disclosures
made. They are assessed on an on-going basis and are
based on experience and relevant factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. Where appropriate,
revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period of revision and future periods, in case the revision
also affects future periods.

(i)  Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(@) Useful lives of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and
intangible asset

The management of the Group determines
the estimated useful lives of the Group's,
property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets and intangible assets based on
the historical experience of the actual useful
lives of the relevant assets of similar nature
and functions. The estimated useful lives
could be different as a result of technical
innovations which could affect the related
depreciation/amortisation included in profit
or loss.

RRIHSTEMIZERARAT Christine International Holdings Limited

129



130

A BRRNE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-ZZT-—F+=-A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

5. A THRERZZTERFEREKRS 5.
H i (&)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTIES AND CRITICAL

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

(Continued)
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equipment, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets and intangible assets are stated
at costs less accumulated depreciation/
amortisation, and any impairment losses. In
determining whether an asset is impaired,
the Group has to exercise judgements and
make estimations, particularly in assessing:
(1) whether an event has occurred or any
indicators that may affect the asset value; (2)
whether the carrying value of an asset can
be supported by the recoverable amount,
in the case of value-in-use, the net present
value of future cash flows which are
estimated based upon the continued use
of the asset; and (3) the appropriate key
assumptions to be applied in estimating the
recoverable amounts including cash flow
projections and an appropriate discount
rate. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset
(including right-of-use assets), the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the
CGU to which the assets belongs. Changing
the assumptions and estimates, including
the discount rates or the growth rate in
the cash flow projections, could materially
affect the net present value used in the
impairment test.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTIES AND CRITICAL

() T EERRZEZEZRER(E)

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

(i) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(Continued)

() FEHEEEBBEZERREE () Loss allowance for ECL
REEEEEREE S BUGRIENEER The management of the Group estimates
BiasE S ERFIBERHREEBENER the loss allowance for ECL on trade
BE-ERERCEESEBEANBERE receivables based on the credit risk of
CRRBEENENASENMBEHE trade receivables. The amount of the loss
enERAEEBHERMNMERSRE allowance based on ECL model is measured
ZHEMEBTE VIRVARRRETH as the difference between all contractual
ERMEREE - WARRRSRELHRIER cash flows that are due to the Group in
SAFERBEREST T A& accordance with the contract and all the
EAREEREE cash flows that the Group expects to

receive, discounted at the effective interest
rate determined at initial recognition. Where
the future cash flows are less than expected,
or being revised downward due to changes
in facts and circumstances, a material loss
allowance may arise.

(d) REEER®E (d) Allowance for slow-moving inventories
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Allowance for slow-moving inventories is
made based on the ageing and estimated
net realisable value of inventories. The
assessment of the allowance amount
involves judgements and estimates. Where
the actual outcome in future is different
from the original estimate, such difference
will impact the carrying value of inventories
and allowance charge/write-back in the
period in which such estimate has been
changed.
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UNCERTAINTIES AND CRITICAL
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ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

(i) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(Continued)

(e) FifEH (e) Income taxes
REBBERZERERRBNAER 5 The Group is subject to income taxes in
RIAGHBERBELDERN G -RAE several jurisdictions. Significant estimates
¥BBRPERSREBERRHTIEZR are required in determining the provision for
GRFE MR EEENRET BT BN income taxes. There are many transactions
BVMARSREEMTR ZSZ8 KT E and calculations for which the ultimate
TIAEEE AN PTG B0 R AE R I 1 4 - tax determination is uncertain during the

ordinary course of business. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred tax provisions in
the period in which such determination is
made.

(h HEHEEEFMANBERE-—EREEAA ()  Discount rates for calculating lease
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liabilities — as lessee

The Group uses the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rates to discount future lease
payments since interest rates implicit in
the leases are not readily determinable.
In determining the discounts rates for its
leases, the Group refers to a rate that is
readily observable as the starting point
and then applies judgement and adjusts
such observable rate to determine the
incremental borrowing rate.
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UNCERTAINTIES AND CRITICAL

(i) FEREEBUEREE LA E X H

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

(i)  Critical judgements made in applying
accounting policies

(a) BHELEERE (a) Going concern basis
REEMBMEDIRSELCEEERR These consolidated financial statements
HEBERMBUAR AR EE S HERKINE R have been prepared on a going concern
AV BmERNA2AMAEEEG EH basis, the validity of which depends upon
MEREELERERE- the Group's ability to obtain adequate

financing and generate operating cash
flows through the successful fulfilment of
the measures as described in note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements.

(b) EEHEH (b) Determining the lease term
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In determining the lease term at the
commencement date for leases that include
renewal options exercisable by the Group,
the Group evaluates the likelihood of
exercising the renewal options taking into
account all relevant facts and circumstances
that create an economic incentive for the
Group to exercise the option, including
favourable terms, leasehold improvements
undertaken and the importance of that
underlying asset to the Group's operation.

Generally, periods covered by an extension
option in other properties leases have not
been included in the lease liability because
the Group could replace the assets without
significant cost or business disruption.

The lease term is reassessed when there

EEHREHTAEERES - BIFERT is a significant event or significant change
(EEisR:ER in circumstance that is within the Group's
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control.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and
interest rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group's financial performance.

(@) Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign
currency risk as most of its business transactions,
assets and liabilities are principally denominated
in the functional currencies of the Group entities,
RMB. The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy in respect of foreign
currency transactions, assets and liabilities. The
Group monitors its foreign currency exposure
closely and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.
The foreign currency risk is not significant to the
Group.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not
meet its obligations under a financial instrument or
customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The
Group is exposed to credit risk from its operating
activities (primarily trade and other receivables and
amounts due from related companies) and from
its financing activities, including deposits with
banks and financial institutions, foreign exchange
transactions and other financial instruments.
The Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from
cash and cash equivalents is limited because the
counterparties are banks and financial institutions
with high credit-rating assigned by international
credit-rating agencies, for which the Group
considers to have low credit risk.
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6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(b)
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Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables

Most of the Group's sales are conducted in cash
or prepaid by customers. The Group's trade
receivables are primarily due from department
stores and cash consumer card issuers.

Customer credit risk is managed by each business
unit subject to the Group's established policy,
procedures and control relating to customer credit
risk management. Individual credit evaluations
are performed on all customers requiring credit
over a certain amount. These evaluations focus on
the customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and take into
account information specific to the customer as
well as pertaining to the economic environment
in which the customer operates. Trade receivables
are due within 30 to 60 days from the date of
billing. Debtors with balances that are more than
3 months past due are requested to settle all
outstanding balances before any further credit
is granted. Normally, the Group does not obtain
collateral from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
which is calculated using a provision matrix.
As the Group’s historical credit loss experience
does not indicate significantly different loss
patterns for different customer segments, the loss
allowance based on past due status is not further
distinguished between the Group's different
customer bases.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

The following table provides information about the
Group's exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade
receivables, at the end of the reporting period:

—EB-—F
2021

FAAEEE FREEAE BEEE

Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
% AR FT AR FT
% RMB’000 RMB’000
BUER (R HA) Current (not past due) = 3,103 =
BmHI0E30K 0 to 30 days past due - 103 -
#mHI31 =60k 31 to 60 days past due - 10 -
#mHI61 =90k 61 to 90 days past due - = =
#HA91E 180K 91 to 180 days past due - - =
B BR R 180K Over 180 days past due 100% 1,100 1,100
4,316 1,100

—ECEF

2020

TAEAE R % FREEAE BERE

Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
% AREFT AREFT
% RMB'000 RMB’000
BIHER (R H) Current (not past due) = 4,534 =
BmHI0E30K 0 to 30 days past due = 130 =
BHA31E60K 31 to 60 days past due = 93 =
BHA61E 90K 61 to 90 days past due = 349 =
BHI91 = 180K 91 to 180 days past due - - =
B HAE 180K Over 180 days past due 100% 1,100 1,100
6,206 1,100
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(b)
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Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss
experience over the past 1 year. These rates are
adjusted to reflect differences between economic
conditions during the period over which the
historic data has been collected, current conditions
and the Group's view of economic conditions over
the expected lives of the trade receivables.

No loss allowances was charged/credited to
profit or loss during the year ended 31 December
2021.
the loss allowances to the consolidated financial

There were no significant movements in

statements during the years ended 31 December
2021 and 2020.

At 31 December 2021, the Group has no other
significant concentration of credit risk (2020: Nil),
with exposure spread over a large number of
counterparties and customers.

It has policies in place to ensure that sales are
made to customers with an appropriate credit
history.

Other financial assets measured at amortised
cost

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost
include bank balances and cash, other receivables,
amounts due from a related company and
deposits.

RRIHSTEMIZERARAT Christine International Holdings Limited
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6.

BHEBRER (8)

(b)

©

—T=—F4F3 Annual Report 2021

FERRE (&)

BRBEBLITENEMESREE (B)

AEEMRARBERATENEGEREEN
BRBEEEEERRE Bt BAER ZEE
BREERNI2EAEMEEER - ASEEEE
R AEERAREBHERAGTENEREED
REEERR RRRERBOXERHFIAS
BAREINERARTEENREREBET-

AEBEREEFNG BENREBABHEESE
EORERBERAHENEMEEZENEER
BB NE K - A I I 48 R

RBESER

AEBENRREEMERRKERNBERRPDES
FIAEREREARSHE REERAR
Rz RBESFLK-

6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(b)

(©

RRI##STEIBRIZRAMR AT Christine International Holdings Limited

Credit risk (Continued)

Other financial assets measured at amortised
cost (Continued)

All of the Group's other financial assets measured
at amortised cost are considered to have low credit
risk, and the loss allowance recognised during
the period was therefore limited to 12-month
ECL. The management of the Group considers
all of the Group’s financial assets measured at
amortised cost to be low credit risk as they have
a low of default and the counterparties have a
strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow
obligations in the near term.

The management of the Group has assessed
that the ECL for these financial assets carried at
amortised cost were insignificant under 12-month
ECL method and therefore no provision was
recognised.

Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet

its liquidity requirements in the short and longer
term.
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6.

MEREBER (&) 6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(0 HRBELERER (&) (0  Liquidity risk (Continued)
REBETECHABABRANAMBERESRR The maturity analysis based on contractual
I EIER AT - undiscounted cash flows of the Group’s non-

derivative financial liabilities is as follows:
RERY BHRER
RER 1826 285 REREAE REE
Total
On demand contractual
or within Between Between undiscounted Carrying
1 year 1to 2 years 2 to 5 years cash flows Amount
AREFI AREFT AREFIT AREF AREFIT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000
R-B=-f At 31 December 2021
+=B=+-H
B REMERNTIE Trade and other payables 113,185 - - 113,185 113,185
KERER Loan from a shareholder 52,000 - - 52,000 52,000
BN BEARE Amounts due to related
companies 1,037 - - 1,037 1,037
RITIER Bank borrowings 134,250 - - 134,250 130,000
HEEE Lease liabilities 51,701 19,251 6,525 71,477 66,162
RS Dividend payable 4,708 = - 4,708 4,708
356,881 19,251 6,525 382,657 367,092
R-BZEE At 31 December 2020
+=A=t+-H
B 5 R E M ERHIE Trade and other payables 120,842 = = 120,842 120,842
BB AR FIE Amounts due to related
companies 1,597 - - 1,597 1,597
BITER Bank borrowings 103,750 - = 103,750 100,000
BEAE Lease liabilities 54,464 41,151 12,056 107,671 84,628
ERRE Dividend payable 4,708 - = 4,708 4,708
285,361 41,151 12,056 338,568 311,775
(d) F=mEb (d) Interest rate risk

AEBZRERENERAREIZHRTHERR
RITERA B - ARBE 2 |RITH IR E E M5

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk primarily

B RAZ DA EENEER-

ZEZ—FF Annual Report 2021

relates to bank deposits and bank borrowings.
The Group's bank deposits bear interests at fixed
interest rates and therefore are subject to fair
value interest rate risks.
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HE-ZZT-—F+=-A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2021
6. MBEBRER (&) 6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(d) FI=mEbx (&) (d) Interest rate risk (Continued)
RZZEZZFFRZZ-_—F+ZA=+—HB 'K At 31 December 2020 and 2021, the Group's
SEMNRITERREEMNELE - ERERE bank borrowings is arranged at fixed rate. In the
ANE B R B K R E H&Iﬁfﬂﬁﬁ(&&ﬁj management’s opinion, the Group does not have
#ro material interest rate risk exposure and have no

sensitivity analysis is presented.

() Mt=A=+—HzemIAEH (e) Categories of financial instruments at

31 December
—E-—F —TZTHF
2021 2020
AR¥FT ARKFIT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
EWMEE: Financial assets:
BEBEEN AT ENEREE Financial assets measured at
(RREREEREEEY) amortised costs (including cash and
cash equivalents) 76,977 139,452
SHWMAE: Financial liabilities:
BE#EENATFENEREE Financial liabilities measured at
amortised cost 367,092 311,775

H BAAREE (f  Fair values
AEEFAGEVBRARPHEREERS The carrying amounts of the Group's financial
MAENERAEERASXEN AR BEREE- assets and financial liabilities as reflected in the

ERAKBEREER

BTSSR 13T

EN=ZE2ABEBRTE=FNRENER

REBENER Y

—T=—F4F3 Annual Report 2021

RERE P BHKRMEEI9 -

RF#HSTEIBIZRAEMR AT Christine International Holdings Limited

consolidated statement of financial position
approximate their respective fair values.

Information about the Group’s fair value of
investment properties under Level 3 of the three-
level fair value hierarchy as defined under HKFRS
13 is set out in note 19 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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BHEZ

6.

BHERER (5)

(@ EBEXER

6.

AEBEAEENIEARARBASEGE
RENENREFRENERL X AFHEE

BREANEBREE-

AEBEEBHERE

RHE Y D A AR B B A

HAE - RERRAREARE AREXEH
EARRIKTORE  MBRREEEALEITH

B9 SR 88 A AR D R - BE

FR

TECERFA AT HIEFE EBEAN

BE BERIEFLEED-

REBEE AR
B BREBEITRA FEEMEERER-

LE:
FRRIBERBEDOEFLAOMESFNT

BHRADBIEA AREES

“

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(9)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern and to maintain
healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and
makes adjustments to it in light of changes
in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
dividend payment to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares or sell assets
to reduce debts. No changes were made in the
objectives, policies or processes for managing
capital during the years ended 31 December 2021
and 2020.

The capital structure of the Group consists of
equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital, reserves and loan
from a shareholder.

REVENUE

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with

customers by major products line for the year is as

follow:
—EB-—F —E-EF
2021 2020
AR¥FT AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BB HRELERFE 155 Revenue from contracts
HEAZEFEHOWE: with customers within
the scope of HKFRS 15:
—HEREERD — Sales of bakery products 292,034 403,919
W 5 72 57 BF Timing of revenue recognition
RE-—HEEBEINER Products transferred at a point in time 292,034 403,919

ZEZ—FF Annual Report 2021
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8. HMWA WmKkEiE

8. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES

—E-—F —ETHF
2021 2020
AR¥FT ARMFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
RITIF A E A Interest income on bank deposits 190 504
e 2 mEHFEHRA Imputed interest income on deposits 267 314
F B A 4258 Total interest income 457 818
BT BN (MIFE) Government grants (Note) 1,436 6,478
FEMb A& EEERES R Income on COVID-19-related
WA (BFEE21) rent concessions (Note 21) 220 4,679
R IR & EE AR A U # BY Release of asset-related government
grants 80 468
ZIEME - B E KRB Write-off of property, plant and
equipment (160) (1,315)
HEWE  BER&E 2 KE Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment 3,882 34,797
o R R B A R W as Gain on disposal of scrap and
other materials - 224
MEEEERDEECERS Write-off of deposits for purchase of
non-current assets (954) -
b X E518 25 Exchange loss, net (273) (43)
KEREERT 2HSRA Rental income under operating leases 2,114 1,074
LIFFAE Y (B18) ks (Loss) Gain on termination of leases (889) 498
HAth Others 275 (373)
6,188 47,305

B aE -

Note:

—T=—F4F3 Annual Report 2021

HE-_T-—F+-A=+—"BLEFE AEELERMH T
HBERENIEM AR EEBHUERTABNME (ZE=F
F: 4 AR 14,660,0007T) It 51 - #E H 75 B 50 P9 U E BT 4 B
#IANR¥1,436,000T (ZF =T F : #y AR ¥1,818,0007T) + FA LA
%D A B e U AT - L IE R B R AR Y o

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group has not
recognised any government grants in respect of COVID-19-related
subsidies provided by the local government authorities (2020:
approximately RMB4,660,000). Besides, government grants of
approximately RMB1,436,000 (2020: approximately RMB1,818,000)
were received from local government authorities for encouraging
production and improving technology, of which the entitlement was
unconditional.

RF#HSTEIBIZRAEMR AT Christine International Holdings Limited
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10.

TRMEEBRBEIIRFHE

CHARGE OF LOSS ALLOWANCES ON
FINANCIAL ASSETS, NET

—B-—fF —T_TF
2021 2020
AR FT ARBTFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AT RIBF R BERE: Loss allowances charged on:
— B S EWFIA — Trade receivables — 706

BE T - Fr_ZFT-_FTF+_A=+—HILFE
SRMEEBEREFBIHNEEMBREM TG (b) -

7 EHER

AEBEES AR Z2BELLEDHL - ARBNTESER
BERATESERBHBRASE BRI 2LERE
EEHRNARRSECRRERBRBZRAEDN M
TEREMEMERSERRRAHEZHEEM-
It AREEAEZFNEE D IBEF

10.

Details of loss allowances on financial assets for the
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 are set out in
note 6(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group has only one reportable operating segment.
The Company's executive directors and the chief
executive officer of the Company, review the Group as
a whole and internal reports are reported to the chief
operating decision maker including only revenue analysis
by product types and no other discretionary information
is prepared for resource allocation and performance
assessment. Therefore, no operating segment
information is presented.

—E-—F —ETZTHF
2021 2020
AR FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000

EYER Types of goods
8 N E R Bread and cakes 215,654 286,686
A&t Moon cakes 21,387 35,416
KEBh Pastries 40,638 53,914
Hh Others 14,355 27,903
292,034 403,919

ZEZ—FF Annual Report 2021
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10.

11.

12.

ZEZ—FF Annual Report 2021

TEER ()

HEER

AEEMENRS BRRAMEBER EERBEHRE N
RIpA AR B - (A 3 8 2 513 [ B Y o

REETEFEFHWE

REE-F-—FR-F-_FF+-A=+—ALF
B rmE-ESERAREAKER10% -

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Geographical information

All of the Group’s revenue, loss before tax, assets and
liabilities were derived from or located in the PRC, and
therefore no geographical information is presented.

Revenue from major customers

No single customer contributed over 10% of the total
revenue of the Group for the years ended 31 December
2021 and 2020.

A& A 11. FINANCE COSTS
—EB-—fF —E-FEF
2021 2020
AR FT ARKFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
HEABRNERE Interest expenses on lease liabilities 5,361 7,913
IRITE KA B Interest expenses on bank borrowings 5,862 1,639
11,223 9,552
FRrEH (ER)BRX 12. INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSE
—E_—F —ETF
2021 2020
AR FT ARMFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
RIHARS 18 Current tax
FARE-—F Provision for the year — PRC - 581
BEFE (GBEEE)BETE  (Over) Under-provision in prior years (2,287) 79
(2,287) 660

HRAEBRBE-_T-_—GFR-_ZT-_TF+=A
ST-HALEEEERBEARBERR RALEREE
SRR

PR B EMASHIEBE5% (BB :25%) 5
REE-

Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided for as the
Group incurred a loss for taxation purpose in Hong Kong
for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been provided at a rate
of 25% (2020: 25%).

RF#HSTEIBIZRAEMR AT Christine International Holdings Limited
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—F+=A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

s (ER) X ()

BIBEPBECEMGHE IEREEBARIIELER
—EE)N\F— A — BEBREAEF oK & R S SR
10% B TEH TS HH o

Hiptla 2 ERBUEN 2 REHVIRBASERE
EBZR 2REED 2B NE  RERTHENE -

Frisfi (%) A BB AIEBSERASHGE AER
HRAGERE RN T

Frig®t (R) FX 2 HiR

12.

INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSES
(Continued)

Pursuant to the PRC law on Enterprise Income Tax,
10% withholding income tax will be levied on foreign
investors for dividend distribution from foreign invested
enterprises’ profit earned after 1 January 2008.

Tax charge on profits assessable elsewhere has been
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates, based on existing legislation,
interpretation and practices in respect thereof.

The reconciliation between the income tax (credit)
expense and the loss before tax multiplied by the income
tax rate applicable to respective tax jurisdictions is as
follows:

Recondiliation of income tax (credit) expense

—E-—F ZTEF
2021 2020
AR¥FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BRELRTEE Loss before tax (172,412) (109,711)
REDBAAERERRE Tax calculated at the rates applicable
FTEMTIE to respective tax jurisdictions (43,103) (27,422)
DAFRHBANH IS L Tax effect of income that is not taxable (1,210) (3,016)
TAMBRZ O S E Tax effect of expenses that are
not deductible 11,135 2,682
AERGRHEZENRETE Tax effect of temporary differences
not recognised 239 (1,019)
RERBEBEENRGEEE Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 32,939 29,356
BEFE (HBEEE)EETL  (Over) Under-provision in prior years (2,287) 79
Fris®i (Fe)Mx Income tax (credit) expense (2,287) 660

ZEZ—FF Annual Report 2021
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13.

—T=—F4F3 Annual Report 2021

FRBE

13. LOSS FOR THE YEAR

REBZ FREBIENR (GFA) R TREEZZS: The Group's loss for the year is stated after charging
(crediting) the following:
—EB-—fF —TTF
2021 2020
AR FT AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
B EEHH Amortisation of intangible assets
(GtATHE kD #HERAX] & (including in “Selling and distribution
[fTEEZ ] (@A) expenses” and “Administrative
expenses”, as appropriate) 868 1,011
REMENE Depreciation of investment properties 1,352 878
Y B REETE Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment 20,403 27,374
FREEETE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 56,433 81,355
ZIEME  BE KR Write-off of property,
plant and equipment 160 1,315
HEWE  BERZE 2K Gain on disposal of property,
Plant and equipment (3.882) (34,797)
HHHEERA Short-term lease charges
—-HETEME — Rented retail outlets 19,663 39,224
BIA(BEEEHM) Staff costs (Including directors’
remuneration)
—¥& TEARER — Salaries, bonuses and allowances 131,714 166,384
—RRBAIFTEIME K (FisEa) — Retirement benefits scheme
contributions (Note a) 31,788 22,867
163,502 189,251
ZE R & Auditor’s remuneration
— BB — Audit services 1,520 1,400
—IEEZLIRTE — Non-audit services 180 =
BEEFERAN (MisEb) Cost of inventories sold (Note b) 169,118 242,229
TREEBERETIREE Charge of loss allowances on financial
assets, net - 706
FRAEEEREEIRE Impairment losses on right-of-use assets 38,332 =
B aE - Note:
(a) REZBEZ—FR-ZZ-TF+-_A=+—H AEETE (a) At 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group had no forfeited
B MR AT R R R FE RR K S FH Bt contributions available to reduce its contribution to the
pension schemes in future years.
b) EBEFERABEIXNAN WEREKZHEEREARK D (b)  Cost of inventories sold includes staff costs, depreciation and

BARMEA1,118,0007T (Z B -TF : ) AR #65,137,000
JL)  EAERI B R FREEE

operating lease charges of approximately RMB41,118,000
(2020: approximately RMB65,137,000) which are included in
the amounts disclosed separately.

RRI##STEIBRIZRAMR AT Christine International Holdings Limited
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14. EERABEX

14. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES

—E-—F —ETF
2021 2020
AR¥TT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EERMAX Employee benefits expense:
e TEA RoERL Salaries, bonuses and allowances 131,714 166,384
RIREFFT IR (HEE16) Retirement benefit scheme
contributions (Note 16) 31,788 22,867
163,502 189,251

TEREFMAL

HE-_T-_—F+_A=+—BLFE FA£ERE
BERFMATHIEESE (S _SF WEEE)
HEFMRGRE M EREWFISE 56D 7 Rk - &
THE(ZEZZF AA) A ATHHFIHESIOT

Five highest paid individuals

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the five
highest paid individuals in the Group included no
director (2020: no director) whose emoluments are
reflected in the analysis presented in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements. The emoluments of
the remaining 5 (2020: 5) individuals are set out below:

—E-—F —E-EF

2021 2020

AR¥FT ARMFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

e BoERL Salaries and allowances 1,935 1,999
1B TEAL Discretionary bonus = =
RORAEFIFT B3 Retirement benefit scheme contributions 222 =
2,157 1,999

ZT = —FFW Annual Report 2021 RRIASTEIBRIZRAMR AT Christine International Holdings Limited
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14. EERBABEX (E) 14. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES

(Continued)
AEBESEFMAL (E) Five highest paid individuals (Continued)
BN FATEE: The emoluments fell within the following band:
AE
Number of individuals
—E=-—F —ZETF
2021 2020
T E1,000,00078 7T Nil to Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$")
1,000,000 5 5

HE-_Z - FR-_FT-_FTFF_A=+—HILFE"
AEEBERAAE &SNS AT AERN MM -
YER A = B o A AN 5 B 12 1) 52 sk 1E R B R
B-BE_ZT_—FK-_Z_TF+_A=+—RHIF
FE HEEEAAEEaME AT HEXRENRE
E ] B & B Z2 Bk

No emoluments were paid or payable by the Group to
the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group, or as compensation for
loss of office during the years ended 31 December 2021
and 2020. There was no arrangement under which a
director or the five highest paid individuals waived or

agreed to waive any remuneration for the years ended
31 December 2021 and 2020.

ZTZ—FFW Annual Report 2021 FRRIASTEIBRIZERAMRAT Christine International Holdings Limited
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15. EEEMNR A= 15. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS
() EENEEITEME (@) Directors’ and chief executive's emoluments
HEZZS - —F+-A=+—HLFE KQF For the year ended 31 December 2021, the
BRESRERFRRTENFHHINOT remuneration of every director and chief executive

officer of the Company is set out below:

BE-_Z-_—S+-A=+—HLFE Year ended 31 December 2021

REMALERES (FRAFLARENELR)
FRBREE BRI E
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services
as a director, whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

2R EXRIKER URG 5
e HitiE A MEBEA SFEIHR HER 2% @t
Employer's
Contributions
to a retirement
Salaries and  Discretionary benefit Share-based
Fees other benefits bonuses scheme payments Total
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT AR¥TT AR¥TT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
HiTES Executive directors
RKERE Mr. Yong Ning Zhu = = = - - -
MEEREE Mr. Ming Tien-Lin - - - - - -
ERAKE Mr. I-Sheng Chan - - - - - -

BEFI%AE (HEEh) Mr. Chien-Li Tseng (Note h) - - _ _ _ _
e 5 E (Hib) Mr. Chun Bin Xu (Note b) - = = - - -

FUTES Non-executive Directors
AR LA (HisEa) Mr. Dun-ching Hung (Note a) = = - - - -
SRBALE (H3Eh) Mr. Chi-Ming Chou (Note h) = = - - - -

BUFHTES Independent Non-executive
Directors
EEEET (HEf) Dr. Yong Jun Tang (Note ) = = - - - -
AL (MeEf) Mr. Hang Sheng Ye (Note f) = = - - - _
Bt () Ms. Hong Xue (Note ) = = - - - -
et (Fi5Ef) Ms. Xiao Yan Xu (Note f) = = - - - _
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15. EEREARRE (8) 15. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (Continued)
() EEREEIHTEME (B) (@) Directors’ and chief executive's emoluments
(Continued)
B2 -2 -2+ _-_A=1+—HBILFE &XA"A For the year ended 31 December 2020, the
BREERERATENHFMEIINT remuneration of every director and chief executive

officer of the Company is set out below:

BE_Z_ZTF+_-_A=1+—HLFE Year ended 31 December 2020

REMALERES (TRARRAIENBLE)
FriRftiRBE A E e M e
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services
as a director, whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

Hek EEXRIKEF WARRD
e Hipig s WiFTEL ATEIER b3 PN EEE
Employer's
Contributions
Salaries and Discretionary  to a retirement Share-based
Fees  other benefits bonuses  benefit scheme payments Total
AREFT AREFr ARETFT AREFT ARETFT ARETFT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
HTES Executive directors
RKERE Mr. Yong Ning Zhu = = = = = =
WAL E Mr. Ming Tien-Lin = = - . - _
BRAKE Mr. I-Sheng Chan = = = - - -
TEBLT (M) Ms. Jo-Hsien Chiang (Note c) = - - - - _

LA AE (HEEh) Mr. Chien-Li Tseng (Note h) - - - _ _ N
i (M) Mr. Chun Bin Xu (Note b)

FHTES Non-executive Directors
AR LA (Kita) Mr. Dun-ching Hung (Note a) - - - _ _ _
SRR LA (FaEh) Mr. Chi-Ming Chou (Note h) = - - - - _
AEXEE (Kig) Mr. Weiguang Shi (Note g) = = = - - _

BUFHTES Independent Non-executive
Directors
BNz T (M) Ms. Wanwen Su (Note ) - - - - _ _
BREE (HiEd) Mr. Chen Zhou (Note d) - - - - _ _
LR E (Miete) Mr. Huai Jiang (Note e) = - - - - _

R LT (Misre) Ms. Ming Hua Chen (Note ) = - - A _ _
BEBEEEL (M) Dr. Yong Jun Tang (Note f) = = - - - _
Sk (FEf) Mr. Hang Sheng Ye (Note f) = = - - - _
BTt (PHEES) Ms. Hong Xue (Note ) = - - . _ _
Rt (FisEf) Ms. Xiao Yan Xu (Note f) = - - - _ _
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15. EEEARAE (B)

(a)

EERERUTEME (B)

M EE

(a)

EXATRATEEOME I RAREES

HBBREE T _TSFRA-+_HEHAES
gxE-

BREWRER S _TFRA-T_ARZEIRE
EEIF - BANEEE T _TFENA=TAK
TRETERRATE IR _Z_TF+tA=HH
BUFNTERHIRPITES -

A—E-EFRNAZTH IERKTRENTE
ERBEXK T REBIFRTES-

FARAEENR-_ZE-_ZF=A+=HEHMEBIIFNT

Bxo

THEEERRAELTR_T_TF=A=1+—H
BRERBUFNTES BITELEERRAEL
TR -EFA=TRREBLIENTES-

BEEEHL EMELE BALTRERM LT
R_F_FFLAZHEZERBIUIFRNTES-

ARXEER-_Z_ZFN\ATHRBEFNTE
=.

BRFILLEREBAEEN - F-—F— A=+
ABHERITEERFNTES

LFIN/NE]

RAEEEEH BB XA -

15. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (Continued)

(a)

ZZT = —FF4 Annual Report 2021

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(Continued)

Notes:

(@

(b)

Mr. Dun-ching Hung was resigned from his position
as the chairman of the board with effect from
22 May 2020.

Mr. Chun Bin Xu was appointed as the chairman of
the board with effect from 22 May 2020. Mr. Chun
Bin Xu has temporally acted as the chief executive
officer with effect from 30 June 2020 and was re-
designated from an independent non-executive
director to an executive director on 3 July 2020.

Ms Jo-Hsien Chiang retired as an executive director
and Ms. Wanwen Su retired as an independent non-

executive director on 30 June 2020.

Mr. Chen Zhou was resigned as an independent non-
executive director on 13 March 2020.

Mr. Huai Jiang and Ms. Ming Hua Chen were
appointed as an independent non-executive director
on 31 March 2020 and Mr. Huai Jiang and Ms. Ming
Hua Chen retired as an independent non-executive
director on 30 June 2020.

Dr. Yong Jun Tang, Mr. Hang Sheng Ye, Ms. Hong
Xue and Ms. Xiao Yan Xu were appointed as an
independent non-executive director on 3 July 2020.

Mr. Weiguang Shi resigned as a non-executive
director on 15 August 2020.

Mr. Chien-Li Tseng and Mr. Chi-Ming Chou
were resigned as an executive director and an

non-executive director on 24 January 2022.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above

were for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and
the Group.
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15. EEEARAE (B)

15. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF

DIRECTORS (Continued)
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Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(Continued)

The emoluments of the non-executive directors
and independent non-executive directors shown
above were for their services as directors of the
Company.

No emoluments were paid or payable by the
Group to the directors of the Company as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or
as compensation for loss of office during the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. There was
no arrangement under which a director waived
or agreed to waive any remuneration during the
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

Loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in
favour of directors

There are no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings
in favour of the directors of the Company that
were entered into or subsisted during the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Except the related party transactions disclosed in
note 44 to the consolidated financial statements,
no significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Group's business to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was
a party and in which the directors of the Company
and the directors’ connected party had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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16.

17.
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16. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

17.

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme
(the “MPF Scheme"”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all qualifying
employees in Hong Kong. The Group’s contributions to
the MPF Scheme are calculated at 5% of the salaries
and wages subject to a monthly maximum amount of
contribution of HK$1,500 per employee and vest fully
with employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries established
in the PRC are members of a central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute certain percentage
of the employees’ basic salaries and wages to the
central pension scheme to fund the retirement benefits.
The local municipal government undertakes to assume
the retirement benefits obligations of all existing and
future retired employees of these subsidiaries. The
only obligation of these subsidiaries with respect to
the central pension scheme is to meet the required
contributions under the scheme.

To support the PRC entities under COVID-19, starting
from February 2020 to December 2020, the relevant
PRC government authorities have given certain
temporary reliefs to entities incorporated in the PRC to
exempt from payment of certain amount of levies on the
central pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. There were no such temporary reliefs in
2021.

At 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group had
no forfeited contributions available to reduce its
contribution to the pension schemes in future years.

DIVIDENDS

The directors of the Company did not recommend
payment of any final dividend for the year ended
31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).
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18. BREE 18. LOSS PER SHARE
RRBER AR RERREEEE TR T ISR The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
FE attributable to the owners of the Company is based on
the following:
—E-—F —E-THF
2021 2020
AR FT AR Fr
RMB’000 RMB’000
= Loss:
ARETEEREARLEE Loss for the year for the purpose of
BBz FRNEE calculating basic and diluted loss per share (170,125) (110,371)
—E-—F —ETF
2021 2020
Fi FAE
‘000 ‘000
RGEE : Number of shares:

AR EERERREE Weighted average number of ordinary shares
B8 2 T AR N T B for the purpose of calculating basic and

diluted loss per share 1,010,188 1,010,188
BREBE-ZZS-—FRkZFE-TF+ZA=+—H1t Diluted loss per share is the same as basic loss per share
FETERELESTER WEREEHEREEGRE as there were no dilutive potential ordinary shares during
REHEARR o the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.
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19. REYXE

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

—E-—F —E_FTF
2021 2020
AR FT ARMFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000

REEZHE Reconciliation of carrying amounts
R & B9 At the beginning of the reporting period 15,786 =

BWE BWEMREER Transfer from property, plant and

(MF5E20) equipment (Note 20) = 12,789
B AR EESEE (H5E21)  Transfer from right-of-use assets (Note 21) = 3,875
e Depreciation (1,352) (878)
RI|BEHR At the end of the reporting period 14,434 15,786
DN Cost 35,240 35,240
RIEWE Accumulated depreciation (20,806) (19,454)
RIBEHR At the end of the reporting period 14,434 15,786
AREE Fair values 47,800 47,800

RBEE-Z-_ZF+_A=+—HIEE AE£EE
BEAEAEESFASE TEFHRIAS At FE
BEHARE16,664000LNEFERBAREEEAY
¥ BEMEEARERREEEN D EEREDME-

RZEZ—F+ZA=+—H BEMEREMLRF
BEMmETEF 2 TOERAFHN TI18R465F (=%
ZTE19FR474F) o

RIEZ—F+ZA=+—H AEEFEEEBEHNAA
R #13,478,0000T (ZFE =F F : ) AR ¥14,657,000
TLIMEENECRTIEALRSEERRITHENE
1R (M$5¥35) -

During the year ended 31 December 2020, certain
buildings were determined by the management of
the Group to be held to earn rentals by the Group.
Accordingly, the carrying amount of approximately
RMB16,664,000 has been reclassified from property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets to
investment properties following the change in use.

At 31 December 2021, the investment properties consist
of several buildings in the PRC with remaining useful
lives ranging from 18 to 46 years. (2020: 19 to 47
years).

The Group's investment property with a carrying amount
of approximately RMB13,478,000 at 31 December 2021
(2020: approximately RMB14,657,000) was pledged to
secure banking facilities granted to the Group (Note 35).
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9. REME (&)

BRENENRAEBEBREBAMBRELERIE135EA
REN=ZRAABEBRTNE=F REVENOQ
AREBEEDREBYEXREEMETNMEESE %A
BB AR EEER BOMEMBENEMEL
MEkBEMNTEAEEELR AABERABKAER
R WEENER L ESRBERERREMR
HAEENESWABRL AR (KR %) KA
REHENHERARTS2EEEZMNTR T AR
EMEEERMAAMNEMRE UREEBERNE
EXBBEETHE UWBLERIFEENAR-

AARBEAEDENREVENES RRERZ &
RAERGYEER-

REHENHSBAFBEIRGEMHERRHMES -

BERAKENAERREERENENB RN RRKR
BREUTEXR EREERIKE BBBREMEEH
TEEBEERAEARYEERRA LR BERFERR
AEBERRENER EME-—THEZZRAREE
=Ko

19.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The fair values of investment properties are under Level
3 of the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined under
HKFRS 13. The fair values of investment properties is
based on valuations by an independent professional
valuer who hold recognised professional qualification
and has recent experience in the location and category
of property being valued. The fair value which is
estimated using income capitalisation approach by
capitalising the rental income derived from the existing
tenancies over the existing lease term at an appropriate
capitalisation rate reflects, among other things, rental
income from current leases and other assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing investment
properties under current market conditions, and is
adjusted based on separately recognised assets or
liabilities to avoid double counting assets or liabilities.

The fair value measurement was based on the highest
and best use of the investment properties, which did not
differ from their existing use.

The details of the lease income from operating leases
are set out in note 8 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Although the risks associated with rights that the Group
retains in underlying assets are not considered to be
significant, the Group employs strategies to further
minimise these risks by ensuring all contracts include
clauses requiring the lessee to compensate the Group
when a property has been subjected to excess wear-and-
tear during the lease term.
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20. X BERRE 20. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
£ER
HENEHEE - E2 BRRE "E BAERE ERIR Foh
Machinery Fixtures
Leasehold and Motor and office  Construction
improvements Buildings equipment vehicles equipment in progress Total
ARB T  ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETT AREFT AREFR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
A& Cost
RZZZZF—H—H At1January 2020 233,120 501,250 431,646 13,071 129,143 129,135 1,437,365
nE Additions 72 = 282 280 233 314 1,181
R TERK 14 B Transfer upon completion 87 128,803 = = = (128,890) =
HRERENME Transfer to investment
(Hix19) properties (Note 19) - (30,520) - - = = (30,520)
%3 Written-off - - (1,415) (2,927 (4,006) (559) (8,907)
HE Disposals - (66,963) - - = = (66,963)
NZB-THE At 31 December 2020 and
+ZA=+-Hk 1 January 2021
—Z=—-%—f—-H 233,279 532,570 430,513 10,424 125,370 - 1,332,156
NE Additions 837 = 1,159 = 94 - 2,090
%3 Written-off = = = = (1,577) = (1,577)
HE Disposal - (4,452) - - - - (4,452)
NZB-—% At 31 December 2021
+ZRA=+—8 234,116 528,118 431,672 10,424 123,887 - 1,328,217
ST ERAMERFE  Accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses
RZZ-ZTF—F—H At1January 2020 231,839 282,015 424,677 12,256 124,404 - 1,075,191
FALH Charge for the year 1,331 19,711 5,606 68 658 = 27,374
BEREREME Transfer to investment
(Hi5E19) properties (Note 19) - (17,731) - - = = (17,731)
% Written off - - (1,270) (2,532) (3,790) = (7,592)
HE Disposals - (22,600) - - = = (22,600)
NZB-TE At 31 December 2020 and
+ZRA=+—HBk 1 January 2021
—Z=—-%—-F—-H 233,170 261,395 429,013 9,792 121,272 - 1,054,642
FAXH Charge for the year 1 18,905 687 27 673 - 20,403
%8 Written off - - - - (1,417) - (1,417)
HE Disposals - (1,402) - - = = (1,402)
R-F=——F At 31 December 2021
+=A=+—AH 233,281 278,898 429,700 9,819 120,528 - 1,072,226
REE Carrying amount
RZZE-_—%F At 31 December 2021
+=A=+—-H 835 249,220 1,972 605 3,359 - 255,991
RZZZZF At 31 December 2020
+=A=+-AH 109 271,175 1,500 632 4,098 - 277,514

ZZT = —FF4 Annual Report 2021
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21.
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—F+=ZA=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

M BEREE(E)

HE-_T-_—F+_A=+—HLEFE TEEZK
HE—EZEF REHAARES932,000T (=T =
4 AR#¥80,000,0007T TRIERSKALH AR
840,0007T) °

R —F+-_A=+—H EHEHEHARE
182,850,0007T ( =& =4 : #9 AR #120,838,0007T)

20. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
completed the disposal of a building at a consideration
of approximately RMB6,932,000 (2020: RMB80,000,000
excluding the transaction costs of approximately
RMB840,000).

At 31 December 2021, approximately RMB182,850,000
of the property, plant and equipment (2020:

WE BEREHBIERAEERITERNER (M approximately RMB120,838,000) pledged as security for
FF35) ° the Group's bank borrowings (Note 35).
ERAEEE 21. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
HELi HEMHE et
Leased
Leasehold lands properties Total
ARETT ARETFT AEBTFT
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
R-_ZE-_ZTF—H—H At 1 January 2020 71,226 136,292 207,518
NE Additions - 29,106 29,106
HEBEREME Transfer to investment
properties (3,875) - (3,875)
e Depreciation (2,096) (79,259) (81,355)
WIFFE Termination of leases = (2,603) (2,603)
N=-Z gi‘f’ E"I' H At 31 December 2020 and
k2= —%—H—H 1 January 2021 65,255 83,536 148,791
NE Additions - 34,190 34,190
e Depreciation (2,002) (54,431) (56,433)
wIFHE Termination of leases = (10,979) (10,979)
REEE Impairment losses = (38,332) (38,332)
RZZEZ—F+-H=+—H At 31 December 2021 63,253 13,984 77,237

BREEEBEHARKE6,162,000T (Z T -ZTF:
4 ANER#84,628,0007T) WA REEENRARYE
13,984,0007T (= ==& Z@/\E’ﬁ%%saeoooﬁ)
BREHEAFFEHEEENETERIN HEHER
MR 25 - A EEETS ﬁHf’Hﬁ*”E’HfHﬁﬂuu

Lease liabilities of approximately RMB66,162,000
(2020: approximately RMB84,628,000) are recognised
with related right-of-use assets of approximately
RMB13,984,000 (2020: approximately R\MB83,536,000).
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants
other than the security interests in the leased assets that
are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as
security for borrowing purposes.
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21. EREEE (&)

21. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

—E-—F —E_FTF
2021 2020
AR¥FT AR FT
RMB’000 RMB'000
FREEERE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 56,433 81,355
FREESERERE Impairment losses on right-of-use assets 38,332 =
FE AR IEHEAASMEY A Income on COVID-19-related rent
concessions 220 4,679
HEBGZHNERX Interest expenses on lease liabilities
(BT A TR ERA]) (included in “Finance costs”) 5,361 7,913
B HIHEBENRE Expenses relating to short-term leases
(FEATSHERAR] (included in “Cost of sales”, “Selling
[HE RS AT R and distribution expenses” and
[fTEB ] (w@EmA) ) “ Administrative expenses”,
as appropriate) 19,663 39,224

HERSRHBBEFRHENGRE Y BHRERME3D)

NEBEE-E-—FER-_FE-_FF+-_A=+—8ILF
B AEEAHKEHNELHTEME-REANE
NFNIESF (ZE-_TF MNE10F) WE T FHFIL -
AR EREENGE BB S L BN EERRAEE -7
ErTHARTGETUMENSERE AEEKBAY
ZEEWET AN RFIBMITHRIM -

N AEBHEELEIERT T2RELERE
K ng - AEE RSN E s (REAEEE L)
METHEAA - FEBCDHEEIN —ZBFTIA UBE
AZENERGE - ZFEEVENHREL I DEAR
NREEHA EDENIBER T EBE -
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Details of total cash outflow for leases are set out in
note 39(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the
Group leases various retail outlets for its operations.
Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term ranged
from 1 to 8 years (2020: 1 to 10 years). Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide
range of different terms and conditions. In determining
the lease term and assessing the length of the non-
cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of
a contract and determines the period for which the
contract is enforceable.

In addition, the Group owns several industrial buildings
where its manufacturing facilities are primarily located
and office buildings. The Group is the registered owner
of these property interests, including the underlying
leasehold lands. Lump sum payments were made upfront
to acquire these property interests. The leasehold land
components of these owned properties are presented
separately only if the payments made can be allocated
reliably.
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EREEE (8)

HE-T-—F+-A=+—HLEFE AREEE
MBERRRE AEEEEEHASEBREXEKE S
EXBNCEERERAEMEBEE 2 TKE5EE
TR -AEERBEBRELEU 2N KWE £
(WRBEIERBDEE (PIEEEBERRCELBENY
ME-BELSE TRABEEREBREE)ZHEE
BN ZEREEMER)D2EBLEEMEMSE
FEAERARGRR ZMERS FRMBRRESRESE
REFPHAEBEEE -FMABAMMBEEXR15% (2=
g’i . 14%) ﬁ%.ﬁ%zfﬁﬁumii@ﬁnﬁ\”ﬁ/ﬁQKL\
ﬂ%%ﬁ&Z*%ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ”&ﬁ?%ﬁ%ﬁﬂ%
(ZEZTF25% )2 BEREHE - ZIERETHB
TSN RAERE .

HE-_T-_—F+_A=+-—HLFE A£HEE
BlEHAMEEERSEASBU 2T RESBERER
HE - AR E BB E 1B 4 A K #38,332,0007T °

BE_FT_FTFt-_A=+—BHLER FT5EEHE
Fﬁ%ﬁ#%%ﬁ%?i E 2 AT e & R H AR E
BERE FIREREE 2_$¢+_H:+—
IEFE AR E R -

21.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, as a result
of the unsatisfactory performance of the Group, the
management of the Group carried out a review of
the recoverable amounts of manufacturing plant and
other related assets of the Group's bakery CGU. The
recoverable amounts (considered to be the same as
the value-in-use of the CGU of the non-current assets,
including property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets and intangible assets of bakery CGU) of the
Group’s bakery CGU have been determined on the
basis of their value-in-use using discounted cash flow
method with reference to the valuation report prepared
by an independent professional valuer, Valtech Valuation
Advisory Limited. The pre-tax discount rate used was
15% (2020:
forecasts derived from the most recent financial budgets
approved by the directors of the Company for the next
five years with the residual period using the growth rate
of 2.5% (2020: 2.5%). This rate does not exceed the
average long-term growth rate for the relevant markets.

14%). The Group prepares cash flow

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
management of the Group expected that the recoverable
amount of the bakery CGU is lower than its carrying
amount and thus concluded that impairment loss of
approximately RMB38,332,000 was recognised.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
management of the Group expected that the recoverable
amount of the bakery CGU approximates its carrying
amount and thus concluded that no impairment loss was
recognised during the year ended 31 December 2020.
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22. HE 22. GOODWILL
—E-—F —ETHF
2021 2020
AR FT ARMFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
A Cost

R—A—BEk+=ZA=+—H At1January and 31 December 20,147 20,147

it REEE Accumulated impairment losses
R—A—HBE+ZA=+—H At 1 January and 31 December (20,147) (20,147)

IREE Carrying amount
R+=—A=+—8~ At 31 December

EBAMTEEZBEIRRBRIEERHNXE
REBEHZRACELEM -ZBERBNMLL
EmARATR ([FNFFEL])100% EMEL ZBE -
BECRBEFERBORE-

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated,
at acquisition, to the CGUs that are expected to benefit
from that business combination. The amount represents
the goodwill arose from the acquisition of 100% interest
in Hangzhou Danbi Foodstuff Co., Ltd (“Hangzhou
Danbi”). The goodwill was fully impaired in prior years
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. B EE 23. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
B4 [5g HEM et
Sales
Software  Trademark network Total
ANRETFrr AREFT AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
KA Cost
RZZ=—ZFF—H—H At 1 January 2020, 31 December
AR —ZZBZTER 2020 and 2021
—E-—%F
+=-A=+—H 13,608 10,635 5,860 30,103

AFtBERBEESE Accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses

R-ZZT=-_ZFF—H—H  At1January 2020 9,861 10,635 5,860 26,356
F N Amortisation for the year 1,011 = = 1,011
RZZTZTF At 31 December 2020 and

+ZA=+—HBX 1 January 2021

—E-—%F—A—H 10,872 10,635 5,860 27,367
F N Amortisation for the year 868 = = 868
RZT=Z—%F At 31 December 2021

+=-—A=+—H 11,740 10,635 5,860 28,235
REE Carrying amount
N-ZT=——%F At 31 December 2021

+-—A=+—H 1,868 - = 1,868
RZZT-TF At 31 December 2020

+=—A=+—H” 2,736 - - 2,736
BEERAIFEAFHNRG HERHEEBEAERE Software, trademark and sales network, which have
102205 #i8H - finite useful lives, are amortised on a straight-line basis

over 10 to 20 years.
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24. RB AR ZRE 24. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
RZEZ—F+ZA=+—RH KRR EMRBLQA Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December
2B 2021 are as follows:

ST BRITRER FaREDs RER/
a8 TR E B BREXFE AEPEEI TEEHR
Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ Particular of ownership interest/
registration and issued share capital and voting power/
Name operation paid up capital profit sharing Principal activities
E# B
Direct Indirect
Christine International Holdings (BVI) RERIES LERIET 100% - REER
Co., Ltd. ((AERZES]) (I%x])
British Virgin Islands Ordinary share Investment holding
("BVI") United States Dollars
("Uss") $1
ZAEREEERAH B L@MR1,0018 T - 100% REZR
Deluxe International Holdings Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share Investment holding
HK$1,001
tEERESERAH BE EAR10,0008 7T - 100% REER
Jinda International Trade Co., Ltd. Hong Kong Ordinary share Investment holding
HK$10,000
HERFAKTRRER AT HE BREX - 100% 4ERBEEREER
([LERH#T]) 12,970,000 7T
Shanghai Christine Foodstuff Co., Ltd. The PRC Paid up capital Production and sales of
("Shanghai Christine”) US$12,970,000 bakery products
HEETERRERAR HE BREXARY - 100% 4ERBEEREER
([LEETE]) 107,271,2167C
Shanghai Ji Yuan De Foodstuff Co., Ltd. The PRC Paid up capital Production and sales of
(“Shanghai Ji Yuan De") RMB107,271,216 bakery products
HEHEEMRRER AT H BREX - 100% 4ERBEEREER
AR 5,000,0007T
Shanghai Sweet Art Foodstuff Co., Ltd. The PRC Paid up capital Production and sales of
RMBS5,000,000 bakery products
HRARASTRMAERRE HE BREX - 100% 4ERBEEREER
((AR=HAT]) 54,800,000 7T
Nanjing Christine Foodstuff Co., Ltd. The PRC Paid up capital Production and sales of
(“Nanjing Christine”) US$54,800,000 bakery products

ZT = —FFW Annual Report 2021 RRIASTEIBRIZRAMR AT Christine International Holdings Limited
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24, RBARZRE (8)

24. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
EmERL BRITREAR FiEkER RER/
£ AR EEE BREXFE BRI FEXE
Place of Percentage of

incorporation/
registration and

Particular of
issued share capital and

ownership interest/
voting power/

Name operation paid up capital profit sharing Principal activities
E# %
Direct Indirect
HEEAEBERRA HE BREX - 100% 4ERBEEREER
([LEgaEa]) AR ¥30,000,0007C
Shanghai Shuanghong Bakery Co., Ltd. The PRC Paid up capital Production and sales of
(“Shanghai Shuanghong”) RMB30,000,000 bakery products
M AT HE BREX - 100% 4ERBEEREER
1,406,000 7T
Hangzhou Danbi The PRC Paid up capital Production and sales of
US$1,406,000 bakery products
MNRFRETRRER AT HE BREX - 100% 4ERBEEREER
20,000,000% 7T
Hangzhou Christine Foodstuff Co., Ltd. The PRC Paid up capital Production and sales of
S$20,000,000 bakery products
ERRHGTRRER AT HE BREXARY - 100% 4ERBEEREER
25,000,0007T
Ningbo Christine Foodstuff Co., Ltd. The PRC Paid up capital Production and sales of
RMB25,000,000 bakery products

ERANBHARERE EELRBERERYEN
B AR

R ERRKRERANEAERE HLERB LR
ERHAREE 2 EBHES-

The above list contains the particulars of subsidiaries
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities
of the Group.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
outstanding as at the end of the reporting period or at
any time during the reporting period.

ZTZ—FFW Annual Report 2021 FRRIASTEIBRIZERAMRAT Christine International Holdings Limited
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25. 78 25. INVENTORIES
—E-—F —ETHF
2021 2020
AR¥TT AREFor
RMB’000 RMB’000
UES Raw materials 11,639 14,466
IR i Finished goods 5,284 5,945
16,923 20,411

26. E5 K HMEWRIEA

26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

—EB-—F BT
2021 2020
BT AR T T ARETFr
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B S rRE Trade receivables 4,316 6,206
B TEHEEEERE Less: allowance for ECL (1,100) (1,100)
() 3,216 5,106
E b fE W SR IE Other receivables (b) 48,376 61,183

TEMEZENHEEREA Prepaid lease payments for
retail outlets 411 1,852
SEENE s Prepayments 4,568 3,602
53,355 66,637

B 5k EAM R RIBBRE Total trade and other

receivables 56,571 71,743

ZZT = —FF4 Annual Report 2021
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26. E5 RHEMBWRE(E)

AEE-RETEERERBTHFHEERNTF30
E60K R HERBITANTFHEEMRIR0K-
MEPBTAXNEANT - AEEROREREZER
B M EUGRIE - R A B EEE M B eR -

() HEREHMZINZEZRWFOR (MKBBEE
EBRZEBREE) ZRBRITIT

26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLE
(Continued)

The Group generally allows an average credit period
ranged from 30 to 60 days for department stores
and supermarkets, and 30 days for cash consumer
card issuers. For new customers, payment in advance
is normally required. The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding receivables. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by the directors of the
Company.

(@)  The ageing analysis of trade receivables based on
the invoice date, and net of loss allowance for
ECL, is as follows:

—E-—F T -TH

2021 2020

AR¥FT AR FIT

RMB’000 RMB'000

0£30K 0 - 30 days 3,103 4,534
31E260K 31 - 60 days 103 130
61£290K 61 — 90 days 10 93
91£180K 91 - 180 days - 349
3,216 5,106

R-EB-_—F+-R=+—B EpETAeK

08 5 WAL B E Az A RE1,100,000
T (ZZEZFF : #) AR¥1,100,0007T) °

At 31 December 2021, an aggregate allowance
was made for estimated irrecoverable trade
receivables of approximately RMB1,100,000 (2020:
approximately RMB1,100,000).

—T=—F4F3 Annual Report 2021

BHEEBEBREGBZHEK:

Reconciliation of loss allowance for ECL:

—B-—fF —ZT_TF

2021 2020

AR¥FT ARETFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

w—A—H At 1 January 1,100 394
FRFHRE HEKFKIEZ Charge of loss allowance on

R R trade receivables for the year = 706

W+—A=+—H At 31 December 1,100 1,100

AEBEEZRWHRZREENKAREE

RF#HSTEIBIZRAEMR AT Christine International Holdings Limited

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade

receivables are denominated in RMB.
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26.

27.

—F+=A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

BEZRHEMEWRRKE (E)
) W-BZ—F+ZA=+—A HmKKE

a%m BB E=ZFEHMBR EAEBELY
B ARYA40,100,000c (ZZE =T F : HARK
60,000,0007T) - ZEFIERIFEFHMNE 2R
,,ﬁz?%’ém:éii% AN BA R B —RBHITESFY

SR ER BRI BAREDARE APEE
%w&z@o

BITEREES
RITHEBNZREARZIBITHIGF R BRI IEE

26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLE

(Continued)

(b)  Included in other receivables was an advance
made to an independent third party with a
carrying amount of approximately RMB40,100,000
at 31 December 2021 (2020: approximately
RMB60,000,000). The amount due was non-
trade in nature, interest-free and repayable on
demand. In addition, the advance was guaranteed
by an executive director of the Company, and the
amount due was fully recovered subsequent to the
reporting date.

27. BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances are carrying interest at prevailing market

FASEERYEEEHECRITEREKRSH T rate at the end of each reporting period and the bank
balances and cash that are not denominated in the
functional currency of the relevant group entries are as
follows:

—E-—F —ETZTHF

2021 2020

AR FT AT

RMB’000 RMB’000

BT HK$ 5,986 8,101
ET us$ 775 862

RZEZ—F+_A=+—8 FHRRFEERNIRT
ZIRITHE S B AR 750,000 (ZE T F 4
AR#52,666,0007T) - ARKE KA INEBETHEH
OMEBIZIEH) K (AEE - SERMIEFTEEG) M
FIE °

ZEZ—FF Annual Report 2021

At 31 December 2021, the bank balances that
were placed with banks in the PRC amounted to
approximately RMB9,750,000 (2020: approximately
RMB52,666,000). Conversion of RMB into foreign
currencies is subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement,
Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations.

RRIHSTEMIZERARAT Christine International Holdings Limited
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BE-T-—Ft-A=+-B1t

& For the year ended 31 December 2021

28. IR 28. SHARE CAPITAL
—E--F —ETF
2021 2020
BirEE K& H
(FR) AREFrx (F&) AREFT
Number Number
of share of share
‘000 RMB’000 ‘000 RMB'000
EE Authorised:
FAREE0.0000178 LAY Ordinary shares of
LR HK$0.00001 each
»t+=-A=+—8H At 31 December 10,000,000 100 10,000,000 100
BEITRER: Issued and fully paid:
AR EE0.0000178 7T HY Ordinary shares of
LR HK$0.00001 each
»t+=-A=+—8H At 31 December 1,010,188 8 1,010,188 8
29. AR RMBMRRKRRFEE B 29. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE
COMPANY
BRIBEB RGO 2 HERE  ARBH BT K Pursuant to the disclosure requirement of the Hong

HERDHIIMT

—T=—F4F3 Annual Report 2021

Kong Companies Ordinance, the statement of financial
position of the Company and the movement in its
reserves is set out below:

RF#HSTEIBIZRAEMR AT Christine International Holdings Limited
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29.

ERAHBRRR R EEES (B)

29. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

A B BAR R R Statement of financial position of the Company
—E=-—F —ETF
2021 2020
[{hg=a AR¥T T ARETFr
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
IREBEE Non-current assets
NG -3 Interests in subsidiaries 24 225,405 225,405
REBEE Current assets
b fE W SR IE Other receivables 142 142
JEW —KEF:E R RFRIE Amounts due from a related
company 29(a) 234 234
RITRIN B 5% Bank and cash balances 7,131 9,770
7,507 10,146
REBAE Current liabilities
H e3R8 Other payables 600 600
FEf —K M B AR FKIB Amount due to a subsidiary 29(b) 4,708 4,708
5,308 5,308
RBEEEE Net current assets 2,199 4,838
EEZRE NET ASSETS 227,604 230,243
BEERR#E Capital and reserves
[N Share capital 28 8 8
i Reserves 29(c) 227,596 230,235
ERBE TOTAL EQUITY 227,604 230,243
RARMBRABKER T - —_FOA_+HBER The statement of financial position of the Company

EZoHERRETE YARTEERRES:

mEwEE

Mr. Chun Bin Xu

Director

ZZT = —FF4 Annual Report 2021

was approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 25 April 2022 and are signed on its behalf

by:

RKBERE
Mr. Yong Ning Zhu
EE

Director

RRIHSTEMIZERARAT Christine International Holdings Limited

169



170

mEMBHRRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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29. ARAFIMBRRRREEES (B) 29.

() EH—EBEARRR

ZERUFAREER RO RARBREE-

(b) EN—EHEARRE

ZERNFARBEER RERARBREE-

© A2FFERE

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

(@ Amounts due from a related company

The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and

repayable on demand.

(b) Amounts due to a subsidiary

The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and

repayable on demand.

(© Reserve movement of the Company

B RE ZitEE st
Share Accumulated
premium losses Total
AR¥FT AREFT AR Fr
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB000
RZT-_ZTF—HF—H At 1 January 2020 311,833 (77,420) 234,413
FANEAEBELE Total comprehensive loss
for the year - (4,178) (4,178)
M-ZZ-FE+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2020 and
kZZ=Z—%—HF—H 1 January 2021 311,833 (81,598) 230,235
FRNEABEBE Total comprehensive loss
for the year - (2,639) (2,639)
R=ZB=--F+=H=+—H At31December 2021 311,833 (84,237) 227,596

30. f#E
(@ A£H

30. RESERVES

(@ Group

(b) REZMERMR
(i) KREEE
EHREEENEREENEREITARR

ZEZ—FF Annual Report 2021

AEEZFESBRREEHFEHEN
REMEEBARER MiFEERE 2’\%

&8

o‘—“

Bt FrEE A B (B o

HL

(b)

RF#HSTEIBIZRAEMR AT Christine International Holdings Limited

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and
movements therein are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income and the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i) Share premium

The balance represents the premium arising
from the issuance of the Company’s shares
at a price in excess of their par value per
share.
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HE-ZZ-—F+=-A=+—HLFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

30. f#E (B)

(b)

EEztERAR (8)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

R

FRlREEEE LERFAAR TR ST N\F
BIFERE S WIE LB T TR T8% &
BAR EBRAMGAT  EBEAER M
RRFHT 2 EGRARFEHMEL X
EEHBARRRMNREBRM EWmETZ
SEEATRRERSBRFRIHE-

Hito 8

HMHEENBRBHREREERRAX
B 1l AR 1T {68 8 PO I 1 B AR 1) BB RO X Ao
EfE-

EEBRBREE

RETBENABLEEZRER RPE
Az EROMBOMNEEEREZERER
BZEEBBHE ERBEHREZER
B R 250% B IR 122 B F B A —
TR LERHHEETANBMBES
BzBE (mE) LA AR RER(LETT
7 EE R - AT 1R BB A A
EERBRFEHEEERAR  REIREEA 2
FREHRETSER BT BN E AR MR
BEAR225% °

30. RESERVES (Continued)

(b)

ZEZ—FF Annual Report 2021

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Special reserve

The special reserve represents the reserve
arising from Shanghai Christine acquired
the remaining 8% interest in Shanghai Ji
Yuan De from non-controlling interest in
2008 and the paid in capital and reserve of
Shanghai Christine, Shanghai Shuanghong
and Nanjing Christine recognised as
special reserve upon completion of group
reorganisation in preparation for the listing
of the Company's shares on the Stock
Exchange.

Other reserve

Other reserve represents fair values of
outstanding share options and employee
share awards recognised as expense over
their vesting periods on a straight-line basis.

Statutory surplus reserve

Pursuant to the relevant laws and
regulations for business enterprises in the
PRC, a portion of the profits of the entities
which are registered in the PRC has been
transferred to the statutory reserve which
is restricted as to use. When the balance
of such reserve reaches 50% of the capital
of that entity, any further appropriation is
optional. The statutory surplus reserve can
be used to make up for prior year losses, if
any, and can be applied in conversion into
capital by means of a capitalisation issue.
However, when converting the statutory
surplus reserve of the PRC subsidiaries into
capital, the remaining balance of such
reserve must not be less than 25% of
the registered capital of the relevant PRC
subsidiaries.

RRIHSTEMIZERARAT Christine International Holdings Limited
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32.
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IEE WA 31. DEFERRED REVENUE
—E-—F —E-TF
2021 2020
AR¥TF T AT T
RMB’000 RMB'000
I #8 Bh — i & Government grant — current = 80

BERATNEEASE—H2ENBRARN_ZE—F
F Y B ER K BT EA A R6,245,0007T LA B H
EREREMEX A RBLA -ZEFPPHAR
#1,342,000cERIFBEREEHEZE T ——F T+ A
=+ —HEFEZBERER 828 A K%4,903,000
EELL.I%T@WQFT@%E%WEE & g
RBoMBHARESL 00T (ZE_FEF HARE
468,000 ERBE—_Z-—F+_A=+—HLF
ERPNCES

The deferred revenue arises in respect of the government
grant of approximately RMB6,245,000 in April 2010
granted to a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group in
order to compensate for the expenditures and losses
arising from the dismantlement and relocation of the
plant. Approximately RMB1,342,000 of the subsidy
was recognised in profit or loss during the year ended
31 December 2011 upon dismantlement and relocation.
The remaining RMB4,903,000 has been deferred and
would be recognised in profit or loss over the useful
lives of the relevant assets. The remaining approximately
RMB80,000 (2020: approximately RMB468,000) has
been released to profit or loss during the year ended
31 December 2021.

HESE 32. LEASE LIABILITIES
BREAESR BREEENNAE
Minimum Present value of
lease payments minimum lease payment
2§ —ZX-TF ZBZ-F <—T-X%
2021 2020 2021 2020
AR¥FT ANRETFT ARBEFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB000
—FR Within one year 51,701 54,464 45,941 50,078
B_FFEENF In the second to fifth years,
(BEEEME) inclusive 25,776 53,207 20,221 34,550
77,477 107,671 66,162 84,628
B ARRENE B Less: Future finance charges (11,315) (23,043)  FEHA N/A A NA
HEAERE Present value of lease obligations 66,162 84,628 66,162 125,204
1218 B R E BB E R Less: Amount due for settlement
FE(RRBEE within 12 months (show
B TFR) under current liabilities) (45,941) (50,078)
12 A% EEMHZIE  Amount due for settlement
after 12 months 20,221 34,550

BEEAENRKAAREE-

R-E-_—F+_A=+—HB AEHEHEEAENIN
%%’Jamiﬂfﬁsm% TE-ZTHF:935%)°

Minimum lease payments are denominated in RMB.

At 31 December 2021, the weighed average effective

interest rate for the lease liabilities of the Group was

8.10% (2020: 9.35%) per annum.

RRI##STEIBRIZRAMR AT Christine International Holdings Limited
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I E IR

R EHR  ANEEES BRI R ST AR B
BAREEENAREK722,160,000T ( Z T T4 :
#) A R #690,218,0007T ) ° B FA K 5 7 2 A~ 7] 78 8
MR EEREERBEE- RS —F+=A
=t+—B FlRERREBBZEHERAT

33. DEFERRED TAX

At the end of the reporting period the Group has
unused tax losses of approximately RMB722,160,000
(2020: approximately RMB690,218,000) available for
offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams. At 31 December 2021, the unrecognised
tax losses will be expired as follows:

—E-—F ZTZEF

2021 2020

AR¥ T ABRETFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

Year 2021 —E-—FE - 99,776
Year 2022 B _FE 104,962 104,962
Year 2023 —E-=HF 181,384 181,384
Year 2024 :;?:Pll FE 186,672 186,672
Year 2025 —E-_REFE 117,424 117,424
Year 2026 —ECOREE 131,718 =
722,160 690,218

DERF AN EHENHECENBRARE
13 076 ,0007C (ZZE=FF : ) ARME13,263,0007T)
BRDERIN -ARAREERA BAIZERH
ilJin%M—r,aﬁLE’J SEICEIRHE S BRATR R
TEEHDIR At WEREIMNEEH BIELEE-

RZE-_—F+_A=+—H8 REEFEETFTHN
REREZE FTEHRIFRDHEE (BEDE BERE
H FRAREENEREE) RESHREMERFELZ
B R B E R B B B 49 A R #5223,505,0000T (— & =
TE 4 ARM222,551,0007T) A RF - I A] 43K 8 K 2R
Sl o R TN K A] g FE R B F °] A /4K 88 B H0R
TR ER WU ERZETNREREERRETH
BEE-

ZEZ—FF Annual Report 2021

The estimated withholding tax effects on the
distribution of accumulated profits were approximately
RMB 13,076,000 (2020: approximately RMB13,263,000)
which would become payable when they are distributed.
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, these
accumulated profits, at the present time, are required
for financing the continuing operations of these entities
and no distribution would be made in the foreseeable
future. Accordingly, no provisions for additional deferred
taxation have been made.

The Group also has certain deductible temporary
differences mainly related to loss allowance and
impairment loss of non-current assets (including property,
plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible
assets) and trade and other receivables amounted to
approximately RMB223,505,000 (2020: approximately
RMB222,551,000) and available for offset against future
profit at 31 December 2021. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in relation to such deductible temporary
differences as it is not probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary
differences can be utilised.

RRIHSTEMIZERARAT Christine International Holdings Limited
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BHREE 34. CONTRACT LIABILITIES
—E-—F —ETF
2021 2020
AR¥FT ARBTFr
RMB’000 RMB’000
RETEARZLERE Billings in advance of performance obligation
—REHFREMNFR — Coupon and pre-paid cards 273,439 313,501
—HERIZER — Sales of bakery products 4,723 3,865
278,162 317,366
EREEBRERES BRERKNE RAERN mEKRE Contract liabilities relating to coupons and pre-paid

BARE ERAERESFRENREENSNAE:
HEEHGERARNANRBERATPBRASKHE

cards are recognised when the Group typically receives
full payment from customer for rights to receive

ERBRENERNEF - BEREEHERERR goods in the future. Contract liabilities relating to
NTFEPRRER- sales of bakery products are the obligations to transfer
goods to customers for which the Group has received
consideration. The respective revenue is expected to be
recognised when the goods are delivered to customers.
BREBZE Movements in contract liabilities:
—E=-F T -EF
2021 2020
AR¥FT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
n—A—H At 1 January 317,366 348,535
AFAERKREMERELN Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of
BERDFADEYIELEE  recognising revenue during the year
was included in the contract liabilities
at the beginning of the period (142,939) (183,159)
WERE 5 KRB RZ Increase in contract liabilities as a result of
TEAT FRIA R FE MU 15 EE G receipt in advance of coupon and
HEREHA M AELM pre-paid cards and sales of bakery
products 103,735 151,990
R+=ZR=+—H At 31 December 278,162 317,366
E’\\: S F+ A=+ RH HEBEREIT (K The amount of transaction price allocated to

APRBT)BHNETNRZERSCENBARYE
278162 000 (ZEZZF: 99 AR %317,366,000
JT) E R ARME121,609,000C (ZE-ZF HA
R #5138,495,0007T) I #9 A R #156,553,0007T (=&
TEEHARK178,871,0007T) FEE A BIR —F
AR —F AR R AU -

the performance obligations that are unsatisfied
(or partially unsatisfied) at 31 December 2021
is approximately RMB278,162,000 (2020:
approximately RMB317,366,000), of which
approximately RMB121,609,000 (2020: approximately
RMB138,495,000) and approximately RMB156,553,000
(2020: approximately RMB178,871,000) are expected to
be recognised as revenue within one year and more than
one year respectively.

RRI##STEIBRIZRAMR AT Christine International Holdings Limited
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36.
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RATHER 35. BANK BORROWINGS
—E-—F —ETHF
2021 2020
AR¥FT ARMFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
RITIE R — B ET Bank borrowings — secured
——FNK — Within one year 130,000 100,000

AEBERBRZEAEBAARBE

RT+ZA=+—RZHXMT:

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings are
denominated in RMB.

The interest rates at 31 December were as follows:

—E-—f —ZTETF
2021 2020
RITIE K — BT Bank borrowings — secured 4.35%-5.00% 5.00%

RZB-Z—F+-A=+—H BHEMRTERES
RIGRA —FRN(ZE_2F —F)BHER KE
EFENE(ZE-FF BEMER)FE-

KRB —F+=-A=+—H RITBREHARRE
ERKELERBEAEREAAR —BBERR]
REFAFER UBBASEKREFEBESNAOA
R 13,478,000t (ZZE =ZF : ¥ AR ¥14,657,000
T0) R AR #182,850,000t (—ZE T F  HARE

120,838,000 ) I EME AR ¥ - BE M REIE
I B BIER LR A B IR R M FE195%20 o
BRREX

EREHIERREEEZRIEH BELELESRAED

ER-ZEERREBEM 2 RAREREE-

m

ERZRCEMAER  BRIFRERERIBEAZET
EHAKB I RBERERZEESNRARMEKRER

THEE BT BERAEBEE LoD
RERK-

ZEZ—FF Annual Report 2021

36.

At 31 December 2021, the secured bank borrowings are
wholly repayable within one year (2020: one year) since
its inception and arranged at fixed rate (2020: fixed rate)
per annum.

At 31 December 2021, the bank borrowings are
personal guaranteed by a director of the Company,
Mr. Yong Ning Zhu, corporate guaranteed by a related
company of the Company and secured by charges over
the Group's investment properties and property, plant
and equipment with aggregate net carrying amount of
approximately RMB13,478,000 (2020: approximately
RMB14,657,000) and approximately RMB182,850,000
(2020: approximately RMB120,838,000) as set out
in notes 19 and 20 to the consolidated financial
statements, respectively.

LOAN FROM A SHAREHOLDER

The balance represents loan advanced from a
shareholder, Huaneng, for working capital purpose.
The loan was unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

Huaneng has confirmed in writing that it will not
demand the partial or full repayment of the shareholder’s
loan until such demand or withdrawal has no significant
adverse impact on the Group’s going concern and the
sufficiency of working capital.

RRIHSTEMIZERARAT Christine International Holdings Limited
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37. ES REMENFIE 37. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
—B-—fF —ECEF
2021 2020
B 5 AR¥TT ABRETFT
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
E S ENIE Trade payable (a) 48,559 63,179
BB R Accruals 5,104 9,320
R TERER Payroll and welfare payables 18,140 16,710
HEMHBa R Other tax payables 9,192 14,548
HBEME BEREHZ Payables for acquisition of property,
FET IR plant and equipment 11,904 13,890
FENHEERXZ Payables for rental expenses (b) 20,971 6,000
H fth F& (< 5RIE Other payables 8,507 11,743
B 5 K& H A e RIB B Total trade and other payables 122,377 135,390
(a) HEE—BETAEENEOREER - REHE (@)  The Group normally is allowed a credit term of 30
HEZ3ME SEMNFIEZRR TN to 60 days by its suppliers. The ageing analysis of
trade payables based on the date of invoice date,
is as follows:
—E-—fF T
2021 2020
AR¥FT AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
0%£45K 0 - 45 days 22,055 38,877
462 60K 46 - 60 days 15,385 12,039
61£290K 61 - 90 days 2,934 10,264
91£ 180Kk 91 - 180 days 6,852 1,245
HBiB180K Over 180 days 1,333 754
48,559 63,179
AEEEHEMNFENRABEAARESE. The carrying amounts of the Group's trade
payables are denominated in RMB.
by RZZEZ—F+-—A=+—H HEEEREE (b) Included in the balance was provision for arrears
“ A ANR2857,000 L (—E-TF E)NE of rent with carrying amount of approximately
RESEE - ZLBRERE S EFETR0.05% RMB2,857,000 at 31 December 2021 (2020: nil).
FTE - The amount is calculated at 0.05% per day of

total arrears of rent.
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38.

BREE

RRBEITEME RN < &R AR E A BT
g ([&%atal])  EEMB R RBHARE L EKIMIE
HEBNAERZEE - GERSEEREARAR
ARAMBARNEZBRIRBES THRARE SR
BB EE EBEA R OZRRUBEE - %8
RIB——F+ A +LRER URRRERY
ERBRENBEADLFECEBH RZA[BR &K
THREAZBBRESDINEHBAMEAE - F="-
ENRERLBFEREBE25% AN ARBES AR
FF—FRITE-

BREZERKARBZHARTEBREZZSEE
RITERBEERARAREFMBRE BTROZ
10% - BUEBBRE AT NI T B B +FR1TE-

ARFAARRAS% A EBREZ TERRERBERE B
ERBERRNBRRAS LA

B 2 (TEE IR E R ARBERMNER 250% (B
0.88BTL)ERE -

BE_Z-_—F+-A=+—HILFE BEREXZ
FREREBERE(ZT_FF :8) R_FT_—F
TZA=+t—"B HMERARTEZBRE(ZT_F
F|E)-

38. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates approval and adopted a pre-IPO
share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group's operations.
Eligible participants include the full-time and part-
time employees, executives, officers, directors, business
consultants, agents, legal and financial advisers of the
Company and the Company'’s subsidiaries. The Scheme
became effective on 27 December 2011 and, are subject
to a vesting period of five years commencing from the
date of grant of such options during which 25% of the
options granted to a grantee will vest on each of the
second, third, fourth and fifth anniversary of the date
of grant and be exercisable within one year from such
anniversary.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Scheme
is an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10%
of the shares of the Company in issue at any time. No
option shall be exercisable 10 years after the date of
grant.

Share options granted to a substantial shareholder with
more than 5% of shareholding of the Company, are
subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable
by 50% of the share price of the initial public offering,
i.e. HK$0.8.

No share option has been granted under the Scheme
during the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).
No share option was outstanding at 31 December 2021
(2020: Nil).
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39. BERERERME 39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
() RETBELEMABBEZYIR (@) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities
TRANAEERBEGHAEABGEZEH B The table below details changes in the Group's
FEReMIREEY -METHELEZBEIE liabilities arising from financing activities, including
HREeREXRKReRENEAEEEZAR S both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising
MEXRTHOEAMEZIDELEZHREREZA from financing activities are those for which cash
E flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified

in the Group's consolidated statement of cash
flows as cash flows from financing activities.

*R£28
Non-cash changes
2RARE 2RAEE R-B=-f
RZBZ-F5  BEREN ReiEz HEBARE +=A
-A-B REREFH HENEK BANE HRASHS HEAREN BREEAR =t-H
Interest paid
At Net cash flows classified ~ COVID-19-  Additions of ~ Release of At
1January  as financing Finance asoperating  related rent lease lease 31 December
2021 cash flows costs  cash flows  concessions liabilities liabilities 2021

ARBFT  AREFT ARETZ ARETRZ  ARETT ARBFT AREFT  AREFx
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000

BRRER (F1:36) Loan from a shareholder (Note 36) - 52,000 - = s s s 52,000
BATHER (M 35) Bank borrowings (Note 35) 100,000 30,000 5,862 (5,862) - - - 130,000
RE8RE(W3) Lease liabilities (Note 32) 84,628 (47,707) 5,361 - (220) 34,190 (10,090) 66,152
@3t Total 184,628 34,293 11,223 (5,862) (220) 34,190 (10,090) 248,162
FREEY
Non-cash changes
NRRME i3
RZZ-TF Refgz Remgr WMERARE +=A
-A-B REREFH REARK BRME HEESHS BEEEEN BRESEE =t-H
Interest paid
At Net cash flows dlassified COVID-19-  Additions of Release of At
TJanuary  as financing Finance  asoperating  related rent lease lease 31 December
2020 cash flows costs cash flows ~ concessions liabilities liabilities 2020

ARBTL  ARETTL ARETT ARETEZ ARETZ ARETE ARETZ ARETZ
RMBOOO  RMBUOO  RMBUOO  RMBUOO  RMBUOO  AMBUOO  RMBUO0O  AMBO00

BTN (M35 Bank borrowings (Note 35) 35,950 64,050 1,639 (1,639) = = = 100,000
MERE (ME32) Lease liabilities (Note 32) 125,204 (69,815) 7,913 = (4,679) 29,106 (3,101) 84,628
st Total 161,154 (5,765) 9,552 (1,639) (4,679) 29,106 (3,101) 184,628
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BHEZ

39.

40.

RERTREBRME (B)

(b) RAREEZRSRHAE
BenERTANEEZEREBENTRE:

39.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(Continued)

(b) Total cash outflow for leases

Amounts included in the cash flow statements for
leases comprise the following:

:g: —ﬂE S 7 e qf
2021 2020
AR¥FT AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
RIEEBHEEREN Within operating cash flows 7,149 33,224
RBEReREN Within financing cash flows 47,707 69,815
54,856 103,039

ZERWMENTIHEEGH: These amounts relate to the following:
—E-—F —ECEF
2021 2020
AR¥FT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EftEe Lease rental paid 7,149 33,224
EEHEERE Repayment of lease liabilities 47,707 69,815
54,856 103,039

HREE

RIB-—F+-A=1+—R AEEALEEFEKX

KARBE(ZF_FTF &) -

ZZT = —FF4 Annual Report 2021

40.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31 December 2021,

significant contingent liabilities (2020: Nil).

the Group did not have any
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41, E¥E 41. COMMITMENTS
RERNAE Commitments under operating leases
AEEERBERAA The Group as lessor
REERBLCEHELHEREYWE BN TF5E12 The Group leases out its investment properties under
F(ZTZEF 5E212F) - BETTHHELCEHER operating leases with lease terms ranging from 5 to
RIREEWESBFENOT 12 years (2020: 5 to 12 years). The future aggregate
minimum rental receivables under non-cancellable
operating leases are as follows:
—B-—fF —ECEF
2021 2020
AR FT ARBTFT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
14 Year 1 2,595 2,114
24 Year 2 2,695 2,595
3F Year 3 2,700 2,695
49F Year 4 2,229 2,700
54 Year 5 2,338 2,229
5 LA E After 5 years 14,746 17,084
27,303 29,417
42, EREIE 42. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
RMERREBREERRITONERAENT Capital commitments authorised for at the end of the
reporting period but not yet contracted are as follows:
—E-—F —EETHF
2021 2020
ARMFT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
Y B k& Property, plant and equipment = 464
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43,

44,

AHEE R

AEEETRREEMETLERABRY R - —F
ToA=1T—B EHENES REA M RRME
NWENEMHER I RNEENESES -

BE-_Z-_— S+ _-_A=+t—BLEE KX£EH

PEZEMEIIVESHEY - R_E-—F+_A

=+—H REEZHEREL A ARYAL281,0007T
ZTEZEF HARM11,678,0007T) ©

BEALRS
() BEAMBRRAMLTAREZZEMEA

TR 5 RAERIN

() FRNFAEEEREBEEATRETUTR

43,

44,

SHORT-TERM LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for
retail outlets. At 31 December 2021, the portfolio of
short-term leases is similar to the portfolio of short-term
leases to which the short-term lease expense as disclosed
in note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
entered into short-term leases for retail outlets in the
PRC. At 31 December 2021, the outstanding lease
commitments relating to approximately RMB4,281,000
(2020: approximately RMB11,678,000).

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@ In addition to those related party transactions and
balances disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements.

(i) The Group had the following transactions

vk with its related parties during the year:
—EB-—fF —TFTHF
2021 2020
B3 ARHTFIT AR FT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
M E8E A A Y Goods and raw materials
B RREME purchased from related
companies
—FBEREZER QA - Shanghai Meixin Trade Co., Ltd.
(T8l ("Meixin") @) 583 1,425
—-ABES (EE)BR - Gu Wei Trade (Shanghai)
NCIRQESS " 3D Co., Ltd ("Gu Wei") © 1,763 2,050
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44. BEALTRS (8)

@ (&)

(i) AEERFARE

44,
(Continued)
(@)  (Continued)
HRBEATHENUN T (i)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group had the following balances with

its related parties during the year:

—E-—F —ZEETF
2021 2020
b= AR¥EFTT AR For
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
FE U R N R A - Amounts due from a related
company:
— Christine Princess — Christine Princess Co.,
Co., (PTC) Ltd. (PTC) Ltd. (b) 234 234
FEfTREIB A R FRIE | Amounts due to related
companies:
1 — Meixin (a) 154 570
— - Gu Wei () 883 1,027
1,037 1,597
P &E Notes:

() EBRERAIBFLEHZBERRBBIZEE-

(b) ZBERRR—REFEAE AEELRAS
ERERBFBEANARME-

(@ ZEAERRZIEEBRASRESHAIERL
EZEH

ZEZ—FF Annual Report 2021

(a) A director, Mr. Dun-ching Hung, has control
over the related company.

(b) The related company was a trust company
holding equity interest in the Company
on trust for the benefit of management
employees.

() The key management personnel of the related
company is the close member of family of a
director, Mr. Dun-ching Hung.
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44. MEALTRS (&) 44. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)
by EZRHMFEEEEKERFRNZIHFINOT : (b)  The remuneration of directors and other members
of key management during the year was as
follows:
—E-—fF T
2021 2020
ARE¥FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
e EATE A Short-term benefits 835 2,178
R AIFT B R Retirement benefits scheme
contributions 119 75
954 2,253
45, {EHRER 45. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD
RIBZ—F+_A=T—"HEREZEREVBR Subsequent to 31 December 2021 and up to the date
RAEEBRE AEEEWEEMERKRBHARE of approving the consolidated financial statements,
40,100,0007T, * # — #EFIE AT 5126 () © the Group had recovered other receivables as further

detailed in note 26(b) of approximately RMB40,100,000.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

BET-A=t+-HL%¥E

Year ended 31 December

—FtF “F-0\E “FNE i 2 —g--f
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
AREFIT ANREFT AREFT ANREFT AREFT
RMB 000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000
E Result
g Revenue 805,046 664,017 552,941 403,919 292,034
BREATE B Loss before tax (125,446) (234,418) (223,476) (109,711) (172,412)
M (AX)HE Income tax (expense) credit (3,208) 2,243 ®21) (660) 2,287
FREERZEFELEE Loss and total comprehensive
loss for the year (128,654) (232,175) (224,297) (110,371) (170,125)
AT ALREMS: Attributable to:
Z/NETE FEUN Owners of the company (128,654) (232,175) (224,297) (110,371) (170,125)
R+=A=+-—H
At 31 December
—E—+F —T-N\F —T-hEF ZTEF —E-_—F
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
ARETFTL ARETFT AREFT ARETT AR¥TrT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
EEREE Assets and liabilities
BERE Total assets 1,077,477 797,422 711,980 610,144 448,409
BERE Total liabilities 546,546 498,666 637,521 646,056 654,446
530,931 298,756 74,459 (35,912) (206,037)
RAREAR NEEER Equity attributable to owners
of the company 530,931 298,756 74,459 (35,912) (206,037)
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